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Financial Highlights i &=

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Revenue increased by approximately HK$28.2 million or
7.6%, from approximately HK$370.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2023 to approximately HK$398.5 million
for the year ended 31 December 2024.

The Group recorded a gross profit of approximately HK$71.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023:
approximately HK$71.1 million).

The Group recorded a profit attributable to owners of the
Company of approximately HK$31.5 million for the year
ended 31 December 2024 (2023: approximately HK$25.2
million).

Basic earnings per share was approximately HK1.7 cents
for the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: approximately
HK1.7 cents).

The Board resolved not to recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2024.
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Chairman’s Statement =FE#H &%

Dear Shareholders,

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of WK
Group (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) is pleased to present
the consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2024, together with the comparative figures for the year
ended 31 December 2023.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The shares of the Company (the “Shares”) were successfully listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) on 8 March 2024 (the “Listing Date”) by
way of share offer (the “Share Offer”) (the “Listing”). The Group
is a structural steelwork contractor in Hong Kong, specialising
in the supply, fabrication and installation of structural steel for
construction projects in Hong Kong.

In recent years, the instability of the Hong Kong real estate market
has exerted immense pressure on the construction industry.
Despite this, the Group showcased stable business performance
under a volatile environment during the year ended 31 December
2024. The Board reviewed the key factors contributing to the
Group’s stable performance which are as follows: (i) the Group
demonstrated the ability to swiftly adapt to shifting market
conditions. By closely monitoring economic trends, government
policies and construction demand, the Group was able to align its
business strategy to seize emerging opportunities. For example,
focusing on infrastructure projects, often supported by government
funding during economic instabilities, helped maintain a stable
project pipeline. The Group’s emphasis on projects backed by large
conglomerates reduced the risk of bad debts. Involvement in large-
scale infrastructure endeavours, such as bridges and transportation
hubs, ensured a consistent revenue stream, given their resilience
to economic fluctuations; (i) the Group’s capacity to sustain strong
customer relationships has been pivotal to its business resilience.
Consistently delivering high-quality steelwork solutions on schedule
and within budget earned the trust of customers. Repeat business
from satisfied customers provided a dependable revenue source
even in uncertain times; (iii) recognising that a solid working
environment is fundamental to success, the Group continued to
invest in the factory and machinery despite economic challenges.
These capital Investments enhanced productivity and efficiency;
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Chairman’s Statement =E#H &

and (iv) sound financial management is crucial in navigating
economic uncertainty. By maintaining a healthy financial position
and managing cash flow diligently, the Group ensured the financial
stability necessary to withstand economic downturns.

The revenue of the Group increased by approximately HK$28.2
million or 7.6% from approximately HK$370.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2023 to approximately HK$398.5 million for
the year ended 31 December 2024, which was mainly attributable
to a higher amount of works of performed for some sizeable
projects, such as (i) a private commercial development located
at Causeway Bay; (ii) a private commercial development located
at Central; (iii) an infrastructure and public facilities development
located at Tung Chung; and (iv) an infrastructure and public facilities
development located at Kai Tak.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had 22 projects (31 December
2023: 19 projects) on hand with backlog value of approximately
HK$322.1 million (31 December 2023: approximately HK$550.5
million).

PROSPECTS

Under the current economic environment, the uncertainties in the
real estate sector have significantly impacted the construction
industry in Hong Kong, leading to a decline in demand and
a reduction in the number of new projects. Factors such as
decreasing property prices, relatively high interest rates, tighter
financing conditions, and cautious investor sentiment have led to
a slowdown in real estate development. As a result, construction
companies face increasing competition for a shrinking pool of
available projects, putting pressure on profit margins and overall
business sustainability. In response to these challenges, the Group
has highly focused on the collectability of trade receivables and
number of contracts in tendering which may result in the acquisition
of a greater number of contracts, even at lower gross profit
margins. This strategic approach ensures a steady and continuous
revenue and cash flow streams, optimises workforce utilisation, and
strengthens the Group’s overall market presence.
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To navigate the market fluctuations effectively, the Group remains
proactive in adapting to shifting industry dynamics. By carefully
balancing competitive pricing strategies with rigorous cost control
measures, the Group aims to maximise business opportunities
while safeguarding its financial stability and long-term viability. All in
all, the Directors remain cautiously optimistic about the structural
steelwork industry in Hong Kong.

APPRECIATION

The Board would like to express its sincere gratitude to the
management of the Group and all the staff for their hard work and
dedication, as well as its shareholders, business associates and

other professional parties for their support throughout the period.

Chan Wing Hong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2025
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Management Discussion and Analysis E&EE&t

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

Revenue increased by approximately HK$28.2 million or 7.6% from
approximately HK$370.2 million for the year ended 31 December
2023 to approximately HK$398.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2024, which was mainly attributable to a higher amount
of works performed for some sizeable projects for the year ended
31 December 2024, such as (i) a private commercial development
located at Causeway Bay; (i) a private commercial development
located at Central; (iii) an infrastructure and public facilities
development located at Tung Chung; and (iv) an infrastructure and
public facilities development located at Kai Tak.

Cost of services

Cost of services mainly comprised cost of materials, subcontracting
fees, direct labour costs, transportation and machinery service fees.

The cost of services increased by approximately HK$27.9 million
or 9.3%, from approximately HK$299.1 million for the year ended
31 December 2023 to approximately HK$327.1 million for the year
ended 31 December 2024. The increase was primarily driven by
the increase in the amount of works performed, which was in line
with the increase in revenue.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

Gross profit remained stable at approximately HK$71.4 million for
the year ended 31 December 2024 and approximately HK$71.1
million for the year ended 31 December 2023, respectively. Gross
profit margin decreased slightly from approximately 19.2% for the
year ended 31 December 2023 to approximately 17.9% for the
year ended 31 December 2024 mainly because the Group adopted
lower gross profit margins for new projects in order to secure the
tender under the increasing competition in the market.
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Other income and other loss, net

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the other income and
other net loss included the decrease in value of financial asset at
fair value through profit or loss of approximately HK$0.5 million,
partially offsetting by the increase in value of life insurance contracts
of approximately HK$0.2 million.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the other income and
other loss included the decrease in value of life insurance contracts
of approximately HK$0.4 million and loss on disposal of plant and
equipment of approximately HK$79,000.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses mainly comprised staff costs, motor
vehicles expenses, depreciation and exchange differences.

Administrative expenses increased by approximately HK$7.4 million
or 38.7% from approximately HK$19.1 million for the year ended
31 December 2023 to approximately HK$26.5 million of the year
ended 31 December 2024, which was mainly attributable to (i) the
increase in finance and administration staff cost; (i) the increase
in legal and professional fee incurred after the Listing; and (i) the
increase in entertainment expenses.

Impairment losses on financial assets and contract assets

The Group recorded impairment losses on financial assets and
contract assets of approximately HK$64,000 for the year ended
31 December 2024 and approximately HK$1.6 million for the year
ended 31 December 2023. The amount was calculated based
on the default rates and repayment and default histories of the
customers of the Group.

Profit for the year

As a result of the foregoing and the Listing expenses of
approximately HK$4.8 million incurred during the year ended
31 December 2024 (as compared to approximately HK$16.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2023), the profit for the
year increased by approximately HK$6.3 million or 25.0%, from
approximately HK$25.2 million for the year ended 31 December
2023 to approximately HK$31.5 million for the year ended
31 December 2024, and the net profit margin increased from
approximately 6.8% for the year ended 31 December 2023 to
approximately 7.9% for the the year ended 31 December 2024.
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

The Group needs to maintain a solid liquidity for working capital to
support the Group’s business operations. The principal sources
of liquidity are equity capital, cash generated from operations and
bank borrowings. As at 31 December 2024, the Group maintained
a healthy liquidity position with net current assets balance of
approximately HK$218.9 million (2023: approximately HK$117.7
million), bank deposit with maturity over 3 months of approximately
HK$5.1 million (2023:nil) and cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$100.0 million (2023: approximately HK$8.7
million). The cash and cash equivalents and bank deposit with
maturity over 3 months were denominated in Hong Kong dollars
and in Renminbi (‘RMB”).

The Shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
on 8 March 2024. There has been no change in the capital
structure of the Company since then. As at 31 December 2024, the
capital structure of the Company comprised mainly issued share
capital and reserves. The Group also deployed bank borrowings as
its financial resources.

Bank borrowings

Bank borrowings as at 31 December 2024 amounted to
approximately HK$5.9 million (2023: approximately HK$9.9 million).
The bank borrowings were denominated in Hong Kong dollars
and bear interest at floating rates. Please refer to note 9 to the
consolidated financial statements for the maturity profile of bank
borrowings.

Gearing ratio

Gearing ratio is calculated as total borrowings (i.e. bank borrowings
and lease liabilities) divided by the total equity as at the respective
reporting dates. The gearing ratio decreased from approximately
9.5% as at 31 December 2023 to approximately 5.0% as at 31
December 2024. Such decrease was mainly due to the decrease in
bank borrowings, coupled with the increase in total equity.
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Net debt to equity ratio

Net debt to equity ratio is calculated as net debts (i.e. bank
borrowings and lease liabilities, net of cash and cash equivalents
and bank deposit with maturity over 3 months) divided by total
equity as at the respective reporting dates. The Group recorded net
cash positions as at 31 December 2024 while net debt to equity
ratio was approximately 3.1% as at 31 December 2023.

Treasury policy

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policy. The Board closely monitors the Group’s
liquidity position to ensure that the liquidity structure of the Group’s
assets, liabilities, and other commitments can meet its funding
requirements all the time.

Capital expenditures

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group incurred
capital expenditures of approximately HK$17.0 million (2023:
approximately HK$1.4 million).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2024 and in the ordinary
course of the Group’s business, the Group has been subject to a
number of claims due to personal injuries suffered by employees of
the Group or the Group’s subcontractors in accidents arising out of
and in the course of their employment. The Board is of the opinion
that such claims are covered by insurance and will not result in
any material adverse impact on the financial position or results and
operations of the Group. No provision has been made in respect of
these claims in the year ended 31 December 2024.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS AND
COMMITMENTS

The Directors confirm that as at 31 December 2024 and the date

of this annual report, the Group did not have any off-balance sheet
arrangements or commitments.
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Management Discussion and Analysis E&EE&t

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2024, the bank borrowings were secured by
the life insurance contracts and guaranteed by the Company.

As at 31 December 2023, (i) non-revolving loan facility amounting
to approximately HK$7.0 million and revolving loan facility
amounting to approximately HK$2.0 million were guaranteed by
Mr. Chan Kam Kei, Mr. Chan Kam Kong, Ms. Chan Suk Man and
Mr. Chan Wing Hong, and were secured by properties owned by
Wealthy River International Investment Limited, being a related
company of the Group, and life insurance contracts owned by Mr.
Chan Kam Kei and Ms. Chan Suk Man; and (i) non-revolving loan
facility amounting to approximately HK$0.9 million was secured
by the properties owned by Wealthy River International Investment
Limited, Mr. Chan Wing Hong and Ms. Choi Chick Cheong, and
was guaranteed by Mr. Chan Kam Kong, Mr. Chan Kam Kei and
Mr. Chan Wing Hong respectively.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, ACQUISITIONS OR
DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

As at 31 December 2024, the Group did not have any significant
investments, acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures.
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group’s revenue from customers is mainly from Hong Kong
while the part of materials purchased in the PRC and the fabrication
of structural steel mainly operates in the PRC. Accordingly, the
revenue is received in HK$ while part of costs arising from the
Group’s operations are generally settled in RMB. As a result,
fluctuations in the value of HK$ against RMB could adversely
affect the financial results of the Group. During the year ended
31 December 2024, the Group did not experience any material
difficulties or impacts on its operations or liquidity as a result of
currency exchange fluctuation.

The Group did not use any financial instruments for hedging
purposes during the year ended 31 December 2024 and there was
no hedging instruments outstanding as at 31 December 2024. The
Group will continue to monitor closely the exchange rate risk arising
from its existing operations and new investments in future. The
Group will further implement the necessary hedging arrangement
to mitigate any significant foreign exchange risk when and if
appropriate.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

As at 31 December 2024, the major financial instruments include
trade receivables, other receivables and deposits, financial asset at
fair value through profit or loss, bank deposit with maturity over 3
months, cash and cash equivalents, trade and retention payables,
accruals and other payables, bank borrowings and lease liabilities.
The management manages such exposure to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented in a timely and effective manner.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had 137 employees (2023:
148 employees) who were directly employed by the Group and
based in Hong Kong and the PRC. The Group offers remuneration
package to the employees which includes salary and bonuses.
Generally, the Group considers employees’ salaries based on
each of their qualifications, position and seniority. The Group
has an annual review system to appraise the performance of the
employees, which constitutes the grounds of the decision as to the
salary raises, bonuses and promotions. The remuneration of the
Directors is decided by the Board upon the recommendation from
the remuneration committee of the Company having regard to the
Group’s operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics.

Please refer to note 8 to the consolidated financial statements for
the remuneration of employees.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There were no material events from the end of the reporting period
up to the date of this annual report.

USE OF PROCEEDS

The Shares were successfully listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on 8 March 2024.

The amount of gross proceeds from the Share Offer was HK$125
million and the amount of net proceeds from the Share Offer
was approximately HK$91.0 million after deducting underwriting
commissions and the expenses relating to the Share Offer (the “Net
Proceeds”).
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The Net Proceeds will be used in the manner consistent with
that as disclosed in the section headed “Future Plans and Use of
Proceeds” of the Company’s prospectus dated 29 February 2024
(the “Prospectus”). The particulars of the use of the Net Proceeds
from the Listing Date up to 31 December 2024 are set forth:

ISR EFESeRBEARFGBHA
20242 H2OR MR EFR ([BRER])
[RRFTERFAEREBERSE] —HMEEE
—HmFXEA - B LT HHBEZE2024
F1I2ANBIEMBRIBFERA R ZFBER
BT

Utilised
amount of Utilised
Net Proceeds amount of

from  Net Proceeds Expected
Intended Listing Date to as at timeline
use of 31 December 31 December for the use of
Purposes Net Proceeds 2024 2024  Net Proceeds
REmAHE
22024 R2024%
12A31H 12A31H
FriSFE FriS &
PSRRI FEMN FHECEHA FEADR BAMSREF
A% RERE Ex] 28 ENEERER
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BE#T BT BEET BEET
Financing the up-front costs of RIEE KRB R AR 56.0 56.0 - N/A
projects E%a il
Acquiring a piece of land and setting Wi — g% - WET 33.1 = 33.1  December 2025
up a new production facility — BT E R 2025F 12 A
Expanding and strengthening BARMEATF (H7L) 1.9 0.6 1.3 December 2025
manpower (Notg) 2025F 12 A
91.0 56.6 34.4

Note: Despite the Group’s efforts in actively recruiting and interviewing
potential candidates, the expansion of the Group’s manpower was
delayed because the Group was unable to find suitable candidates.
Haning said that, the Group will continue to recruit potential
candidates.

As at the date of the annual report dated 27 March 2025, there

was no further change for the intended use of Net Proceeds as
disclosed in the Prospectus.
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FUTURE PLAN FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS AND
CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Future Plans and Use of
Proceeds” of the Prospectus, as at 31 December 2024, the Group
did not have other plans for material investments and capital assets.

DIVIDEND

In January 2024, prior to the capitalisation issue on 8 March
2024 and the Listing, the Company declared an interim dividend
of approximately HK$26.6 million (representing approximately
HK$26.6 million per ordinary Share), of which approximately
HK$10.0 million was settled by cash before the Listing and
approximately HK$16.6 million was offset against the aggregate
amounts due from the Directors and the related company.

During the year ended 31 December 2023 and prior to the
Reorganisation (as defined in the Prospectus), dividends of
HK$20,000,000 were declared and settled by a subsidiary of the
Company to its then shareholders.

The Board resolved not to recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: nil).
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DIRECTORS

The Board consists of eight Directors, comprising three executive
Directors, two non-executive Directors and three independent non-
executive Directors.

Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Kam Kei, aged 49, was appointed as a Director on 28
June 2023 and was re-designated as an executive Director on 6
July 2023. Mr. Chan Kam Kei also serves as the chief executive
officer of the Group, the chairperson of the Nomination Committee
and a member of the Remuneration Committee. He is primarily
responsible for the overall management and formulation of business
strategies of the Group. He is also a director of various subsidiaries
of the Company, namely WK Development Group Limited (“WK
Development”), Wing Kei Structural Metalworks Company Limited
(“Wing Kei Hong Kong”) and Wing Kei Management Limited
(“Wing Kei Management”). He is the son of Mr. Chan Wing Hong
and Ms. Choi Chick Cheong, and the brother of Mr. Chan Kam
Kong and Ms. Chan Suk Man. Mr. Chan Kam Kei is one of the
Controlling Shareholders (as defined in the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”))
of the Company.

Mr. Chan Kam Kei co-founded the Group in July 1999 with Mr.
Chan Wing Hong, and has since accumulated over 25 years of
experience in the structural steelwork industry. Since founding the
Group, Mr. Chan Kam Kei has been overseeing various aspects
of the Group’s business including its strategic and corporate
development, expansion plans and bidding tenders, and leading the
Group to gradually expand its business throughout the years and
undertake both private and public projects, including some high-
profile projects, the details of which are set out in the paragraph
headed “History, development and Reorganisation — Our business
development” of the Prospectus.

Mr. Chan Kam Kei has been a member of the New Territories
General Chamber of Commerce since March 2013 and was a
director of the chamber from 2014 to 2016 and 2020 to 2022. He
has also been a member of Tsuen Wan Trade Association Limited
since April 2016. Mr. Chan Kam Kei attended secondary school
education in Canada.
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Mr. Chan Kam Kong, aged 46, was appointed as a Director on
28 June 2023 and was re-designated as an executive Director
on 6 July 2023. Mr. Chan Kam Kong also serves as the chief
operating officer of the Group. He is primarily responsible for the
overall project management and day-to-day management of the
operations of the Group. He is also a director of all subsidiaries of
the Company, namely WK Development, Wing Kei Hong Kong,
Wing Kei Management and Dongguan Yongji Metal Component
Manufacturing Co., Ltd.* (REekEEBHHERIERRAR]). He is
the son of Mr. Chan Wing Hong and Ms. Choi Chick Cheong, and
the brother of Mr. Chan Kam Kei and Ms. Chan Suk Man. Mr. Chan
Kam Kong is one of the Controlling Shareholders (as defined in the
Listing Rules) of the Company.

Mr. Chan Kam Kong joined the Group in September 2003, and
has since accumulated nearly 20 years of experience in the
structural steelwork industry. Since joining the Group, Mr. Chan
Kam Kong has been overseeing various aspects of the Group’s
business including its strategic and corporate development, project
management and expansion plans. Mr. Chan Kam Kong has been
managing the Group’s operations in the PRC.

Mr. Chan Kam Kong graduated from Centennial College in Canada
in April 2003. He has also been a member and executive vice
chairman of the Hong Kong Metals Manufacturers Association
and the Dongguan City Association of Enterprises with Foreign
Investment Dalingshan Branch since April 2019 and August 2018,
respectively.

Note: The English names of the bodies/entities which are marked with “*”
are translated, or transliterated from their Chinese names and are for
identification purposes only.

Ms. Chan Suk Man, aged 44, was appointed as a Director on 28
June 2023 and was re-designated as an executive Director on 6
July 2023. She is primarily responsible for the overall day-to-day
management of the operations and administration of the Group.
She is also a director of various subsidiaries of the Company,
namely WK Development, Wing Kei Hong Kong and Wing Kei
Management. She is the daughter of Mr. Chan Wing Hong and
Ms. Choi Chick Cheong, and the sister of Mr. Chan Kam Kong and
Mr. Chan Kam Kei. Ms. Chan Suk Man is one of the Controlling
Shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company.
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Ms. Chan Suk Man has over eight years of experience in the
structural steelwork industry. Prior to joining the Group in January
2016, Ms. Chan Suk Man has accumulated over ten years of
experience in the finance sector. From March 2005 to August
2009, Ms. Chan Suk Man worked in the Hong Kong branch of The
Royal Bank of Scotland N.V. (formerly known as ABN AMRO Bank
N.V.) with her last position as relationship manager of retail and
commercial markets in Asia. From December 2010 to February
2012, Ms. Chan Suk Man worked in Bank of China (Hong Kong)
Limited with her last position as business officer in securities
services of personal banking and product management. From
February 2012 to December 2015, Ms. Chan Suk Man worked in
Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited with her last position as
associate in cash clearing risk management of the global clearing
division.

Ms. Chan Suk Man graduated from the University of Toronto,
Canada, with a degree of bachelor of science in June 2004. She
further obtained a master’s degree of science in mathematics for
finance and actuarial science in Hong Kong jointly awarded by the
City University of Hong Kong and the Université Paris-Dauphine,
France in July 2010.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan Wing Hong, aged 76, was appointed as a Director on
28 June 2023 and was re-designated as a non-executive Director
on 6 July 2023. Mr. Chan Wing Hong also serves as the chairman
of the Board. He is primarily responsible for participating in the
decision making of the Board with respect to strategic development
of the Group. He is also a director of various subsidiaries of the
Company, namely WK Development and Wing Kei Hong Kong. He is
the spouse of Ms. Choi Chick Cheong, and the father of Mr. Chan
Kam Kei, Mr. Chan Kam Kong and Ms. Chan Suk Man. Mr. Chan
Wing Hong is one of the Controlling Shareholders (as defined in the
Listing Rules) of the Company.

Mr. Chan Wing Hong has accumulated over 40 years of experience
in structural steel works, metal works and general construction.
Mr. Chan Wing Hong co-founded the Group in July 1999 with Mr.
Chan Kam Kei. Since founding the Group, Mr. Chan Wing Hong
has been overseeing various aspects of the Group’s business
including its strategic and corporate development, expansion
plans and bidding tenders, and leading the Group to gradually
expand its business throughout the years and undertake both
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private and public projects, including some high-profile projects,
the details of which are set out in the paragraph headed “History,
development and Reorganisation — Our business development” in
the Prospectus. Prior to founding the Group, from February 1983
to June 1999, Mr. Chan Wing Hong worked at Choi Lam Kee Iron
Works Limited (currently known as Hang Yick Engineering Limited),
a company engaging in iron works. Mr. Chan Wing Hong attended
secondary school education in Hong Kong.

Ms. Choi Chick Cheong, aged 73, was appointed as a Director
on 28 June 2023 and was re-designated as a non-executive
Director on 6 July 2023. She is primarily responsible for the overall
corporate strategies of the Group. She is also a director of various
subsidiaries of the Company, namely WK Development and Wing
Kei Hong Kong. She is the spouse of Mr. Chan Wing Hong, and
the mother of Mr. Chan Kam Kei, Mr. Chan Kam Kong and Ms.
Chan Suk Man. Ms. Choi Chick Cheong is one of the Controlling
Shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company.

Ms. Choi Chick Cheong joined the Group in July 1999 and has
since accumulated over 25 years of experience in the structural
steelwork industry. Since joining the Group, Ms. Choi Chick Cheong
has been assisting Mr. Chan Wing Hong and Mr. Chan Kam Kei by
providing administrative and secretarial support to the Group. Ms.
Choi Chick Cheong attended secondary school education in Hong
Kong.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Cha Ho Wa, aged 35, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 5 February 2024. He is the chairperson of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee.

Mr. Cha has over 8 years of experience in the legal field in Hong
Kong. Mr. Cha was admitted as a solicitor of the High Court of
Hong Kong in October 2018 and he has been a practising solicitor
since then. Mr. Cha worked at Messrs. Peter K.S. Chan & Co.
since June 2016 with his last position as partner. Since April
2023, Mr. Cha has been working in Messrs. Eddie Lee & Co.,
Solicitors as senior consultant. In addition, from December 2021
to December 2022, Mr. Cha was accredited as a general mediator
of the Hong Kong Mediation Accreditation Association Limited.
Since September 2022, Mr. Cha served as a part-time visiting
lecturer at the Community College of the School of Professional
and Continuing Education of The University of Hong Kong (HKU
SPACE).
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From December 2020 to September 2021, Mr. Cha was an
independent non-executive director of China Oil Gangran Energy
Group Holdings Limited (currently known as Century Energy
International Holdings Limited), a company listed on GEM of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 8132). From September 2023 to July
2024, Mr. Cha was been an independent non-executive director
of Vision International Holdings Limited (currently known as Ficus
Technology Holdings Limited), a company listed on GEM of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 8107). Since January 2025, Mr. Cha
has been an Independent non-executive director of Skyline Builders
Group Holding Limited, a company listed on Nasdaqg Stock
Exchange (stock codes: SKBL).

Mr. Cha graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong with
a bachelor’s degree of arts in November 2013, and further obtained
a degree of Juris Doctor and a Postgraduate Certificate in Laws
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in November 2015
and July 2016, respectively. Mr. Cha is currently studying for the
doctoral degree in Business Administration at the Swiss Business
School.

Mr. Yu Chun Kit, aged 35, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 5 February 2024. He is the chairperson of the
Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee.

Mr. Yu has over 13 years of experience in corporate finance,
accounting and auditing. Mr. Yu worked at BDO Limited from
October 2011 to July 2014, with his last position as senior
associate. From July 2014 to August 2015, Mr. Yu worked at
KPMG with his last position as assistant manager. From December
2016 to December 2017, Mr. Yu worked at Kingston Corporate
Finance Limited as assistant manager. Mr. Yu has been the financial
controller and company secretary of Mannings (Asia) Consultants
Limited, being a subsidiary of Boltek Holdings Limited, a company
listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8601), and
Boltek Holdings Limited since January 2018 and April 2018,
respectively. In addition, Mr. Yu has been a company secretary of
Global Uin Intelligence Holdings Limited (formerly known as Global
Dining Holdings Limited and Singapore Food Holdings Limited), a
company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8496),
since September 2019.
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Since April 2022, Mr. Yu has been an independent non-executive
director of Sinohope Technology Holdings Limited (formerly known
as New Huo Technology Holdings Limited and Huobi Technology
Holdings Limited), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1611).

Mr. Yu graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with
a degree of bachelor of business administration in accounting and
finance in October 2011. He has been a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants since July 2015.

Mr. Liu Chi Kwun Albert, aged 62, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 5 February 2024. He is a
member of the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee.

Mr. Liu has over 38 years of experience in structural engineering.
From January 1986 to December 1987, Mr. Liu worked at Camp
Scott Furphy Pty. Ltd. in Sydney, Australia as a graduate engineer.
From January 1988 to April 1989, Mr. Liu worked at Bernard Leung
& Partners as a project engineer. Prior to co-founding Liu Hok Yan
& Associates Limited in July 1995 and subsequent to his departure
from Bernard Leung & Partners in April 1989, Mr. Liu worked at
Fugro (Hong Kong) Limited with his last position as senior engineer.
In July 1995, Mr. Liu co-found Liu Hok Yan & Associates Limited
and has been working as director since then. Mr. Liu re-joined
Fugro (Hong Kong) Limited in June 1996 and left in June 1999
with his last position as associate director. In October 1997, Mr.
Liu founded Albert Liu & Associates Limited (formerly known as
LC Design Consultants Limited) and has been working as director
since then.

Mr. Liu graduated from the University of Sydney, Australia, with a
degree of bachelor of science in March 1984 and further obtained a
degree of bachelor of engineering in civil engineering from the same
university in March 1986. Mr. Liu has been a registered structural
engineer, an authorised person (list of engineers) and a registered
inspector (list of engineers) under the Buildings Ordinance (Chapter
123 of the Laws of Hong Kong) since November 1994, April 1999
and November 2015, respectively. Mr. Liu has been a member of
the Institution of Structural Engineers and the Hong Kong Institution
of Engineers since November 1989 and May 1993, respectively.
In addition, Mr. Liu has been a PRC registered structural engineer
(Class 1) since March 2008.
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Company Secretary

Mr. Tam Hon Fai, aged 41, is the company secretary of the
Company and is responsible for secretarial affairs of the Group.

Mr. Tam worked at Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu from September
2006 to August 2011 in the audit department. From January 2012
to November 2022, Mr. Tam acted as an audit partner of CTY &
Co, a CPA firm. Since August 2017, Mr. Tam has been a director
of JMG Corporate Advisory Limited, a firm principally engaged in
the provision of corporate advisory services. Since June 2020, Mr.
Tam has been a director of Marksman Services Group Limited, a
firm principally engaged in provision of corporate advisory services.
Since October 2020, Mr. Tam has acted as a director of IPA CPA
Limited.
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Mr. Tam has served different roles in various listed companies as EAEEENEZR ETARETTRBEE -
follows: AT -

Period Company name, stock code and venue of listing Position
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December 2011 to July 2013

Noble House (China) Holdings Limited (currently

Company secretary

known as Zhonghua Gas Holdings Limited) (stock
code: 8246), a company listed on GEM of the Stock

Exchange
2011512 A 201347 A

ZE (REDIERBR AR CRETEMRIERABRAR - ARWE

IRIAHREE - 8246) » BRI PAGEM ETHEY A &)

February 2014 to September 2014 Bamboos Health Care Holdings Limited (stock code:

Financial controller

2298), a company then listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange in July 2014 which transferred its listing to

the Main Board in March 2017
2014F2 HZE2014F9H

BABEIERARAR (RMHASE : 2293) - A—FHR
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Biography of Directors and Senior Management EEK sREEERE

Period Company name, stock code and venue of listing Position
HAM AREE - RORKER TR B

August 2019 to September 2024

Gen Commerce and Supply Chain Limited) (stock

S&T Holdings Limited (currently known as China Next-

Independent non-
executive director

code: 3928), a company listed on the Main Board of

the Stock Exchange
H2019F8 A #£E202449 A

S&T Holdings Limited GRIFH BT T EHEEEE FR

BYIFATES

NA]) (BRADHRSR ¢ 3928) @ A—RINB IR £

B A)

December 2020 to February 2022  Sino Vision Worldwide Holdings Limited, a company

Company secretary

previously listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange (stock

code: 8086) until 4 July 2023
2020512 2202242 A

HEBEFIERARAR (—HABRBRXAGEM LR RAME

Al BRI AEE - 8086) ¢ B £2023F7 A4H

Mr. Tam obtained a degree of bachelor of business administration
in accounting from the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology in May 2006. He has been a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since January 2010
and is currently a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

Senior Management

Mr. Leung Lok Him, aged 37, is the project manager of the Group
and is responsible for overseeing and managing project execution
and operation of the Group.

Mr. Leung has over eight years of experience in the structural
steelwork industry. He first joined the Group in October 2012 until
June 2014 as project engineer. Mr. Leung re-joined the Group in
August 2015 as project engineer and was promoted to his current
position in April 2023.

Mr. Leung obtained a degree of bachelor of engineering in
mechanical engineering from The Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology in April 2010. From October 2010 to October
2012, he worked in Genetron Engineering Company Limited with
his last position as assistant engineer. From June 2014 to July
2015, he worked in Leighton Contractors (Asia) Limited with his last
position as engineer.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company is committed to ensuring high standards of
corporate governance and business practices. The Company’s
corporate governance practices are based on the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix C1 of
the Listing Rules. During the period from the Listing Date up to
date of this report, the Company has complied with the applicable
code provisions of the CG Code and, where applicable, the
recommended best practices of the CG Code.

CULTURE AND CORPORATE STRATEGY

The Group is committed to providing its customers with high-
quality structural steelworks and maximising the interests of its
stakeholders.

The Group intends to pursue the following business strategies:
(i) competing for structural steelwork projects and expanding the
market share; (i) expanding the production capacity of structural
steel; (iii) adhering to prudent financial management to ensure
optimal finance costs and capital sufficiency; and (iv) expanding the
workforce.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules as the required standard
for securities transactions by Directors. All Directors, after specific
enquiries by the Company, confirmed that they have complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code during the period
from the Listing Date up to the date of this annual report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the formulation of business policies
and strategies of the Group, the nomination and appointment of
Directors, and to ensure the availability of resources as well as the
effectiveness of internal control systems of the Group. The senior
management was delegated the authority and responsibilities
by the Board for the day-to-day management and operations
of the Group. In addition, the Board has also established Board
committees and has delegated to these Board committees various
duties and responsibilities as set out in their terms of reference
respectively. Each Director shall ensure that he/she carries out his/
her duty in good faith in compliance with the standard of applicable
laws and regulations, and acts in the interests of the Company and
its shareholders at all times.

Board Composition

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprised eight
Directors, including three executive Directors, two non-executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors. Details of
the Board composition by category are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Kam Kei (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chan Kam Kong

Ms. Chan Suk Man

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chan Wing Hong (Chairman)
Ms. Choi Chick Cheong

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Cha Ho Wa

Mr. Yu Chun Kit

Mr. Liu Chi Kwun Albert

The details of Directors are set out in the section headed “Biography
of Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

The Company is governed by the Board which has the responsibility
for leadership and monitoring of the Company. The Directors are
collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Group by
directing and supervising the Group’s affairs.
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The Company has arranged appropriates liability insurance
in respect of legal action against the Directors. The insurance
coverage will be reviewed on an annual basis.

ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF MEETINGS

The Board sets the strategies and directions for the Group’s
activities with a view to developing its business and enhancing
shareholders’ value. The Board has delegated the daily
operation and day-today management of the Group as well as
the implementation of the Board’s policies and strategies to the
executive Directors and management of the Group.

The Board is scheduled to meet regularly and at least four times
a year, and the Directors will receive at least 14 days prior written
notice of such meetings in compliance with paragraphs C.5.1
and C.5.3 of part 2 of the CG Code. The company secretary of
the Company assists the chairman to prepare the meeting notice
and agenda. Each Director may include any item in the agenda.
The agenda, accompanied by meeting papers with sufficient and
reliable information, are sent to each Director at least 3 days before
each Board meeting or committee meeting to enable the directors
to make informed decisions on the matters to be discussed,
except where a Board meeting or committee meeting is convened
on a very urgent basis to consider any urgent ad hoc matter. The
company secretary is responsible for taking and keeping minutes
of all Board meetings and committee meetings. Additional Board
meetings will be convened, as and when required, to deal with ad
hoc issues. Any Director who is not able to attend physically may
participate at any Board meeting through means of a telephone
or tele-conferencing or any other telecommunications facility, in
accordance with the amended and restated Articles of Association
of the Company.
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During the period from the Listing Date up to 31 December 2024, R EMHHEZE2024F12A31 AR - &
four Board meetings were held and the attendance of each Director AAIBITTURESSEER  MEESEZ
is set out below: HERRsRE T

Board meeting

attended/held

HE BHESSEEAH
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Chan Kam Kei (Chief Executive Officer) BREE LA (TTBAEE) 4/4
Mr. Chan Kam Kong BRET A 4/4
Ms. Chan Suk Man PRI E 2 4/4
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Chan Wing Hong (Chairmar) BRoK B S A () 4/4
Ms. Choi Chick Cheong BEEERT 4/4
Independent non-executive Directors BAFHITES
Mr. Cha Ho Wa BRESLE 4/4
Mr. Yu Chun Kit RIEGESTE 4/4
Mr. Liu Chi Kwun Albert BEELE 4/4

During the period from the Listing Date up to 31 December 2024, R EMBHEZE2024F12 A31HEIAE » A
one general meeting was held and the attendance of each Director is NEBITT—ARERE  MIZESEZ2H
set out below: JEREREYINT ¢

General meeting

attended/held
HE BHERE
RERE
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Chan Kam Kei (Chief Executive Officer) PREE LA (TTBAEE) 1/1
Mr. Chan Kam Kong PREBT A 1/1
Ms. Chan Suk Man BRORELZ+ 11
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. Chan Wing Hong (Chairmar) BRoK B S A (/) 1/
Ms. Choi Chick Cheong EEExT 11
Independent non-executive Directors BUFHMITES
Mr. Cha Ho Wa BRERLE 1/1
Mr. Yu Chun Kit RS 1/1
Mr. Liu Chi Kwun Albert BEBERE 1/1
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APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the Executive Director has entered into a service agreement
for a term of three years with the Company which renewed and
extended automatically upon expiry of the initial term unless
otherwise terminated by either party by giving to the other not less
than three months’ prior written notice. Each of the non-executive
Directors has entered into an appointment letter for a term of one
year with the Company which renewed and extended automatically
upon expiry of the initial term unless otherwise terminated by either
party by giving to the other not less than one month’s prior written
notice. Each of the Independent non-executive Directors has
entered into an appointment letter for a term of one year with the
Company which renewed and extended automatically upon expiry
of the initial term unless otherwise terminated by either party by
giving to the other not less than one month'’s prior written notice. In
accordance with Article 108 of the amended and restated Articles
of Association of the Company, at each annual general meeting
one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire from office
by rotation and re-election. Each Director shall retire from office
at least once every three years. In accordance with Article 112 of
the amended and restated Articles of Association, any Director
appointed by the Board either to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition to the existing Board shall hold office until the following
general meeting (in the case of filling a causal vacancy) or the
next following annual general meeting (in the case of an additional
Director) and shall then be eligible for election.

Board Independence

The Company recognises that Board independence is pivotal in
good corporate governance and Board effectiveness. The following
mechanisms are adopted by the Board to ensure that independent
views and input are available to the Board, and these mechanisms
are reviewed annually by the Board to ensure their effectiveness:

1. The Board must have at least three Independent non-
executive Directors and must appoint Independent non-
executive Directors representing at least one-third of the
Board.
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2. On an annual basis, all Independent non-executive Directors
are required to confirm in writing their compliance of
independence requirements pursuant to the Listing Rules,
and to disclose the number and nature of offices held
by them in public companies or organisations and other
significant commitments.

3. External independent professional advice is available as and
when required by individual Directors.

4.  The chairman of the Board meets with Independent non-
executive Directors annually without the presence of the
executive Directors.

The Board considered that the above mechanisms were effective
since the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report.

The Company has received from each of the Independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of their independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considered that
the Independent non-executive Directors to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in the Listing
Rules. Upon the recommendation of the Nomination Committee,
the Board considers all independent non-executive Directors to be
independent in light of the independence guidelines set out in the
said Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

To ensure that the Directors’ contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant and in compliance with paragraph C.1.4
of part 2 of the CG Code, the Company would arrange and fund
suitable continuous professional development for the Directors to
participate in order to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. The training each Director received during the year ended 31
December 2024 is summarised as below:
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Attending seminars/
in house workshops Reading newspapers,
relevant to the journals and

Group’s business, other relevant materials

Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Chan Kam Kei PREE KA (TTRAES)
(Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Chan Kam Kong PRET o

Ms. Chan Suk Man BRIREZ+

Non-executive Directors FHITES

Mr. Chan Wing Hong (Chairman) BROKBR 4 (/)

Ms. Choi Chick Cheong BHEET

Independent non-executive BIYFBTES
Directors

Mr. Cha Ho Wa RS A

Mr. Yu Chun Kit RIEHEEE

Mr. Liu Chi Kwun Albert BEERE
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BOARD AND WORKFORCE DIVERSITY

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) which sets out the approach of which the Board
could achieve a higher level of diversity. The Company recognises
the benefits of having a diversified Board. In summary, the board
diversity policy sets out that when considering the nomination and
appointment of a director, with the assistance of the nomination
committee, the Board would consider a number of factors,
including but not limited to the skills, knowledge, professional
experience and qualifications, cultural and educational background,
age, gender and diversity of perspectives that the candidate is
expected to bring to the Board and what would be the candidate’s
potential contributions, in order to better serves the needs and
development of the Company. The board diversity policy also
seeks to attract, retain and motivate the Directors and other staff
from the widest pool of available talent. All Board appointments
will be based on merits and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard to the benefits of diversity on
the Board.

From the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report, the
Board had two female Board members (i.e. Ms. Chan Suk Man
and Ms. Choi Chick Cheong), in which case the Board considered
gender diversity of the Board has been achieved.

The Group strictly adheres to fair and appropriate employment
practices and labour standards. With an anti-discriminatory and
equal-opportunity policy in place, the Group provides job applicant
and employees with equal opportunities of employment and
promotion, and prohibits all forms of discrimination on gender,
religion, race, disability or age. As at 31 December 2024, 15 out
of 137 employees (including senior management) of the Group
were female, representing approximately 10.9%. The Group target
to maintain the percentage of female employees in the Group’s
workforce of no less than 10% in the next three years.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three board committees, namely
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee with terms of reference to assist them in the
efficient implementation of their functions.

Audit Committee

The Company established an audit committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with Rule 3.22 of the Listing Rules and
paragraph D.3.3 of part 2 of the Corporate Governance Code set
out in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules pursuant to a resolution of
the Directors passed on 5 February 2024. The primary duties of
the audit committee are, among others, to make recommendations
to the Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal
of external auditor, review the financial statements and material
advice in respect of financial reporting, oversee the financial
reporting process, internal control, risk management systems
and audit process of the Company and perform other duties and
responsibilities assigned by the Board.

At present, the audit committee comprises Mr. Yu Chun Kit, Mr.
Cha Ho Wa and Mr. Liu Chi Kwun Albert, all being the independent
non-executive Directors. Mr. Yu Chun Kit is the chairperson of the
audit committee.

Meetings of the Audit Committee shall be held not less than twice a
year. Details of the authority and duties of Audit Committee are set
out in the Audit Committee’s terms of reference which are available
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and of the Company.
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The following is a summary of the work performed by the Audit
Committee during the period from the Listing Date up to 31
December 2024

= reviewed the unaudited consolidated interim financial
statements for the six months ended 30 June 2024, the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2023, and the annual results announcement
and the annual report for the year ended 31 December
2023, the interim results announcement and the interim
report for the six months ended 30 June 2024, the related
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group,
the report from the management on the Company’s review
of the risk management and internal control systems, and
recommendation of the appointment and re-appointment of
the external auditor;

- reviewed the effectiveness and performance of the
Company’s financial reporting system, risk management and
internal control systems;

- reviewed the nature and scope of the non-audit services
provided or to be provided by external auditor and assessed
the respective implication on the auditor’s independence; and

- reviewed the report communicated by the external auditor for
matters including the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee regarding the appointment of external auditor.

During the period from the the Listing Date up to 31 December
2024, three Audit Committee meetings were held and the
attendance of each committee member is set out below:

Independent non-executive Directors BIUFHTES
Mr. Cha Ho Wa BRESE
Mr. Yu Chun Kit RIEGESEE
Mr. Liu Chi Kwun Albert BEELE
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established a remuneration committee on 5 February
2024 with written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.26
of the Listing Rules and paragraph E.1.2 of part 2 of the Corporate
Governance Code set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules.
The primary duties of the remuneration committee are to review
and approve the management’s remuneration proposals, make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration package of the
Directors and senior management and ensure none of the Directors
determine their own remuneration.

At present, the remuneration committee comprises Mr. Cha Ho
Wa and Mr. Yu Chun Kit, being the independent non-executive
Directors, and Mr. Chan Kam Kei, being an executive Director. Mr.
Cha Ho Wa is the chairperson of the remuneration committee.

Meetings of the Remuneration Committee shall be held at least
once a year. Details of the authority and duties of Remuneration
Committee are set out in the Remuneration Committee’s terms
of reference which are available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

The following is a summary of the work performed by the
Remuneration Committee during the period from the Listing Date
up to 31 December 2024

- reviewed the remuneration of the Directors and senior
management; and

- made recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
individual Directors and senior management.

Details of the Directors’ remuneration in the Group and the five

highest paid individuals are set out in note 9 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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During the period from the Listing Date up to 31 December
2024, one Remuneration Committee meeting was held and the
attendance of each committee member is set out below:

Executive Director HITEE

Mr. Chan Kam Kei PREEE ST A
Independent non-executive Directors BUFHTES
Mr. Cha Ho Wa BRRES A

Mr. Yu Chun Kit RIEHFEE

Pursuant to paragraph E.1.5 of part 2 of the CG Code, the
remuneration paid to the members of the senior management
(excluding Directors) by band during the year ended 31 December
2024 is set out below:

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z£%1,000,000/% 7T

Remuneration Policy of the Directors

Quality and committed staff are valuable assets contributing to
the Group’s success. To ensure the ability to attract and retain
talents, the Group’s remuneration policy of the Directors is built
upon the principles of providing equitable and market-competitive
remuneration package that support the performance culture and
enable the achievement of strategic business goals. The Group’s
remuneration policy of Directors is, therefore, aiming at providing
competitive but not excessive remuneration package to the
Directors.

The Directors’ remuneration comprises fixed salary or service fee
and variable components (such as bonus and share options),
which is benchmarked against companies of comparable
business or scale with reference to a mix of factors such as the
prevailing market condition, the Company’s performance and the
qualifications, skills, experience and educational background of the
Directors.
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Nomination Committee

The Company established a nomination committee on 5
February 2024 with written terms of reference in compliance with
paragraph B.3.1 of part 2 of the Corporate Governance Code
set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules. The primary duties
of the nomination committee are, among others, to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board, and select or make
recommendations on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships.

At present, the nomination committee comprises Mr. Yu Chun Kit
and Mr. Liu Chi Kwun Albert, being the independent non-executive
Directors, and Mr. Chan Kam Kei, being an executive Director. Mr.
Chan Kam Kei is the chairperson of the nomination committee.

Meetings of the Nomination Committee shall be held at least once
a year. Details of the authority and duties of Nomination Committee
are set out in the Nomination Committee’s terms of reference
which are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

The following is a summary of the work performed by the
Nomination Committee during the period from the Listing Date up
to 31 December 2024:

- reviewed the board diversity policy; and

- reviewed the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors.
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During the period from the Listing Date up to 31 December 2024,
one Nomination Committee meeting was held and the attendance
of each committee member is set out below:

Executive Director HITEE

Mr. Chan Kam Kei PREAE AL
Independent non-executive Directors BUFHTES
Mr. Yu Chun Kit RIEGESEE
Mr. Liu Chi Kwun Albert BEELE

Nomination Policy

The Company has adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) which sets out the approach and procedures the Board
adopts for the nomination and selection of Directors, including
the appointment of additional Directors, replacement of Directors,
and re-election of Directors. The Nomination Committee has
been delegated with the overall responsibility for implementation,
monitoring and periodic review of the policy, and the summary of
which is set out below:

Nomination Criteria

In evaluating and selecting any candidate for the directorship,
the following criteria would be considered by the Nomination
Committee and the Board:

- the candidate’s character and integrity;

= the candidate’s qualifications including professional
qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience, and diversity
aspects under the Board Diversity Policy that are relevant to
the Company’s business and corporate strategy;

- any measurable objectives adopted for achieving diversity on
the Board;

= for independent non-executive Directors, whether the
candidate would be considered independent with reference
to the independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules;
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- any potential contributions the candidate can bring to
the Board in terms of qualifications, skills, experience,
independence and gender diversity;

— willingness and ability of the candidate to devote adequate
time to discharge duties as a member of the Board and/or
Board committee(s) of the Company; and

- such other perspectives that are appropriate to the
Company’s business and succession plan and where
applicable may be adopted and/or amended by the Board
and/or the Nomination Committee from time to time for
nomination of directors and succession planning.

Nomination Procedures

The Company has put in place the following director nomination
procedures:

Appointment of New and Replacement Directors

(i) If the Board determines that an additional or replacement
Director is required, it will deploy multiple channels for
identifying suitable Director candidates, including referral
from Directors, shareholders, management, advisors of the
Company and external executive search firms.

(i)  Upon compilation and interview of the list of potential
candidates, the Nomination Committee will shortlist
candidates for consideration by the Nomination Committee
and/or the Board based on the selection criteria and such
other factors that it considers appropriate. The Board has the
final authority on determining suitable Director candidate for
appointment.
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Re-election of Directors and Nomination from Shareholders

(i) Where a retiring Director, being eligible, offers himself for
reelection, the Nomination Committee and/or the Board
shall consider and, if consider appropriate, recommend such
retiring Director to stand for re-election at a general meeting.
A circular containing the requisite information on such
retiring Director will be sent to shareholders prior to a general
meeting in accordance with the Listing Rules.

(i) Any shareholder of the Company who wishes to nominate a
person to stand for election as a Director at a general meeting
must lodge with the company secretary of the Company
within the lodgement period specified in the relevant
shareholder circular (a) a written nomination of the candidate,
(b) written confirmation from such nominated candidate of
his willingness to stand for election, and (c) biographical
details of such nominated candidate as required under the
Listing Rules. Particulars of the candidate so proposed will be
sent to all shareholders for information by a supplementary
circular.

ANTI-CORRUPTION POLICY AND WHISTLEBLOWING
POLICY

The policies of Anti-corruption and whistleblowing policy are
contained in the section headed “Anti-corruption” on page 104 in
this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for performing and has performed in
compliance with the corporate governance duties as set out in
the CG Code which includes develop and review the Group’s
policies and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board; review and monitor the training
and continuous professional development of the Directors and
senior management; review and monitor the Group’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors; and review
the Group’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Group in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong. The statement by the auditor of the
Company about their responsibilities for the financial statements is
set out in the independent auditor’s report contained in this annual
report. There are no material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt of the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
The remuneration paid and payable for the year ended
31 December 2024 to the Company’s external auditor,

PricewaterhouseCoopers, is set out as follows:

Services rendered to the Group

m A B AR

Audit services FET AR

Services in connection with the Listing 28 |- AR R HY AR 7%
Non-audit services IEEET AR
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COMPLIANCE ADVISER

The Company has appointed Grande Capital Limited as the
compliance adviser pursuant to Rule 3A.19 of the Listing Rules for
the term commencing on the Listing Date and ending on the date
on which the Company publishes annual report in respect of the
financial results for the first full financial year commencing after the
Listing Date. Such appointment may be subject to extension by
mutual agreement.

Pursuant to Rule 3A.23 of the Listing Rules, the Company shall
seek advice from the compliance adviser on a timely basis in the
following circumstances:

- before the publication of any regulatory announcement,
circular or financial report;

- where a transaction, which might be a notifiable or connected
transaction, is contemplated, including share issues, sales or
transfers of treasury shares and share repurchases;

- where the Company proposes to use the proceeds of the
Share Offer in a manner different from that detailed in the
Prospectus or where the business activities, developments or
results of the Company deviate from any forecast, estimate,
or other information in the Prospectus; and

= where the Stock Exchange makes an inquiry of the Company
regarding unusual movements in the price or trading volume
of the Shares.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining an adequate
system of internal controls and risk management of the Company
and for reviewing its effectiveness. The Board is committed to
implementing an effective and sound internal control and risk
management systems to safeguard the interest of shareholders
and the Group’s assets. The Board has reviewed the effectiveness
of the internal control and risk management systems of the Group
through Audit Committee. The Audit Committee assists the Board
in the review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems on an ongoing basis. The Directors
through the Audit Committee are kept informed of significant risks
that may impact on the Group’s performance.
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The Audit Committee has received the risk management and
internal control evaluation reports prepared by the external internal
control review consultant. The reports summarised information
relating to the work carried out in the following areas:

1. the results of selective testing of internal control procedures,
operation, and the financial records of the Company;

2. ageneral evaluation of risk management and internal control
systems installed by the Company; and

3.  an outline of major control issues, if any, noticed during the
year under review.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the reports and discussed
with the management of the Company. The Audit Committee
acknowledged that the management of the Company has
been progressively implementing adequate and effective risk
management and internal control systems in order to ensure the
effective functioning of the Company’s operations. The Board is
therefore of the view that the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group are effective and adequate. The review on
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group
would be done on an annual basis. Although, the Group does not
yet have an internal audit function having considered the complexity
of the Group’s operation, the Board considers that the review on
the risk management and internal control systems by the Audit
Committee and the Board on a regular basis as well as engaging
external internal control review consultant to review the adequacy
and effectiveness of the Group’s internal control systems would be
sufficient to ensure the effective operation of the Group. The Audit
Committee and the Board will continue to review the need for an
internal audit function on an annual basis.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Tam Hon Fai is the company secretary of the Company. Mr.
Tam Hon Fai has confirmed that he has undertaken no less than
15 hours of relevant professional training during the year ended
31 December 2024 in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules. The biographical details of Mr. Tam are set out in the section
headed “Biography of Directors and Senior Management” of this
annual report.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting

The following procedures for shareholders of the Company to
convene an extraordinary general meeting (the “EGM”) of the
Company are prepared in accordance with Article 64 of the
amended and restated Articles of Association of the Company:

1. One or more shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of
the requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company having the right of voting at general meetings
may, by written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary of the Company require an EGM to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition.

2. The EGM shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of
such requisition.

If the Directors fail to proceed to convene such meeting within
21 days of such deposit of requisition, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

Procedures for raising enquires

1. Shareholders should direct their enquires about their
shareholdings to the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong by post to 2103B, 21st Floor, 148 Electric Road,
North Point, Hong Kong.

2. Shareholders may raise questions, request for publicly
available information and provide comments and suggestion
to the Directors and management of the Company and can
be addressed to the Company by post to Room 1510-1511,
15th Floor, Fortune Commercial Building, 362 Sha Tsui Road
Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong.

3. Shareholders are reminded to lodge their questions together
with their detailed contact information for the prompt
response from the Company if it deems appropriate.
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Procedures and contact details for putting forward proposals
at shareholders’ meetings

1. To put forward proposals at the general meeting of the
Company, a shareholder should lodge a written notice of his/
her/its proposal (“Proposal”) with his/her/its detailed contact
information at the Company’s principal place of business at
Room 1510-1511, 15th Floor, Fortune Commercial Building,
362 Sha Tsui Road Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong
for the attention of the Board or the Company Secretary of
the Company.

2. The identity of the shareholder and his/her/its request will
be verified with the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong and upon confirmation by the branch share
registrar that the request is proper and in order and made
by a shareholder, the Board will include the Proposal in the
agenda for the general meeting.

3.  The notice period to be given to all the shareholders for
consideration of the Proposal raised by the shareholders
concerned at the annual general meeting or an EGM varies
according to the nature of the Proposal as follows: (i) At least
21 days’ notice in writing if the Proposal constitutes a special
resolution of the Company in an EGM or if the Proposal is put
forward at an annual general meeting of the Company; or (i)
At least 14 days’ notice in writing if the Proposal constitutes
an ordinary resolution of the Company at an EGM.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investors’ understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Company also recognises the importance of
transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information, which
will enable shareholders and investors to make the best investment
decisions.
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The Company considers that effective communication with its
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Company endeavours to maintain an on-
going dialogue with its shareholders and in particular, through
annual general meetings and other general meetings, issuing to its
shareholders corporate communications such as interim results and
annual results, financial reports, announcements and circulars in
accordance with the amended and restated Articles of Association
and the Listing Rules. Shareholders may make enquiries with
the Company through channels of the Company’s website
at www.wing-kei.com.hk and provide comments and
recommendations to the Directors. Upon receipt of enquiries from
shareholders, the Company will respond as soon as practicable.

Please refer to the website of dissemination of corporate
communications and the request form for printed copies of the
annual reports, interim reports and circulars. Shareholders are
encouraged to provide their up-to-date contact details (including
electronic contact details) to the branch share registrar of the
Company in order to facilitate timely and effective communications.

The annual general meeting provides a platform for communication
between the Board and the shareholders. The Chairman of
the Board as well as the chairmen of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee or, in
their absence, other members of the respective committees, are
available to answer questions at shareholders’ meeting.

In view of the above shareholders’ communication means and
measures adopted by the Company, the Board is of the view that
the shareholders’ communication policy was sufficient and effective
and will review regularly.

During the period from the Listing Date up to 31 December 2024,
there was no change to the amended and restated Articles of
Association and other constitutional documents of the Company.
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Report of the Directors EE& k4%

The Directors present the annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2024.

CORPORATE REORGANISATION AND SHARE OFFER

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability on 28 June 2023.

Pursuant to a reorganisation scheme (the “Reorganisation”) to
rationalise the structure of the Group in preparation for the Listing,
the Company became the holding company of the companies
now comprising the Group on 21 July 2023. Details of the
Reorganisation are set out in section headed “History, Development
and Reorganisation” in the Prospectus.

The Shares were listed on the Stock Exchange on 8 March 2024
(the “Listing Date”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in
Note 29 to the consolidated financial statements. There were no
significant changes to the Group’s principal activities during the
year ended 31 December 2024.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024 are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on
page 123.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2024, revenue contributed
by the largest and the top five customers of the Group accounted
for approximately 55.4% (2023: approximately 51.3%) and
approximately 86.7% (2023: approximately 95.8%) of the Group’s
total revenue, respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group’s cost of
services from the largest and the top five suppliers accounted
for approximately 15.4% (2023: approximately 29.6%) and
approximately 45.0% (2023: approximately 59.3%) of the Group’s
total cost of services, respectively.
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Report of the Directors EE 2%

To the best of the knowledge of the Directors, none of the
Directors, their respective close associates or any shareholder
of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns
more than 5% of the issued shares (excluding treasury shares)
of the Company), had any interest in any of the Group’s top five
customers or suppliers.

EMPLOYEES

The Group maintained a good relationship with its employees.
The Group has not experienced any significant problems with
its employees or any disruption to the operations due to labour
disputes nor have the Group experienced any material difficulties
in the recruitment and retention of experienced core staff or skilled
personnel during the year ended 31 December 2024. There has
not been any trade union set up for the Group’s employees.

RELATIONSHIP WITH CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Customers

The Group has maintained good relationships with its major
customers. The Group values the relationships with its customers as
it believes that maintaining good relationships with them is crucial
to the success of the business. The long-term working relationship
can help the Group to understand the demands of its customers
in a timely manner and also increase its visibility in the structural
steelwork in Hong Kong. The Directors consider that maintaining
good relationships with its customers would increase the chance of
being invited to tender or quote for the forthcoming projects, which
is conducive to securing a steady stream of projects for the Group.
The Group strives to monitor manpower, machinery and material
distribution in all projects in response to the customers’ demands.
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Suppliers and subcontractors

The Group has established stable business relationships with its
suppliers and subcontractors which is essential to the smooth
operation of the Group’s business, as the Directors consider that
timely delivery of materials and provision of labour assistance
can enable the Group to meet the schedules of its customers.
The Group has also maintained a list of approved suppliers and
subcontractors which is periodically reviewed and updated based
on the internal assessment of their performance, to ensure that all
works performed by the suppliers and subcontractors satisfy the
requirements of the relevant contract.

RESULTS/BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group as well as discussion and
analysis of the Group’s performance during the year and the
material factors underlying its financial performance and financial
position are set out in the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” of this annual report. The discussion and analysis
therein form an integral part of this report of the Directors.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT
The future development of the Group’s business is set out in the

paragraph headed “Chairman’s Statement — Prospects” of this
annual report.
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Report of the Directors EE 2%

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2024, as far as the Directors
are aware, the Company did not have any non-compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations that is material or systemic in nature.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

As a contractor specialising in structural steelwork, the Group
values environmental sustainability and has been striving to
integrate the concept into every part of the daily business
operations. The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s
environmental, social and governance strategy and reporting.
The Board is responsible for the Group’s ESG risk management
and internal control systems to ensure that the ESG strategies
and reporting requirements are met. Discussion on the Group’s
environmental policies and performances are set out in the section
headed “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of this
annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2024 are set out in Note 23 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2024 are set out in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 126 and
Note 28 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
As at 31 December 2024, the Company had distributable

reserves of approximately HK$88.2 million in accordance with the
Companies Law (as revised) of the Cayman Islands (2023: nil).
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Details of segment reporting are set out in Note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy which aims to set out
the principles and guidelines that the Company intends to apply
in relation to the declaration, payment or distribution of its profits,
realised or unrealised, or from any reserve set aside from profits, as
dividends to the shareholders of the Company. The Board adopted
the dividend policy that, in recommending or declaring dividends,
the Company shall maintain adequate cash reserves for meeting
its working capital requirements and future growth as well as its
shareholder value.

The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend
distribution ratio. The Board has the discretion to declare and
distribute dividends to the shareholders of the Company, subject to
the provisions of the amended and restated Articles of Association
and all applicable laws and regulations and the factors set out
below.

The Board shall also take into account the factors of the Group
when considering the declaration and payment of dividends such
as operations, earnings, financial condition, cash requirements and
availability, capital expenditure, future development requirements,
business conditions and strategies, interests of shareholders, any
restrictions on payment of dividends, and any other factors that the
Board may consider relevant.

Depending on the financial conditions of the Company and the
Group and the conditions and factors as set out above, dividends
may be proposed and/or declared by the Board for a financial year
or period as interim dividend, final dividend, special dividend, and
any distribution of profits that the Board may deem appropriate.
The Company may declare and pay dividends by way of cash or
scrip or by other means that the Board considers appropriate.
Any dividend unclaimed shall be forfeited and shall revert to the
Company in accordance with the amended and restated Articles of
Association.
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DIVIDEND

In January 2024, prior to the capitalisation issue on 8 March
2024 and the Listing, the Company declared an interim dividend
of approximately HK$26.6 million (representing approximately
HK$26.6 million per ordinary Share), of which approximately
HK$10.0 million was settled by cash before the Listing and
approximately HK$16.6 million was offset against the aggregate
amounts due from the Directors and the related company.

During the year ended 31 December 2023 and prior to the
Reorganisation (as defined in the Prospectus), dividends of
HK$20,000,000 were declared and settled by a subsidiary of the
Company to its then shareholders.

The Board resolved not to recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: nil).

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The executive Directors believe that there are certain risks and
uncertainties involved in the operations. Some of the material risks
include:

(i) most of the revenue was derived from projects awarded
by the major customers and any significant decrease in the
number of projects with the major customers may materially
and adversely affect the financial performance;

(i) reduction or termination of public and private sector projects
in Hong Kong may adversely affect the revenue and results of
operations;

(iiy  there is no guarantee that the customers will provide the
Group with new projects; and

(iv)  the projects may not proceed according to the original project
schedule or budget, which may result in delay in recognition
of the revenue and therefore adversely affect the Group’s
cash flows, financial performance and results of operation.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s amended and restated Articles of Association or the
laws of the Cayman lIslands, the jurisdiction in which the Company
was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

TAX RELIEF

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief available to the
shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s
securities.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme (as defined below), the
Company did not enter into any equity-linked agreement during the
period from the Listing Date up to 31 December 2024.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2024 are set out in
Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of subsidiaries of the Company are set out in Note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Information on the corporate governance practices adopted by the

Company are set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance
Report” of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the period from the Listing Date and up to the
date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Kam Kei (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chan Kam Kong

Ms. Chan Suk Man

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chan Wing Hong (Chairman)
Ms. Choi Chick Cheong

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Cha Ho Wa

Mr. Yu Chun Kit

Mr. Liu Chi Kwun Albert

In accordance with Articles 108 and 112 of the amended and
restated Articles of Association, Mr. Chan Kam Kei, Mr. Chan
Kam Kong and Ms. Chan Suk Man will retire by rotation and,
being eligible, will offer themselves for election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. The Company has received annual
confirmations of independence from each of the independent non-
executive Directors required Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Upon
the recommendation of the nomination committee of the Company,
the Board considered all independent non-executive Directors to
be independent. Biographical information of the Directors and the
senior management of the Group are set out in the section headed
“Biography of Directors and Senior Management” of this annual
report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Director has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for an initial fixed term of three years
commencing from the Listing Date. The term of service shall be
renewed and extended automatically by three years on the expiry
of such initial term and on the expiry of every successive period
of three years thereafter, unless terminated by either party thereto
giving at least three months’ written notice of non-renewal before
the expiry of the then existing term.
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Each of the non-executive Directors has entered into an
appointment letter with the Company for an initial fixed term of one
year commencing from the Listing Date. The term of service shall
be renewed and extended automatically by one year on the expiry
of such initial term and on the expiry of every successive period of
one year thereafter, unless terminated by either party thereto giving
at least one month’s written notice of non-renewal before the expiry
of the then existing term.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into
an appointment letter with the Company for an initial fixed term of
one year commencing from the Listing Date. The term of service
shall be renewed and extended automatically by one year on the
expiry of such initial term and on the expiry of every successive
period of one year thereafter, unless terminated by either party
thereto giving at least one month’s written notice of non-renewal
before the expiry of the then existing term.

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has any service agreement
or appointment letter with any member of the Group which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without the payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the amended and restated Articles of Association,
every Director or other officers of the Company shall be indemnified
and secured harmless out of the assets of the Company from
and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they or any of them, their or any of their executors
or administrators, shall or may incur or sustain by reason of any
act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their
duty or supposed duty in their respective offices or trusts, except
such (if any) as they shall incur or sustain through their own fraud or
dishonesty.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has conditionally adopted a share option scheme (the

“Share Option Scheme”) pursuant to the written resolutions of the

then sole Shareholder passed on 5 February 2024.

No awards or options have been granted, agreed to be granted,

exercised, cancelled, forfeited or lapsed under the Share Option

Scheme since the Listing Date up to the date of this annual report.

Summary of terms of the Share Option Scheme

@

®)

Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable
the Group to grant options to the eligible participants as
incentives or rewards for their contributions to the Group
and/or to enable the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre
employees and attract human resources that are valuable to
the Group.

Who may join

The Directors shall, in accordance with the provisions of the
Share Option Scheme and the Listing Rules, be entitled but
shall not be bound at any time within a period of 10 years
commencing from the date of the adoption of the Share
Option Scheme to make an offer to any of the following
classes:

(i) any Directors and employees of the Group (including
persons who are granted options under the Share
Option Scheme as an inducement to enter into
employment contracts with any member of the Group)
(the “Employee Participants”);

(i)  directors and employees of the holding companies,
fellow subsidiaries or associated companies of the
Company (the “Related Entity Participants”); and
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(i) persons who provide services to the Group on a
continuing or recurring basis in its ordinary and usual
course of business which are in the interests of the long
term growth of the Group, which may include persons
who work for the member of the Group as independent
contractors where the continuity and frequency of his/
her service is akin to those of employees (the “Service
Providers”), but excluding any (i) placing agents
or financial advisers providing advisory services for
fundraising, mergers or acquisitions; and (i) professional
service providers such as auditors or valuers who
provide assurance, or are required to perform their
services with impartiality and objectivity.

and, for the purpose of the Share Option Scheme,
the offer for the grant of an option may be made to
any company wholly owned by one or more eligible
participants.

For the avoidance of doubt, the grant of any option by the
Company for the subscription of Shares or other securities
of the Group to any person who falls within any of the above
classes of eligible participants shall not, by itself, unless the
Directors otherwise determine, be construed as a grant of
option under the Share Option Scheme.

The eligibility of any of the eligible participants to an offer
under the Share Option Scheme shall be determined by the
Directors from time to time on the basis of the Directors’
opinion as to such eligible participant’s experience in the
business of the Group, the length of his/her service with the
Group, his/her contribution to the development and growth
of the Group and other factors as the Directors may at their
discretion consider appropriate. In assessing the eligibility
of any Service Provider and whether such Service Provider
provides services on a continuing or recurring basis in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group, the
Directors shall consider all relevant factors as appropriate
from time to time, including (i) the experience of the Service
Provider; (i) the types of services that the Service Provider
had provided to the Group; (i) the period of engagement
of the Service Provider; (iv) the contribution and/or future
contribution of the Service Provider to the development and
growth of the Group.
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(c)  Maximum number of Shares

(i)

(i)

The total number of Shares which may be allotted and
issued in respect of all options to be granted under
the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes and share award schemes of the Group shall
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of
Shares in issue at the time dealings in the Shares first
commence on the Stock Exchange, being 200,000,000
Shares (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”) unless the
Company obtains an approval from our Shareholders
pursuant to paragraphs (i) and (iv) below. The options
which are cancelled or lapsed in accordance with the
terms of the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option scheme(s) or share award scheme(s) of the
Company shall be regarded as utilised for the purpose
of calculating the Scheme Mandate Limit.

Subject to paragraph (i), the total number of Shares
which may be allotted and issued in respect of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option scheme(s) and share award
scheme(s) of the Group to Service Providers shall be
within the Scheme Mandate Limit and must not in
aggregate exceed one (1) per cent of the total number
of Shares in issue at the time dealings in the Shares
first commence on the Stock Exchange (the “Service
Provider Sublimit”) unless the Company obtains
an approval from the shareholders of the Company
pursuant to paragraphs (i) and (iv) below.

Without prejudice to (iv) below, the Company may seek
approval of the Shareholders in a general meeting to
refresh the Scheme Mandate Limit and Service Provider
Sublimit after three years from the approval of the
shareholders of the Company for the adoption of the
Share Option Scheme or the last refreshment.
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(V)

Any refreshment within any three year period must be
approved by the shareholders of the Company subject
to:

(@  any controlling shareholders and their associates
(or if there is no controlling shareholder, Directors
(excluding independent non-executive Directors)
and the chief executive of the Company and their
respective associates) must abstain from voting
in favour of the relevant resolution at the general
meeting; and

(b)  the Company must comply with the requirements
under Rules 13.39(6) and (7), 13.40, 13.41 and
13.42 of the Listing Rules.

The requirements under paragraphs (a) and (b) above
do not apply if the refreshment is made immediately
after an issue of securities by the Company to the
Shareholders on a pro rata basis as set out in Rule
138.36(2)(a) of the Listing Rules such that the unused
part of the scheme mandate (as a percentage of the
relevant class of shares in issue) upon refreshment is
the same as the unused part of the scheme mandate
immediately before the issue of securities, rounded to
the nearest whole share.

The total number of Shares which may be allotted
and issued upon the exercise of all options to be
granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme and share award schemes
of the Company under the Scheme Mandate Limit as
refreshed shall not exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as
at the date of the approval of the limit.
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(vii  The Company may seek separate Shareholders’
approval in a general meeting to grant options under the
Share Option Scheme beyond the Scheme Mandate
Limit, or if applicable, the extended limit referred to in
(iiiy or (iv) above to eligible participants identified by the
Company before such approval is sought. The number
and terms of options or awards to be granted to such
eligible participants must be fixed before Shareholders’
approval. In respect of any options to be granted, the
date of the board meeting for proposing such grant
should be taken as the date of grant for the purpose of
calculating the subscription price.

Maximum entitlerment of each eligible participant

Subject to (e) below, the total number of Shares issued and
which may fall to be issued upon exercise of any option which
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
option or award which may be granted under any other share
option scheme(s) and share award scheme(s) of the Group
(including both exercised or outstanding options but excluding
any options and awards lapsed in accordance with the terms
of the scheme) to each grantee in any 12-month period up
to and including the date of such grant shall not exceed
1% of the issued share capital of the Company for the time
being (the “1% Individual Limit”). Where any further grant of
options under the Share Option Scheme to a grantee under
the Share Option Scheme would result in the Shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of all options and awards
granted and proposed to be granted to such person (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options but excluding
any options and awards lapsed in accordance with the terms
of the scheme) under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme(s) and share award scheme(s)
of the Group in the 12-month period up to and including
the date of such further grant exceeding the 1% Individual
Limit, such further grant must be separately approved by
the Shareholders in a general meeting of the Company with
such grantee and his close associates (or his associates if
the participant is a connected person) abstaining from voting.
The number and terms of the options to be further granted to
such Grantee must be fixed before Shareholders’ approval.
In respect of any options to be further granted, the date of
the board meeting for proposing such further grant should be
taken as the date of grant for the purpose of calculating the
subscription price.
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(e

Grant of options to core connected persons

(i) Without prejudice to (i) below, the making of an offer
under the Share Option Scheme to any Director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of the Company or
any of their respective associates must be approved by
the independent non-executive Directors (excluding any
independent non-executive Director who is the grantee
of an option under the Share Option Scheme).

(i)  Without prejudice to (i) above, where any grant
of options under the Share Option Scheme to an
independent non-executive Director or a substantial
shareholder or any of their respective associates, would
result in the Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of all options under the Share Option Scheme
already granted and to be granted (including options
exercised, cancelled and outstanding but excluding
any options and awards lapsed in accordance with the
terms of the scheme) to such person in the 12-month
period up to and including the date of such grant
representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the Shares in
issue.

Such further grant of options must be approved by the
Shareholders in a general meeting. The grantee, his/her
associates and all core connected persons of the Company
must abstain from voting in favour at such general meeting.
Any change in the terms of options granted to a participant
who is a Director, chief executive or substantial shareholder
of the Company, or any of their respective associates, must
be approved by the Shareholders in the manner as set out in
this paragraph if the initial grant of the options requires such
approval (except where the changes take effect automatically
under the existing terms of the Share Option Scheme).

For the purpose of seeking the approval from the
Shareholders under paragraphs (c), (d) and (e) above, the
Company must send a circular to the shareholders of the
Company containing the information required under the
Listing Rules and where the Listing Rules shall so require, the
vote at the Shareholders’” meeting convened to obtain the
requisite approval shall be taken on a poll with those persons
required under the Listing Rules abstaining from voting.
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Time of acceptance and exercise of an option

An offer under the Share Option Scheme may remain open
for acceptance by the eligible participants concerned (and by
no other person) for a period of up to 21 days from the date,
which must be a business day, on which the offer is made.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Share Option Scheme at any time during a period to be
determined and notified by the Directors to the grantee but in
any event shall not be more than ten (10) years from the offer
date of that option.

An offer shall have been accepted by an eligible participant
in respect of all Shares which are offered to such eligible
participant when the duplicate letter comprising acceptance
of the offer duly signed by the eligible participant together
with a remittance in favour of the Company of HK$1.00 by
way of consideration for the grant thereof is received by the
Company within such time as may be specified in the offer
(which shall not be later than 21 days from the offer date).
Such remittance shall in no circumstances be refundable.

Any offer may be accepted by an eligible participant in respect
of less than the number of Shares which are offered provided
that it is accepted in respect of a board lot for dealings in
the Shares on the Main Board or an integral multiple thereof
and such number is clearly stated in the duplicate letter
comprising acceptance of the offer duly signed by such
eligible participant and received by the Company together
with a remittance in favour of the Company of HK$1.00 by
way of consideration for the grant thereof within such time
as may be specified in the offer (which shall not be later than
21 days from the offer date). Such remittance shall in no
circumstances be refundable.
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(g) Vesting Period and performance targets

The vesting period for options shall be determined by the
Board and in any case, shall not be less than twelve (12)
months. A shorter vesting period may be granted to an
Employee Participant at the discretion of the Board in the

following circumstances:

(i) grants of “make-whole” options to new joiners to
replace the share awards they forfeited when leaving

the previous employer;

(i)  grants of options to an Employee Participant whose
employment is terminated due to death or disability or

occurrence of any out of control event;

(i)  grants of options with performance-based vesting

conditions in lieu of time-based vesting criteria;

(iv) grants of options that are made in batches during a

year for administrative and compliance reasons;

(v)  grants of options with a mixed or accelerated vesting
schedule such as where the options may vest evenly

over a period of 12 months; and

(vi)  grants of options with a total vesting and holding period

of more than 12 months.

The Board may determine and set any performance targets,
which shall be stated in the offer to the grantee, to be attained
before the exercise of an option granted to the grantee as the
Board may think fit. Such performance targets may include:
(i) aggregate amount of revenue or business generated by
the specific grantee during a financial year; (i) annual growth
on the revenue of the Group as compared to the immediately
preceding financial year; or (i) any measurable performance
benchmark which the Board considers is relevant to the

grantee.
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Subscription price for Shares (h)
The subscription price in respect of any option shall, subject
to any adjustment made pursuant to paragraph(s) below, be
at the discretion of the Directors, provided that it shall not be
less than the highest of:
()  the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for trade in one or
more board lots of the Shares on the offer date;
(i)  the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
Business Days immediately preceding the offer date;
and
(i) the nominal value of a Share.
Remaining life (1)

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of
10 years commencing on the date on which the Share Option
Scheme is adopted.
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RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group joins mandatory provident fund retirement benefit
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance (Cap. 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong) for
those employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme
in Hong Kong. Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the statement
of profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Social welfare expenditure refers to payments for employees’ social
welfare system established by the Government of the People’s
Republic of China, including social pension insurance, health care
insurance, housing funds and other social welfare contributions.
The Group contributes on a monthly basis to these funds based
on certain percentage of the salaries of the employees and the
contributions are recognised in profit or loss for the period when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the contribution.
The Group’s liabilities in respect of these funds are limited to the
contribution payable in the reporting period.

No forfeited contributions (by the Group on behalf of employees
who leave the defined contribution plans prior to vesting fully
in such contributions) can be used by the Group to reduce the
existing level of contributions.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the total amount
contributed by the Group to retirement schemes was approximately
HK$1.7 million (2023: approximately HK$1.5 million).

EMOLUMENTS OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid
individuals of the Group during the years ended 31 December 2024
and 31 December 2023 are set out in Note 9 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2024 have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
reappointment at the upcoming annual general meeting.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There were no material events from the end of the reporting period
and up to the date of this report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

No purchase, sale or redemption of the Company’s listed securities
(including sale of treasury shares) was made by the Company or
any of its subsidiaries during the period from the Listing Date up to
the date of this annual report.

During the year ended and as at 31 December 2024, the Company
did not hold any treasury shares.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in
relation to the Company’s business to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or a
connected entity of a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at 31 December 2024 or at any time
during the year ended 31 December 2024.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS

AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2024, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the Shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO) or which were required, pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein or
which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:
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Long positions in the Shares (a) RERBHEFE
Number
of Shares Percentage of
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interest interested interest
HEERERN
s B RmtE RHEAR EENE DL
Mr. Chan Kam Kei Interest in controlled corporation (Note 1) 1,140,000,000 57%
PREBELA ME AR RS (WAt 1)
Mr. Chan Kam Kong Interest in controlled corporation (Note 1) 1,140,000,000 57%
PRET A RZIEEEER RS (Wit 1)
Ms. Chan Suk Man Interest in controlled corporation (Note 1) 1,140,000,000 57%
BRORELZ+ MEIEE RS (WAt 1)
Mr. Chan Wing Hong Interest in controlled corporation/ 1,140,000,000 57%
Interest of spouse (Notes 7 and 2)
PR B 524 NEIEEE R BB (W 1k2)
Ms. Choi Chick Cheong Interest in controlled corporation/ 1,140,000,000 57%

gEELL

Notes:

Interest of spouse (Notes 1 and 2)

REEEB ORI BEs (W7 1K2)
MEE

1.

As at 31 December 2024, the Company is owned as to 57%
by WK (BVI) Limited. WK (BVI) Limited is beneficially owned as
to 30% by Mr. Chan Kam Kei, 30% by Mr. Chan Kam Kong,
15% by Mr. Chan Wing Hong, 15% by Ms. Choi Chick Cheong
and 10% by Ms. Chan Suk Man. By virtue of the SFO, Mr.
Chan Kam Kei, Mr. Chan Kam Kong, Mr. Chan Wing Hong,
Ms. Choi Chick Cheong and Ms. Chan Suk Man are deemed
to be interested in the same number of Shares held by WK
(BVI) Limited. As disclosed in the Company’s announcement
dated 13 November 2024 (the “Announcement”), WK (BVI)
Limited has entered into a placing agreement on 13 November
2024 with a placing agent (the “Placing Agent”), pursuant to
which the Placing Agent has agreed to procure investor(s) on
a best effort basis to purchase up to 480,000,000 Shares held
by WK (BVI) Limited, representing 24% of the existing issued
share capital of the Company. The placing period commenced
from 13 November 2024, and shall complete no later than 30
June 2025 or such other date(s) as WK (BVI) Limited and the
Placing Agent shall agree in writing. For details, please refer to
the Announcement.

Mr. Chan Wing Hong and Ms. Choi Chick Cheong are
spouses. Under the SFO, Mr. Chan Wing Hong is deemed
to be interested in the same number of Shares in which Ms.
Choi Chick Cheong is interested, and Ms. Choi Chick Cheong
is deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares in
which Mr. Chan Wing Hong is interested.

MN2024%F12 8318 AR FH
WK (BVI) Limited# B 57 %S °
WK (BVI) Limited fAPRZEE £ 4
BRETRA - BRKELE - 8E
ERTERRZEL LRI B
A30% - 30% -~ 15% ~ 15% K&
10% X - REBEESHRBEK
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(b) Long position in the shares of associated corporations

Name of Director

BEEHR

Mr. Chan Kam Kei
PREBESTAE

Mr. Chan Kam Kong
=

Ms. Chan Suk Man
PRI EE 2 &

Mr. Chan Wing Hong
BRoKEESE 4

Ms. Choi Chick Cheong
sEHEEXTL

Name of
associated
corporation

HBEE A

WK (BVI) Limited
WK (BVI) Limited

WK (BVI) Limited
WK (BVI) Limited

WK (BVI) Limited
WK (BVI) Limited

WK (BVI) Limited
WK (BVI) Limited

WK (BVI) Limited
WK (BVI) Limited

Capacity/Nature

of interest
2704
EEME

Beneficial owner

BEmlEBA

Beneficial owner

T A A

‘Hﬂ$}

Beneficial owner

= A A

Jul
m

Beneficial owner

T A A

‘Hﬂ$}

Beneficial owner

BEmlEBA

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, none

of the Directors or chief executive of the Company had any

REEEERONTFE
Number of
Shares held Percentage of
interested interest
HEEERN
FERAEAE EENEDE
30 30%
30 30%
10 10%
15 15%
15 15%
Br ECFTIREEE SN - 2024512 A

318  IBEERARAKRDTERA

interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they are taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in register referred to therein, or which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code of the Listing Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2024, the following persons had interests or
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and entered in
the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of
the SFO were as follows:

Long positions in the Shares

FERRRAQARSD - HEARODKE
BENEERAXE

M2024F12A31H » THIALTRARRA R
MEBEEROTFEBEREESRIBER
BIEEXVERE2 k37 ERAIE® AN A 7] R Bt A P
WERRRARA RIRIRE S &S 105336
BEEZELMZESIABIT ¢

Name of Shareholder

R SR B

WK (BVI) Limited
WK (BVI) Limited

Mr. Chan Kam Kei
PREBATA

Mr. Chan Kam Kong
PRETI&ELE

Ms. Chan Suk Man
PRRE 22+

Mr. Chan Wing Hong

BRoKERSE A

Ms. Choi Chick Cheong

gHEELL

RIRBEFE
Number of
Shares held Percentage of

Capacity/Nature of interest interested interest

HEEREEN
B RRME RO EE ERNEIL
Beneficial owner (Note 1) 1,140,000,000 57%
%ot/ =ON(C i)
Interest in controlled corporation (Notes 1 and 3) 1,140,000,000 57%
MR EB R (it 1R3)
Interest in controlled corporation (Notes 1 and 4) 1,140,000,000 57%
MR EB R (it 1R4)
Interest in controlled corporation (Note 1) 1,140,000,000 57%
RE LB R R (571)
Interest in controlled corporation/ 1,140,000,000 57%

Interest of spouse (Notes 1 and 2)

REEB MR Tl B (it 1Xk2)
Interest in controlled corporation/ 1,140,000,000 57%

Interest of spouse (Notes 1 and 2)

REEE R B (A2 1K2)
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Notes

1. WK (BVI) Limited is beneficially owned as to 30% by Mr. Chan Kam
Kei, 30% by Mr. Chan Kam Kong, 15% by Mr. Chan Wing Hong,
15% by Ms. Choi Chick Cheong and 10% by Ms. Chan Suk Man. By
virtue of the SFO, Mr. Chan Kam Kei, Mr. Chan Kam Kong, Mr. Chan
Wing Hong, Ms. Choi Chick Cheong and Ms. Chan Suk Man are
deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares held by WK
(BVI) Limited.

2. Mr. Chan Wing Hong and Ms. Choi Chick Cheong are spouses.
Under the SFO, Mr. Chan Wing Hong is deemed to be interested
in the same number of Shares in which Ms. Choi Chick Cheong is
interested, and Ms. Choi Chick Cheong is deemed to be interested
in the same number of Shares in which Mr. Chan Wing Hong is
interested.

3. Ms. Tang Wing Yee Jenny is the spouse of Mr. Chan Kam Kei. Under
the SFO, Ms. Tang Wing Yee Jenny is deemed to be interested in the
same number of Shares in which Mr. Chan Kam Kei is interested.

4. Ms. Fong Ying Wah is the spouse of Mr. Chan Kam Kong. Under the
SFO, Ms. Fong Ying Wah is deemed to be interested in the same
number of Shares in which Mr. Chan Kam Kong is interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, the Company
had not been notified by any persons who had interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in
the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of
the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract, other than a contract of service with any Director or
any person in the full-time employment of the Company, concerning
the management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Company was entered into or existed
during the year ended 31 December 2024.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2024 and up to
the date of this report was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as otherwise disclosed, there was no transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance connected to the business
of the Group to which the Company, its subsidiaries, or its holding
company or any of its fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which
any Director or a connected entity of a Director had a direct or
indirect material interest, subsisting at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

As of 31 December 2024, save as otherwise disclosed, no contract
of significance had been entered into between the Company, or
any of its subsidiaries and the Controlling Shareholders (as defined
in the Listing Rules) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2024 and up to the date of
this annual report, none of the Directors or their close associates
(as defined under the Listing Rules) has any interest in a business
which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the business of the Group.

RELATED PARTY AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

To the best knowledge of the Directors, save as disclosed under
Note 27 to the consolidated financial statements, there was no
other related party transaction during the year ended 31 December
2024.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group did not
enter into any connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions which require disclosure under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules in this annual report.
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COMPLIANCE ADVISER’S INTERESTS

As notified by the Company’s compliance adviser, Grande Capital
Limited (the “Compliance Adviser”), as at date of this annual
report, the Compliance Adviser nor its directors, employees or
close associates had any interests in relation to the Company,
which is required to be notified to the Company pursuant to the
Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and to the best knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued shares (excluding treasury shares) was
held by the public during the period from the Listing Date and up to
the date of this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with Rule 3.22 of the Listing Rules and
paragraph D.3.3 of part 2 of the CG Code. The primary duties of
the audit committee are, among others, to make recommendations
to the Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal
of external auditor, review the financial statements and material
advice in respect of financial reporting, oversee the financial
reporting process, internal control, risk management systems
and audit process of the Company and perform other duties and
responsibilities assigned by the Board.

The audit committee comprises Mr. Yu Chun Kit, Mr. Cha Ho
Wa and Mr. Liu Chi Kwun Albert, all being independent non-
executive Directors. Mr. Yu Chun Kit is the chairperson of the audit
committee.

The Audit Committee had reviewed the Group’s annual results
announcement and annual report for the year ended 31 December
2024 and confirmed that they were prepared in accordance with
applicable financial reporting standards and the Listing Rules and
that adequate disclosures have been made.
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PUBLICATION OF ANNUAL RESULTS AND ANNUAL
REPORT

The annual results announcement and the annual report are
published on the Company’s website at www.wing-kei.com.hk and
the Stock Exchange’s website at www.hkexnews.hk. The annual
report of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2024 will
be published on the websites of both the Stock Exchange and the
Company in due course in the manner as required by the Listing
Rules.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The forthcoming Annual General Meeting (2025 AGM”) of the
Company is scheduled be held on 23 June 2025 and the notice
and circular of the 2025 AGM will be published and despatched to
the Shareholders in the manner as required by the Listing Rules in
due course.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

To ascertain the identity of the Shareholders who will be entitled
to attend and vote at the 2025 AGM, the register of members of
the Company will be closed from Wednesday, 18 June 2025 to
Monday, 23 June 2025, both dates inclusive, the period during
which no transfer of Shares will be effected. In order to be eligible
to attend and vote at the 2025 AGM, all completed share transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited, at 2103B, 21/F, 148
Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 17 June 2025.

APPRECIATION

The Board would like to express its sincere gratitude to the
management of the Group and all the staff for their hard work and
dedication, as well as its shareholders, business associates and
other professional parties for their support throughout the period.

To On behalf of the Board

WK Group (Holdings) Limited
Chan Wing Hong

Chairman and Non-executive Director

Hong Kong, 27 March 2025
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INTRODUCTION

WK Group (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”, “we” or “us”) are a structural steelwork
contractor established in 1999. We specialise in the supply,
fabrication and installation of structural steel for construction

projects in Hong Kong.

As a responsible contractor, we recognise that Environmental,
Social and Governance (“ESG”) are integral to our long-term growth
strategy. Accordingly, we are committed to develop sustainable
ESG standards and enhance our operational practices to foster a
corporate culture that aligns with stakeholder expectations.

The Group are pleased to present our annual Environmental, Social
and Governance Report (the “ESG Report”) which outlines the
policies, initiatives and relevant key performance indicators (“KPIs”)
related ESG aspects of our business. This ESG Report is prepared
in compliance with the Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide set forth in Appendix C2 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

Reporting period
This ESG report covers the relevant ESG matters of the Group

during the period from 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024. (the
“Reporting Period” or “FY2024").
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Reporting boundary

This ESG Report mainly outlines the ESG activities in relation to
the fabrication processes in our production facilities in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”) and the installation processes for
construction projects in Hong Kong. Unless explicitly stated, the
ESG data presented in this ESG report covers the Company, and
the major operating subsidiaries of the Company, including Wing
Kei Structural Metalworks Company Limited and Dongguan Yongji
Metal Component Manufacturing Co., Ltd..*! (BREEx &4 EE 5
ERRAT).

Reporting principles

This ESG Report has been prepared based on the following
reporting principles.

Materiality: The Group undertook materiality assessment to
ensure this ESG Report addresses concerns from stakeholders.
For details of the assessment, please refer to the section headed
“Materiality assessment” in this ESG Report.

Quantitative: To ensure stakeholders can have a better
understanding of this ESG report, all methodologies, assumptions,
and source of conversion factor used to calculate the relevant KPIs
are disclosed in respective sections in the ESG report.

Balance: This ESG Report is prepared on an objective and
unbiased manner to ensure that the information provided reflects
the true picture of the Group’s performance.

Consistency: Unless stated otherwise, the ESG Report uses
consistent methodologies to calculate relevant KPIs for meaningful
comparisons.

' The English translation of the PRC subsidiary is for identification purpose
only. To the extent that there is any inconsistency between the Chinese
name of the PRC subsidiary, the Chinese names shall prevail.
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ESG governance structure

Our board of directors (the “Board”) holds the overall responsibility
to oversee ESG-related matters of the Group. The Board is
principally responsible for (i) overseeing the formulation and
reporting of our ESG direction and strategies; (i) determining our
ESG-related risks; (iii) establishing and adopting the ESG policy
and targets of our Group; (iv) ensuring that ESG considerations
are taken into consideration during the business decision-making
process; (v) monitoring and reviewing our ESG performance; and
(vi) revising the ESG strategies as appropriate if significant variance
from the target is identified.

Our ESG committee, comprising our directors and senior
management, will support our Board in implementing the ESG
policy, targets and strategies, conducting materiality assessments
of material ESG and climate-related risks and assessing how our
Group adapts its business in light of climate change, collecting
ESG data from different parties while preparing for the ESG report,
and continuous monitoring of the implementation of measures to
address our Group’s ESG-related risks and responsibilities. The
ESG committee is also responsible for the investigation of deviation
from targets and making recommendation on rectification actions.
The ESG committee will report to our Board regularly on the
ESG performance of our Group and the effectiveness of our ESG
system.
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Stakeholder engagement

Listening to stakeholders is one vital means in assisting the Group
to identify and balance risks from diverse perspectives, this enables
us to formulate policies and set corporate goals. We remain attuned
to stakeholder expectations through a variety of communication
channels. Below sets forth the channels used for communication
with respective stakeholder groups.

Stakeholder group Communication channel

Community groups e (Corporate website
e |ndustrial dinner
e Corporate social responsibility
activities

Customers e Customer satisfactory surveys
e Project meeting

Employees e Annual appraisal
e Training
e Internal announcement

Investors/Shareholders e (General meeting
e Annual and interim reports
e Circular/announcement
e Corporate website

Regulators and government e Regular reporting
agencies e Meetings and consultations
Suppliers/Sub-contractors e Project meeting

e Supplier assessment
e Site visiting

FtrE2R
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Materiality assessment

The Group conducted a materiality assessment to identify ESG
topics that are material to us, from which we can prioritise ESG
aspects and strategise our action plan. In assessing the materiality
of identified ESG issues, we take both internal and external
materiality assessments into account. The assessment analysis
the likelihood and frequency of the occurrence of the relevant ESG
issues and evaluates the impact to our business and stakeholders.

Based on the feedback from stakeholders, we identified 9 critical
issues which were derived from a list of 18 relevant ESG issues.
The Group has constructed a materiality matrix as depicted below.
The materiality matrix highlights issues of significance from the
perspective of stakeholders and the Group’s businesses with

ERMME
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1 Air emission L’\’ 10 Prevention of child labor and forced labor &
BERBERX 7 B7ibE T Roghlss T

2 Noise pollution L’\ 11 Production and work sites safety
=SSR S ’ SERIEMERTS

3 Wastes management L’} 12 Development and training ‘%
EEWETR R RIEFI

4 Energy and resources management L’\’ 18 Quality assurance o
BEIRRERER 7 BERE

5 Natural resource management L’; 14 Protection of intellectual property rights o
RABERER RAERHBERE

6 Climate change L’} 15 Data protection O
RIREL BRMRE

7 Talent retention g g 16 Anti-corruption o
ATBE R&S

8 Discrimination and equal opportunity g g 17 Supply chain mangement o
B8 RS e HrEgEER

9 Employee compensation system s 2 18 Community investment @
& BB HIE HEKRE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION BRIBRE

According to the China Steel Construction Society, the production
process of steel structures is 3% more energy-efficient and emit
10% less carbon dioxide than the production process of concrete
structures. Moreover, during the construction process, steel
structures are more eco-friendly than concrete structures with
energy savings of 13% and a reduction in carbon dioxide emissions
of 15%.

In addition, once steel structures reach the end of their lifespan
or usage, the steel materials can be dismantled, collected, and
remelted to manufacture new products. Recycling steel requires
only a fraction of the energy needed to produce new steel from raw
materials. As such, steel recycling has significant environmental
benefits like reducing landfill waste, lowering emissions from mining
and manufacturing operations, and conserving natural resources
required for new steel production.

Driven by the increasing awareness of eco-friendliness and
sustainable property development by property developers and
construction contractors, structural steelwork has been increasingly
used for construction in Hong Kong. As part of the decarbonized
journey, our Group will continuously monitor our activities to ensure
alignment with environmental goals and community well-being.

RETEMEEHENEN  ERERLTE
B MAEBNRERRERI% - £ER
B S EHRBEE R A 10% o tEoh - 8l
RRERETAETFERRLIEBERRE
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Air emissions

Our structural steelworks encompass the fabrication process in
our production facilities in PRC and the installation process in
Hong Kong. During the fabrication process, we perform a range
of activities, including cutting, assembling, welding, polishing,
galvanising and lifting to produce our final structural steel products.
These processes heavily rely on machinery and equipment
powered by electricity and fuel combustion. As such, our emissions
are closely tied to these sources. Additionally, general activities
associated with our daily operations will also generate emissions.
They include usage of electricity from our offices and production
facilities, fuels consumed from motor vehicles for travelling between
construction sites, and paper usage for general documentation.

BESRBERR

BFMMEE T ReEERPRENEERE
MEEBRREREENLZRBIE - NEEBR
B BHPETRERDUAEERRER
WEm  BYRE - KA RE -
EHLBE - ZFBESERBAENR
KAEHRGE BB D =s B R A - Bt - TR
PIEVHE R B 5 B R B VAR RE = BEoh
HERMEFEERBN - REBTEELE
B BENAEREERERE &
FREEM AR 2 A B) B 8 h TP RE AV A Y
PA R — RSP D AROR

Unit 2024 2023
By 20244 20234
Vehicles emissions B HER
NO, emissions? R HPERe kg T3 - =
SO, emissions ma B kgT 5% 0.71 0.60
PM emissions? BERIBERC kgT 5 - -
Greenhouse gas (‘GHG”) BERE(CAZERE)
emission in CO,e e A =&k
BEFE)
Scope 1 - Direct emissions #E1 — RN
Mobile combustion sources BERER tonneslif 123.16 103.13
Scope 2 - “Energy Indirect” #E2 — REREEHE
emissions HNEEE A8
Electricity purchased? tonnesMi 1,003.61 929.75
Scope 3 - Other indirect emissions ~ &3[E3 — E 4 EHEEHEM
Paper waste R tonneslif 11.40 7.58
Total GHG emission RERBHNESE tonnesia 1,138.17 1,040.46
Intensity BE tonnes per million 2.87 2.81

HK$ revenue

W/ SREBTEA

? Emissions data for NO, and PM are not available for this Reporting Period

as the underlying data for the calculation of these emissions cannot be

retrieved.

¢ The emission factor used for the calculation of GHG emissions

for electricity purchased in Hong Kong is available from the latest

sustainability report published by the CLP Power Hong Kong Limited. The

national emission factor for Mainland China is available form The Ministry

of Ecology and Environment of People’s Republic China (2019).
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By using the year 2022 as a baseline year, we will make continuous
efforts in working towards the target of reducing the GHG emissions
intensity by 3% before 2025. However, during the Reporting Period,
the increase in vehicle emissions and direct emissions of GHG were
mainly due to higher usage of passenger vehicles. Meanwhile, the
overall indirect emissions of GHG were mainly due to an increase
in usage of resources for our manufacturing activities, which are in
line with our business growth in Year 2024.

With the aim to minimise air emissions in our operations, we have
adopted and implemented the following measures:

° encouraging our employees to switch off idling engines when
the lifting machines, cranes or motor vehicles are not in use;

° promoting and adopting the use of energy-saving and
efficient equipment, and switching off machinery and
electronic appliances when they are not in use;

° cleaning the fan blades of the ventilation system at our
production facilities in the PRC regularly and maintaining the
equipment for filtering dust and smoke regularly to ensure its
normal operation;

° promoting e-office practices and measures, such as
switching off electronic appliances when they are not in use;
and

° our environmental management plan provides air pollution
abatement guidelines and measures, which include (i)
ensuring the concentration and rates of air pollutants are in
compliance with the relevant environmental protection laws
and regulations; and (i) conducting periodic checks to ensure
the GHG emission of lifting machines, cranes and motor
vehicles is within the standard level as prescribed by law.

2022F BEREFE - RAKEES
FIR20265F Z I BIRASA = REBHHE
BIRE3%H B AR - R - RIEHA - &
WM ENMNRERBERNELNER
ERNRAENEAERMN o &R
BERENAEBRZENEZARRMN
SLEEBHERAOE AL - EHFI2024
FREBIER - -

ARERBIVEEFHERIENR  BMER
B REA TS :

s HBEEETEAEEE  BHIT
BRERRESIE

o HEEMRBAHENSRERE AR
%Tﬁ%m% SER

o  EHFEAPRLEEREHNBREZRLR
X WEHGEERRRBRE A
RECIEHIRIE

. ﬁﬁ*%ﬁ&iﬁ%&%%'mm%
PME R E 25

e  BMHERREBEEFERTERIERS
PIES| RFETE - BIE()ERZERISE
MERE R EFEEERREER
ERR R (i) AR B AR BB -
MR ABENRERBHRFE AR
T RIRAEKE o
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Waste

During fabrication, we may generate waste materials. These
wastes are mainly cutoff pieces of steels resulted from differences
in material sizes and the dimensions required for the working
structure. To address this, our project team meticulously reviews
the specifications of each structural project and strategically
purchase materials of the most suitable size, thereby minimising
excessive cutoff pieces. Moreover, we actively arrange recycling of
any surplus steel materials to prevent them ending up in landfills.

Other non-hazardous wastes generated from our Group’s general
operations mainly includes domestic waste and paper consumed in
our offices and production facilities. Due to our business nature and
to the best knowledge of our executive directors, our Group did not
generate hazardous waste during our operation.

With the aim of minimising the environmental impacts from non-
hazardous wastes generated from our general operations,
our Group has implemented the following measures in waste
management and launched different wastes reduction initiatives:

° providing recycling bins for different types of waste streams
to promote recycling;

° promoting the use of electronic media for communication and
reducing the use of paper;

° promoting reusing paper by placing a collection box for
single-sided used paper next to each printer; and

° encouraging our employees to use double sided printing or

B

REGEREF - RPIAJEEELEEMH
ZEBREYIEZ /MR T R T &R
FRINZZELENMY DEE - BEY
HEE - HPNEEEFeFAREEE
EBIEE RS YERBBRER TR
BEOME - KMBERDREBZHL]
B o Bbsh - FRAPIRERR 22 B B U A ¥
IR MR F MM AR

AEE-REEEENEGBEZTERYE
ZERRAEREERBNREEREY M
FEFRRARIR - AR PINEBIEE KL
TEEMRM  AREREEPLEES
BEREY -

REER - REEELNEZTERYHR

BNRERERK AEBCERATRE
EYEIREN - W T RAREEG

o AR TREEMNEZRYRIREH] DU
A TT{EREIN

o HEEASEFENETERRALRDE
FAARSR

o EENBAITHHZHEERERK
S HBERMAER: &

s HBREEWREEAEEITHNE

photocopying wherever possible. Ele
Waste EEZEY) Unit 2024 2023
{7 20244 20234
Total non-hazardous wastes*  EEEEZEY)E S tonnes A 39 67
Intensity =E tonnes per million 0.10 0.18
HK$ revenue
W, HE &SI
A

4 Non-hazardous wastes do not include Hong Kong offices as such wastes
are collected and processed by our office’s property management,
therefore, the relevant quantitative data is not available.
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By using the year 2022 as a baseline year, we will make continuous
efforts in working towards the target of reducing the tonnes of
waste produced by 3% annually.

Use of resources

QOur Group’s resources consumption mainly included (i)
consumption of fuels by lifting machines, cranes and motor
vehicles; and (ji) electricity and water consumed at our production
facilities in the PRC and office in Hong Kong.

During the Reporting Period, we did not encountered any issue in
sourcing water that is fit for purpose.

Apart from the energy saving measures in relation to the use of
lifting machines, cranes and motor vehicles as mentioned above,
our Group has established the following resources conservation
management to minimise the waste of resources:

° promoting e-office practices and measures, such as
switching off electronic appliances when not in use;

° encouraging our employees to set room temperature ranges
from 23°C to 25°C;

° conducting regular trainings and workshops to help our
employees identify energy-saving measures and enhance
their awareness;

° promoting and adopting the use of energy-saving and
efficient equipment and will adopt immediate maintenance
once damage is reported;

2022F REREFE - RAKEES D
FNERBELENERZYEETFRMI3%
FB1R -

EREMR
AEENEREMATIEGROEEH - BH

NABEHRENERE » R (i) BR8P B A ERR
BREBWAZHE N EFENRAK -

R|EHRA - AEEERKBUER R L&
WEBBE(IRE -

<P

B EX P BRAE R EH - B NITE
RETBERESESN - AEBEHIEA TEHHE
REBIER - URERREBER

o HESFMAZTERKEE - FIAH

P TMEMAERS

s HEEEBEARTHERBI2EERE
K25 2

o EHIBEMEIIRTIEY - UHBIER
HpI BN BEFE b M SR T HLARRE R A

o HRERRAHERBIGERE  LRE
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e reviewing electricity and water bills to detect abnormal e ELTTERKEE NUEHERHE
consumption and investigate if any significant usages are omBERAMERERBR - BE
noted; and FAE: &

e inspecting water leakage regularly e  TEHRERKER

Unit B4z 2024 2023
20245 2023%F
Energy consumption BEIRIEFE
Non-renewable fuel FERI AR MWh JEFLBS 467.40 400.09
Electricity B MWh JKFL B 1,649.17 1,5628.27
Total energy consumption BERBREEE MWh JK B B 2,116.57 1,928.36
Energy consumption intensity  8ETRSEERE MWh per million
HKS$ revenue
KEK, BEE
BTTHA 5.33 5.21
Water consumption FEKE
Total water consumption® BREKES m3 37 J7 K 10,810 8,679
Water consumption intensity ~ #EKZE m? per million
HKS$ revenue
NHKBAEE
ABITUA 27.24 23.44

By using the year 2022 as a baseline year, our Group targets to PARO22E BEEFE - KEENBEAR

decrease our resource consumption intensity by 3% by 2025. 2025F 2 HIE B RIEFERERIKI% ° A
However, the overall increase of resources consumption was m - BREENEEEINEEHMN20244F

mainly due to the business growth in Year 2024. As a result, the EKER AW ERERENRBKEDY
usage of energy and water has increased by approximately 10% B ANAI10% K% 25% °
and 25% respectively.

5 The water consumption data above only included one of our production 5 FHiFEKEEIEERER RN —(ALEERM -
facilities in PRC. The supply and discharge of water for the rest of our Hepg B etk R kKHEFEENET
operating premises are either controlled by building management and Tl o FEItE - MUEEVSHEBEEIE -

landlord. Therefore, the relevant data is not available.
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Noise

Due to our business nature, we acknowledge that noise generated
at production facilities and construction sites can have negative
impacts to the community. As such, we have implemented
certain noise pollution control measures to mitigate excessive
noise resulting from our operations. These measures include (i)
implementing noise isolation at our production facilities, (i) taking
practicable measures to reduce excessive noise by using advance
construction and noise damping technology, (iii) ensuring the noise
level does not exceed the prescribed level regulated by the Noise
Control Ordinance and other relevant regulations; and (iv) providing
hearing protection devices to our employees.

The environment and natural resources

We endeavour to minimise any adverse impact on the environment
resulting from our business activities. To comply with the
applicable environmental protection laws, we have established
an environmental management system in conformance with 1ISO
14001 international standard. Our environmental management
system includes measures and work procedures governing
environmental protection compliance that are required to be
followed by our employees and our subcontractors.

The Group will continuously strive to identify sources that may
have material impacts to the environmental from our operations in
various aspects including the air emission, waste and resources
consumption. In case any are identified, we are committed to work
against these sources to minimise the impact and seek alternatives
to work around.

During the Reporting Year, the Group was not prosecuted for
any breach of any applicable environment laws and regulations,
including but not limited to Air Pollution Control Ordinance (Cap.
311), Noise Control Ordinance (Cap. 400), Water Pollution Control
Ordinance (“WPCQ”) (Cap. 358), Waste Disposal Ordinance (Cap.
354), Public Health and Municipal Services Ordinance (Cap. 132),
and Environmental Protection Law of the PRC.

&

HRBEFNEHEE - HPIAREERE
P BELNRS RIS HHREN
BEPE - Qi RPEERETRES
AEDEE  UWRIELEELENBER
B REFHEEERIEEERRERRS
(i) M B E R E R ER M A B R AR E
BRNYERITHE - (i) ERE S KFER
SR (R FE IR REMBREARDIA
MEMRTBAKYF © R(iv)AEBIRHEE IR
éé#i% °

A< ZIR

BRERARER

BOREREBEBEIRBER O TR
PP ERIHE - BETEARRED
HAIDILIRISO 14001 BIFRIZHER T IRIEE
HER - REEHBEAPEAREERS
BREESTHRERRE[OEERITER

2 o

AEBERBEERNZEEBHRMNZE
BHRBEREAFZENKR - BHEER
BERR - K REBTRBFE - MBRERIZERN
KR BFIAEHZERRETRIE - &
TERERE  YBRERTE-

RBEFEAR - AEEYERERERE
RRFERIOERMEDRF - BIFET
RECERSREFIERDD (F311F) ~ (B
ZE RS (£4008) - CKFRE B
7y (TCORBRERIES 1) (£358%F) - (BE
MEREIED]) (£364F) « (RARBENTIK
f&f1) (F1328) R (hEARLMBERZR
&R °
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Climate change

Our executive Directors are responsible for evaluating and
managing any material ESG issues and climate-related risks and
opportunities of our Group. Our executive Directors will meet
regularly to discuss issues and risks that are pertinent to the
business development of our Group. Our executive Directors will
keep track of the latest policies implemented by the Hong Kong
government in tackling climate change. For better identification
of the risks and opportunities, our executive Directors and senior
management will attend to discussion on sustainability of the
structural steelwork industry and low-carbon economy. Our Board
will work closely in identifying future risks and opportunities, as well
as identifying appropriate actions to cope with the ever-changing
situations.

The Group places significant emphasis on risks stemming from
climate change. We assume responsibility for environmental
stewardship and drive the transformation toward a low-carbon
enterprise. Following the guidelines set by the Taskforce on
Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD), we assess the
impact of different risk types. This evaluation serves as valuable
guidance, shaping our response strategies and helping us identify
opportunities to transition toward a sustainable and environmentally
friendly business model in the future.

The table below set out the possible financial loss and non-financial

detriments arising from climate-related risks to which we may
exposed.
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Risk
Bk

Physical risks
V3R b
Acute risk
SR

Description

S

The increased frequency and severity of extreme weather
conditions are likely to cause damage to our assets resulting in
financial loss. For example, flooding may cause rusting to our
products and damages to our machinery, resulting in increased
maintenance cost and replacement cost.

1Rim R RN A SRR R B EIZEIE M - AT REBUE RPN E
C BHEFIEK o PIAKR AT AL E B PN E m A L ER1E
P SRR R B AIEN o

I

The rising frequency of extreme weather conditions are likely to
interrupt the delivery of our materials, project schedule and wreak
havoc on the project sites’ environment. If there is any delay
on our part in completion of a project, we may be liable to pay
liquidated damages under the contract, which in turn will have
adverse impact on our reputation, business, financial condition,
and results of operations.

H & SRR m R RS AT BE G R ET B P M IS - THREE
NETE BB IRIR SR B B BT o MBMINEER T A EHRE
IEER - BT R ARBEA X NEFTBREEE - EmE AN
BE XK MBIKAREEEBERTNEE -

We may have to deploy additional resources to minimise the
potential adverse impacts caused by extreme weather hazards.
For instance, should there be any temporary project suspension
and/or delay resulted from extreme weather conditions, we
may have to deploy additional workers, engage additional
subcontractors and/or arrange for additional overtime works
to ensure timely delivery of works to our customers, thereby
increasing our operating costs and resulting in project costs
overrun.
BMAERERARLZER - UREREERH KA L EEKNE
FERFIRE - flan - WEBmAFRAR R EBEMIER GE kX
TR - BPIERARELZTIA - ZEEZH 08 & HRBEREIN
METAE - R RFREPRZMNIRE - RS NKR M EE
XA KR B HUAE KA °
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Risk
LR

Chronic risk

18 14 o B

Description

P

Further, we may have to implement additional precautionary and
safety measures at our project sites to prevent damage caused by
extreme weather conditions, resulting in an increase in our overall
operating costs.

BEsh - Bfsk/aTEIE B R B RRINEL R 2 FHE - AP L&
IR RAERIEE - EMEH RPN BB LERNIEN -

Our employees and/or our subcontractors’ employees are prone
to rising temperature since most of our project sites are not
equipped with air-conditioning systems. Rising mean temperature
and increasing number of days of extreme heat can easily lead
to heat exhaustion, heat strokes or other health diseases. Such
negative impacts on the health condition of our employees and/
or our subcontractors’ employees may reduce our productivity
and/or delay our work progress, resulting in interruption to our
business operations.
KMOEER SIS BENEESIRE LANTE - HARM
BVAEB I B W EELEZE R R o FHRE LT KRG =R
REVENMRBESERZER - PEHEMBERER - ZZFHEK
MEERE R S HBREESRRIMRNEEmZEA g RERM
WEENR/SERBMNTEEE - EMEREKEERE -
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Risk
Bk

Transition risk
ERE R
Policy risk
HR R

Description

S

In the event of heatwave or extremely hot weather in the PRC,
our machinery located at our production facilities may face the
problem of overheating and lead to reduced useful life. We
will have to adopt additional measures, which include letting
the machinery rest after prolonged use and more frequent
maintenances to ensure smooth fabrication process, thereby
resulting in additional costs to be incurred by us.

R FE R B IR BOR SRR R BR R, » AP SR e RO B8 7]
BLHEFRAXME  BEEATGMEE - B RRIEIMEE -
BRECHBERKECAREAENEERTEREARRRE
BIZNER] - P EREBEPIE SRR o

If the Hong Kong government decided to levy carbon tax, our
financial performance may be adversely affected as we may have
to allocate resources in strengthening our environmental control
measures on lowering our GHG emissions or settle any levies
imposed by the Hong Kong government on our GHG emission.

BB BDRE U - RO B RB A BTN E

B R ATRI BB 7 B B IR R N5 F POt B KR = R HF R ER &Y

REZHIERIFERT BB E MR E RSB E
HE -
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Risk Description Time horizon

2 B it RrEEE

Legal risk lIn the event of any changes in the laws and regulations in  Short to medium term
EERR environmental protection in Hong Kong and the PRC, we may %2 Hj

have to incur additional costs and expenses to comply with such

requirements. If we fail to comply with the relevant laws and

regulations, we may be involved in costly litigation or subject to

penalties or other sanctions imposed by the relevant judicial or

governmental authorities. Our reputation may also be adversely

affected, resulting in a loss of business as our customers may be

less inclined to engage subcontractors with environmental non-

compliance.

i EE R BEABERRAERIOERE EA

8 - mAIENE

BIMKARFAZIABTEBRE  WERPAREETHBERIE
B B E B AR RS SRR 2R S ER RAS K

FIERPIHEADRYEL MBI o BRI BB IR 4

XEBERE B

BREE  AREMANFFREBRETAAND BEM A MR

1’ -

Market and reputational Driven by the gradual recognition and promotion of low-carbon Short to medium term

risk economy by the Hong Kong government, our executive directors  H %2 &f

RESE S anticipate that our Group will be increasingly required by our

customers to adopt clean technology and deploy energy-saving

and efficient machinery in performing our projects. If we are unable

to fulfil our customers’ requirements in this regard, our customers

may become less likely to award projects to us, resulting in

material adverse impact on our market competitiveness and

reputation.

AR EEBURT 82 ] M R RS - ST E SRR
BEPRERAEEENTEREBRABERMARKRESNELS
MR - HERAEIRREFPEESTENFER  EFAKRMARH

THH e A RE S EIRE - SR PI IS E

llZ

While climate change imposes different risks to our operations
and employees, it also offers opportunities. By adopting the right
approach to address the issues, we can unlock potential benefits.
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Opportunities
e

Increase business
opportunities

DIGET

Transition to low carbon
technologies

A AR B T 8 A

Description

S

In view of the increasing awareness of eco-friendliness and
sustainable property development by property developers
and construction contractors, structural steelwork has been
increasingly used for construction in Hong Kong as it offers higher
degree of environmentally friendliness than concrete construction.
ENYERRRBEAERHERRITRAIFENERENE
BEER AR TRENESCERT R AMAEIREE
RIBETIRIR

Our executive directors consider that our proficiency in structural
steelwork and practice of recycling steel waste will enable our
Group to be considered more favourably by our customers and
increase our prospect of obtaining new projects.

BITEERA - RIS BINERE IR R BN R HOE R AT
FAEEGINELEFEHR - WIEMBMESHEANKS -

In view of the increasing awareness of sustainable development
and green energy, our Group has set out a plan to replace our
machinery at our production facilities in the PRC with those that
are more efficient in energy consumption. The replacement of our
existing machinery is likely to provide long-term benefits to our
Group. With reduced energy consumption, we will create a more
environmentally friendly workplace for our employees.
EREARERRLGECARNEBERRES AEEDHE—
A8 - BB A EREN KSR RERRERE T EE 28
HeE c BEHMBERBEEAAEETRRENZ - BERRHME
BRIE - B AEERIEERRNITIESM
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SOCIAL - EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

Employment

The Group highly value our employees as the most crucial assets
and recognizes that aligning business objectives with the Human
Resources (HR) system is essential for success. Our HR system
focus on maintaining a pool of talent to support our business
development, as well as providing an ethical working environment
to facilitate employees’ career advancement. We are dedicated
to ensuring that our HR system complies with relevant labour
laws and regulations, including but not limited to, Employment
Ordinance (Cap. 57); Employees’ Compensation Ordinance (Cap.
282), Minimum Wage Ordinance (Cap. 608); Sex Discrimination
Ordinance (Cap. 480); and Disability Discrimination Ordinance (Cap.
487).

To achieve this, we have established a comprehensive employee
handbook, which clearly outlines the rights and obligations of
our employees. All employees are entitled to public or statutory
holidays, and various types of leave, such as annual leave, sick
leave, compensation leave, maternity leave and compassionate
leave. Additionally, we participate in a provident funds scheme
and several social security funds in compliance with local laws and
regulations.

We are committed to upholding the principles of equal
opportunities, diversity and anti-discrimination in our workplace.
These principes are integrated into our recruitment, promotion,
compensation and termination process. We emphasise that
recruitment and promotion decisions are based solely on
individual merit and competency. Similarly, termination and
disciplinary actions will only be taken against lawful and justifiable
reasons. Discrimination factors, such as gender, age, race, skin
color, nationality, religion and political affiliation will never be a
consideration factor in these processes.

Furthermore, our grievance procedure provides a confidential
channel for employees to express their concerns, such as
management deficiency, unfair treatment, and sexual harassment
within our Group. We encourage employees to participate in
voluntary exit interviews upon resignation which allow us to identify
any vulnerabilities in our HR system.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any RIREHAR - A& B AR )2 &
cases of non-compliance with laws and regulations concerning HNRE - BEREH - TIERE - K

compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, B FE®E - £t - RERRE
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunities, diversity, anti- R M AEF A R ERER A ER -

discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

As of 31 December 2024, the Group had a total of 137 (2023: 148) MR2024F 123318 + NEEHF 1374 (2023
employees, and the overall Group’s employee turnover rate was F:148%)EE MAKENERES
35% (2023: 28%). During the Reporting Period, 50 employees were MAKEB35% (2023F : 28%) - R4
left our Group due to natural attrition, within which approximately HIf - 50 EE AR BARKN AN E BB

94% were entry level staff. B EPN4%BYIRET -
2024 2023
2024F 2023%F
Number of Turnover Number of Turnover
Workforce EEER employees rate® employees rate®
BEA™ Tk =ge EE A TRk ke
By gender bed sl
Male B 122 37% 133 30%
Female pegis 15 20% 15 13%
By age group LEBRAE R
30 or below 30 IA T 7 22% 2 75%
31-50 312505% 64 41% 78 25%
51 or above 515R3 A 1= 66 30% 68 29%
By job position 1% T VBB
Senior management BREEE 6 15% 7 0%
Middle management HRERRE 17 11% 18 24%
Entry level EAEN 114 40% 123 30%
By geographical region  iZith[&@
Hong Kong BB 26 45% 41 57%
PRC s 111 32% 107 16%

¢ The employee turnover rates are calculated using the number of ¢ EEMAERARSHABEES ABKRIA
employees left during the reporting period divided by average number of WMEMANTFIEEASGTE -
employees for the reporting period.
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Labour standards

Our Group strictly prohibits any form of child or forced labor, as
well as unfair treatment of our employees. In alignment with this
commitment, the Group has established recruitment policies that
adhere to relevant laws and regulations, including the Employment
of Children Regulations (Cap. 57B), the Immigration Ordinance
(Cap. 115), and the Employment Ordinance.

As part of our recruitment process, all job applicants are required to
provide valid documentation to verify their identity, age, and other
personal information. This ensures that they meet the necessary
qualifications for employment. Should any violations against labor
standards be identified, the Group promptly terminates employment
and conducts thorough investigations to determine the cause.
Additionally, appropriate disciplinary actions are taken to address
any wrongdoing.

Health and safety

The Group regard health and safety as one of the top-ranking
issues. To provide our employees with a safe and healthy working
environment, we have implemented occupational health and safety
policies, which is certified to be in compliance with ISO 45001
standards across our production facilities and project sites.

Work safety measures at our production facilities

At our production facilities in the PRC, we have established robust
safety measures to ensure strict compliance with applicable safety
laws and regulations imposed by PRC government authorities.
These regulations include but not limited to, Production Safety Law
((REARILFIEZ 24 EEL)) and Safety of Special Equipment
Law ({FEE A R EFBREFERELT ER)).

During fabrication, our production workers operate various
machines to create our final products. These machines include
(i) cutting machines and drilling machines for cutting the steel
materials, (ii) welding machines for joining steel parts and other
components, and (i) gantry cranes for lifting and transporting bulky
items within the production premises.
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In view of the intensity of machine operations, we conduct regular
training sessions on safe machine operation. Additionally, warning
signs are prominently displayed to enhance safety awareness
among employees. Protective devices are also installed to minimize
the risk of injury. Furthermore, we have implemented a maintenance
system for our machinery, which includes inspections and repair
and maintenance of machinery to ensure proper functioning and
safe operation.

To maintain compliance with our safety measures, our production
department conduct routine safety inspections to ensure our
employees are equipped with essential occupational safety gear,
such as safety helmets, protective eyewear, safety shoes, and
gloves.

Work safety measures at project sites

Our project management team is responsible for overseeing the
implementation of our occupational health and safety policies
at project sites and ensuring that we comply with all applicable
occupational health and safety standards and laws, including but
limited to Factories and Industrial Undertakings Ordinance (Cap.
59), Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance (Cap. 509) and
Occupiers Liability Ordinance (Cap. 314).

To prevent workplace accidents, our Group has established
an internal safety manual. This manual outlines the work safety
measures implemented across our construction sites. Our internal
safety manual is reviewed from time to time to incorporate the
best practices and to address and improve specific areas of
our occupational health and safety policies. Our workplace and
safety rules set out in our internal safety manual identify common
safety and health hazards and recommendations on prevention
of workplace accidents. We require our employees and our
subcontractors’ employees to strictly comply with our safety rules.

ENEETELHREMKS > HMIeEH
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Work safety measures included in our internal safety manual
included, among other, (i) organises site safety induction briefing
sessions for workers (including subcontractors’ employees); (ii)
conduct risk assessments before commencing work to identify
potential hazards and recommend preventive measures; (iii)
conduct regular internal and external safety meetings to monitor the
adequacy of measures implemented; (iv) appoint safety officers to
carry out daily site inspections; and (iv) investigate works accidents
(if any) and determine their causes and develop measures for
preventing recurrence.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not experience any
significant accidents at our project sites and no work-related
fatalities have been occurred in the past three years.

WEb 2 FMEHIN TIEL 2 E e HE (K
FREB)NAIABESEENES) B
MBRZE ABRBEEEHNG : (N ITRRERMA
TR TS AR B BRI iR B IR
HHEE  (NEHBRTABRINGILZEE
#F o UNEEMBERNEEEERS (V&
TLE2ETAFHETEHRE  RivAE
TREN(E) RETEKR - WHIEH
IEBRRBE AR

RI|BEMA - AEERIAB &I &
BAEMERRBE=ZFWEBERTIT
T

Work-related injury statistics TEHRTEF 2024 2023 2022

20244 20234 20224
Number of reportable accidents AMESWHE 0 0 0
Number of work-related fatalities AT A 0 0 0
Number of lost days due to work injury FET{518K TIEHE 0 0 0
Development and Training BRRIE

Effective staff training is a cornerstone of business success,
offering a prime opportunity to enhance the knowledge base of
all employees. At our Group, we prioritize comprehensive training
not only for personal development but also for safety, especially
for employees working at our production facilities and construction
sites.

In view of the safety risk inherent in most of our employment
positions, we provide safety training to our workers. This training
covers personal safety, proper use of safety equipment, and safe
machinery operation. Additionally, we encourage and reimburse
staff to attend relevant professional courses, enhancing their job
competence.
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For new employees, we offer induction training that introduces
them to our corporate culture, business processes, and health
and safety protocols. Furthermore, we actively promote on-the-job
training, equipping our staff to perform their daily tasks efficiently
and effectively.

Regular performance appraisals with supervisors or managers
empower our employees to set work goals, manage expectations,
and receive valuable feedback. This process contributes to their
personal growth and future career development.

During the Reporting Period, the Group offered a total of
approximately 675 (2023: 720) hours of training to our employees,
and the average training hours completed per employee was
approximately 4.74 (2023: 4.93) hours.

2024
20245

Percentage
of employees
Training =3 trained’
ZilES
Ebabdd
Workforce by gender RIS 8 E B Bk
Male s 44%
Female it 20%
Workforce by job position ¥ T {EB;7Z] 5 Hy{E 8 B
Senior management BREEE 31%
Middle management HRERE 29%
Entry level IS 44%

HRMARES  RASEEABEI
ARENTARMVEEL - FBEREA
FEERZE2HRE - 1IN  BIFEEZHES
FERIEI - (£ 8 TaE A E M A B #IT
H#®IER -

EHRTESALBETELE AR
EREIEER EERHEREETER
BEER - WBREAMNREEFNEAKRER
RREFRER -

RBEER - NEEREBIRE T AL
675(20234F : 720)/NEERIEH  BRES
TERE TS IR S84 24,74 (20234 -
4.93) /)N ©

2023
20235

Average Percentage Average

training  of employees training
hours® trained’ hours®

F19353 XilEE T
53 Y A7 53¢

5.27 49% 5.48

0.20 13% 0.26

0.31 100% 2.26

2.80 18% 212

5.27 46% 5.46

” The percentage of employees trained is calculated using the total number
of employees trained during the reporting period divided by average
number of employees during the year.

8 The average training hours is calculated using the total training hours
during the reporting period divided by average number of employees
during the year.
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SOCIAL - OPERATING PRACTICES

Supply chain management

The Group recognises the importance of building and maintaining
strong relationships with our supply chain partners as they
significantly contribute to the Group’s pursuit of quality excellence.
Our supply chain partners primarily include (i) suppliers of
materials such as steel; (ii) subcontractors of construction site
works; (i) subcontractors of structural steel galvanising works;
and (iv) suppliers of other miscellaneous services such as testing,
machinery services, transportation and technical engineering
services.

The following table sets forth a breakdown of our supply chain
partners by geographical region:

Suppliers and sub-contractors HEFRSEH
Hong Kong B
PRC ==

He-gEEH
HEEEE

AEEREHEEBHEY RERRE
BETHIER  DTHRKREHAREENX
FHMmEBERER - RPN HEERH
BIRE()ME GREAR) HIER © (NESEHRT
BOERE  (NEBHEFTREIER &
(v E R AR QAR - WARTS - &
R TR2ARH) L re R o

TRET IR0 B D E LR AR -

2024 2023 2022
20245 20234 20224
95 95 89
27 28 26

To ensure a sustainable supply chain network, we have
implemented a policy and procedure for selecting suppliers and
subcontractors. We maintain an internal list of approved suppliers
and subcontractors which will be updated on a continuous basis
and are subject to regular evaluation. In selecting our suppliers, we
will consider factors including pricing, quality of materials provided,
timeliness of delivery and ability to comply with our requirements
and specifications. Similarly, when evaluating subcontractors, we
assess their quality of services, skills and technique, reputation,
prevailing market price, delivery time and availability of resources
in accommodating our requests. We also obtain quotations from
different suitable subcontractors for comparison and select them
based on their experience relevant to the project, availability and
fee quotations.
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We require our supply chain partners to uphold the principles
of ethical business thereby minimizing the environmental and
social risk. We have implemented a comprehensive quality
management system which helps us to identify environmental
and social risks along the supply chain. For details, please refer
to the section headed “Product and service responsibility —
Quiality control and recall procedure” below. Additionally, we have
developed a procedure for evaluating the safety performance
of our subcontractors. Any unsatisfactory performance of our
subcontractors will be reported to our directors and a warning letter
may be issued to the relevant subcontractor. Suppliers or sub-
contractors with inferior past records of significant environmental
or social issues, such as excessive pollutions discharges to the
environment, non-compliance with our safety requirements and
exploitation of workers, will be removed from our internal approved
list.

Product and service responsibility

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any cases
of non-compliance with health and safety, advertising, labelling
and privacy matters relating to products and services provided and
methods of redress.

Quality control and recall procedure

The Group believe that the reliability and quality of our product and
service are critical factors contributing to our success. As such,
we have adopted and implemented a quality management system
certified to satisfy the requirement of ISO 9001:2015. The quality
management system stipulates procedures and controls that span
the entire operation process, from the procurement of materials to
the completion of construction works. During the Reporting Period,
the Group have not received any request for product recall from our
customers due to safety and health reasons.
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Below outlines the quality control procedures adopted for
respective stage of our operation:

Procurement process

Depending on the contract terms with our customers, we may
be required to procure materials with certain specifications or
quality standards. To ensure compliance with our customers’
requirements, we generally arrange external laboratory testing for
the materials. Upon delivery to our production facilities, we typically
conduct inspections of the materials received. If any materials fail to
meet the relevant specifications or standards, we promptly request
replacements from our suppliers.

Structural steel fabrication process

We closely monitor our structural steel fabrication process to
ensure strict compliance with our standard operating procedures.
Throughout the fabrication process, we provide regular quality
control reports to our customers. Additionally, we engaged third-
party testing service providers to conduct weld testing, ensuring
the strength and quality of our semi-finished products. Before
delivering finished goods to construction sites, we conduct in-
house inspections and provide outgoing quality inspection
reports for customers’ approval. Our foremen and our customers’
representatives at the construction sites would also conduct
inspection on the finished products upon their arrival. Any defective
products identified will not be delivered to our customers. Our
quality control inspectors will identify the causes for any product
defects and follow up closely with our quality control department to
confirm any deficiencies in our production process.

Project management

We assign a project management team for every project based on
the project nature and the relevant qualifications and experience
required. This team is led by the project manager who is
responsible for the overall management of the project, including
liaising and communicating with our customers, coordinating and
providing guidance to the other team members, overseeing the
progress, budget and quality of services rendered. Throughout the
project implementation, we provide regular progress reports to our
customers based on their requests. These reports highlight the
project’s status, and any issues identified during implementation.
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As part of our commitment to quality, we hold ourselves
accountable for the performance and work quality of our
subcontractors. Our project management team conducts regular
meetings with subcontractors and performs inspections to ensure
strict adherence to project schedules and specifications.

Complaints handling

Our executive directors and senior management team maintain
regular communication with our customers and conduct site
visits to gather feedback. We promptly follow up and respond to
customer feedback with the goal of maintaining and continuously
improving our service standards. During project implementation,
we may attend progress meetings organised by our customers to
address any identified issues.

Additionally, our contracts typically include a defects liability period
of 6 to 24 months following the completion of relevant site works.
Within this period, we are obligated to promptly rectify any defects
at our own cost if they result from nonconformance with our work
or failure to meet contractual obligations.

To the best of our knowledge, the Group did not receive any official
complaints from our customers during the Reporting Period.

Intellectual property

We recognise the importance of protecting and maintaining
our intellectual property rights. We adhere to relevant laws and
regulations that significantly impact on our operations. These
include, but are not limited to, the Trademarks Ordinance (Cap.
559) and the Copyright Ordinance (Cap. 528) in Hong Kong.

To promote our commitment against infringement of intellectual
property, we have established comprehensive guidelines in our
employee handbook. Employees are strictly prohibited from
using unlicensed software and making unauthorised copies of
copyright works. As of the Reporting Period, all software used by
us are with legitimate licenses. We were not aware of any material
infringements by us of any intellectual property rights owned by
third parties.
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To protect our intellectual property, all our business logos have
been properly registered. As of the Reporting Period, we were
not aware of any material infringements by third parties of any
intellectual property rights owned by us. In the event of intellectual
property infringement by third parties, the Group will take necessary
legal action against them.

Employee and consumer data protection and privacy policies

The Group places paramount importance on maintaining the
confidentiality of employee and customer information. We are
dedicated to safeguarding the privacy of our customers, business
partners, and employees throughout our entire operations.

To achieve this, we have established data protection and privacy
policies within our employee handbook to safeguard information
shared with customers, suppliers, and other relevant parties.
Additionally, our employment contracts include a confidentiality
clause to prevent unauthorised disclosure of sensitive information.
The Group diligently adheres to the applicable privacy rules and
regulations within our operational environment. As of the Reporting
Period, there have been no instances of unauthorised access,
accidental usage, or alterations to this data.

On the other hand, the Group’s business operation did not have
material issues concerning advertising and labelling matters.
Nevertheless, we require our employees to provide our customers
with accurate and true information of the Group’s services.

Anti-corruption

The Group uphold a high standard of integrity and adopt a zero-
tolerance policy on acts of corruption in any form, including bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering. We strictly abide by the
laws and regulations related to anti-corruption, including but not
limited to the Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the PRC, the Criminal
Law of the PRC and the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Chapter
201 of the Laws of Hong Kong). During the Reporting Period, the
Group were not aware of any cases of non-compliance with laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group in
relation to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
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We stipulate our philosophy, objectives as well as disciplinary
code against corruption in our staff handbook and offer trainings
to our employees and directors to ensure they understand the
details of the terms. We also adopt a whistleblowing policy which
allow our employees to report any suspected misconduct or
malpractice. Complainants are assured of their anonymity and are
protected against unfair dismissal, victimisation or unwarranted
disciplinary action even when their concerns turn out to be
unsubstantiated. Any reported incidents will be duly investigated
by our executive director and reported to our Audit Committee. If
justified, disciplinary actions (if applicable) will be taken against the
wrongdoers accordingly.

In addition, to avoid any conflict of interest of our employees, we
stipulate the declaration of interest guidelines in our staff handbook,
which provides guidelines and procedures to our employees in
exercising their good faith and honesty in all transactions and avoid
using their positions or knowledge gained from their employment
for their own personal benefits. Our employees are required to
ensure there is no conflict of interest between their personal
interest and their duties to our Group and declare any potential or
perceived conflict of interest to our executive directors when they
have or have had a personal relationship with a related person.

During the Reporting Period, 3 employees, representing
approximately 2% of the number of employee at the end of the
Reporting Period, attended an anti-corruption seminar organised
by Independent Commission Against Corruption (“ICAC”). The
seminar focused on explaining common anti-corruption practices in
construction workplace, including soliciting introduction fees from
foreman and the use of forged documents. We will continue to
encourage employees to participate in similar seminars to enhance
their knowledge of anti-corruption.
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SOCIAL - COMMUNITY

Community investment

The Group are working towards to building a healthy and
sustainable community and maintaining communication and
interaction with the community. We aim to promote the stability
of society and support the underprivileged to improve the quality
of life. We focus to inspire our employees towards social welfare
awareness and encourage our employees to participate in voluntary
works to make contribution to society.

During the Reporting Period, the Group made sponsorship
of approximately HK$82,800 (2023: HK$2,500) to support
underprivileged and community event to foster closer ties and
interaction with local communities. Looking forward, we will
keep abreast of the latest trends and best practices related to
environmental protection at construction sites, and workers’ health
and safety to further extend our care to the community.
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ESG CONTENT INDEX BiE - 48 REBABTED
Aspect KPI Description Section reference
BgE

Em R fat BEZH

A. Environmental

AR

Emissions Al General Disclosure Environmental
Information on: protection

a) the policies; and

b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges

into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-

hazardous waste.

HER) Al —REE RFRE
BRBERMBERBBYR - KRS - BERE
EEEMNELEFH -
(@ B &
(o) ETHBITABEATENEBEZRAGINELR
A1.1  The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Emissions
A1 BERRE SR AR R R - BB

A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas  Emissions
(in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity.

A2 EFE (BE)BERME (BE2)R TR AN E) R (I
BB -

A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where  Emissions
appropriate, intensity.

A1.3 FTESBZEEZEYHES UNHE) RER) =E - BER)

A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where  Emissions
appropriate, intensity.

A4 FTEEEZEZEYES CANETE) R ER) RE - BERRYD

A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and step taken to achieve  Emissions
them.

A1.5  HILFAETSZHVBERE B IR R AERE L B IRFTERE 28R - Z35.¢7)
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Aspect KPI Description Section reference
BEE
& WIBAR fut SEEH
A1.6  Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are ~ Emissions
handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them.
A6 MLEEAEEREZEENNS S - RELMTIORERE Y
NREDE L B IRATERIA PR
Use of resources A2 General Disclosure Use of resources
Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy,
water and other raw materials.
BIRGERA A2 —RHEER BIRERA
BRERER (BIERIR - KREMERMED BBUE -
A2.1  Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g.  Use of resources
electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in ‘000s) and intensity.
A2l HRERESHEER FMEERWE  GIh) ARE (L BREM
TIET BB E) REE -
A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity. Use of resources
A22 MEFKEREE ° &IR{E
A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps  Use of resources
taken to achieve them.
A2.3 HEIRFRETSZ VAR B W B iR R AERE L BRI BRER
A2.4  Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water thatis ~ Use of resources
fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to
achieve them.
A2.4 HECKEGERKR ERI B ERRERE - URASTVHRAKS®E BERER
FREDEL B IRATERI A 5R -
A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes)  Not relevant to the
and, if applicable, with reference to per unit produced. Group’s business
A25 HKmFAABEEMHNESE UEGE) R (WER) 84ESEL TERARAEEX
1HE o %
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Aspect KPI
BRE

fEBm MisE

The environment A3

and natural resources

RIERAARER A3

Description

it

General Disclosure

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on the
environment and natural resources.

—MRBEE

RIEBEHITAHRREMARABERERERTENBE -

Section reference

SEZH
The environment
and natural

resources

RIENRAEIR

A3.1

A3.1

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the
environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them.

Ml EBEBERERARAABERNEAZERCENEEEH
TEMITE -

The environment
and natural
resources

RIENRAEIR

Climate change Ad

General Disclosure
Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-
related issues which have impacted, and those which may
impact, the issuer.

—MRINE
BRI EHE AR
HERER -

AR HBTAELXENEARERES

Climate change

RAREE

RIREAE A4
A4.1
A4.1

Description of the significant climated-related issues which have
impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and the
actions taken to manage them.

Rl DR RSB ITAELFENEARGHRBEE &
JEETTE) o

Climate change

SIREE
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Aspect

[EBHE
B. Social
B. #g

Employment

KPI

BRE

Description

Mg it

B1

B1

General Disclosure

Information on:

a)  the policies; and

b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and

promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,

diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

—MREE

BRAE R E - HBRERE - TERE - RE - T

2 Zioft - RERAREAGFERENA

@ BR: R

b) BEFHBETABEAZENEBEELROINER -

Section reference

SEEH

Employment

B1.1

B1.1

Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and
geographical region.

RIER - EERE - FRAEMNEESNES BRI -

Employment

(A

B1.2

B1.2

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical
region.

BB - FRARIRIEEDHEEIRKE -

Employment

(A

Health and safety

B2

General Disclosure

Information on:

a)  the policies; and

b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting

employees from occupational hazards.

—RRIRER

BRREZ2THERERREREBEBE LT

@ BE: &

b) ETFHBETABEAZENHBEREAOINER -

Health and safety
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Aspect KPl Description Section reference
BEE
[EE RABAR fut S2EEH
B2.1  Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of  Health and safety
the past three years
B2.1 BE=FEFHEMNTHIHTAZSRLE - fEREZ R
B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Health and safety
B2.2 HAIEGEEXIIEHE - fEREZ R
B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures  Health and safety
adopted, and how they are implemented and monitored.
B2.3 MMFIERAMRBERRELT 2 ARBEARTRERS RERELZSE
Vo
Development and B3 General Disclosure Development and
training Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for  training
discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.
EEY=E B3 —MIXE EEY=E
FRRAREBITIEBENANB REREMNEBUR - B INE
g o
B3.1  The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee  Development and
category. training
B3.1 ®&RMAIKESEMNESHNZIIEER DL EEYEE]
B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender  Development and
and employee category. training
B3.2 ®ZMAIKESREE S  BEESTHZIIETIIRE - e RIET
Labour standards B4 General Disclosure Labour standards
Information on:
a)  the policies; and
b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child and forces labour.
44 T %A B4 —MRHE 4 T %8
BB IEE Tasa 45 Th) -
@ BX:k
(o) BETFHBETAGEAZENHBEEZLROINE -
B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to  Labour standards
avoid child and forced labour.
B4.1 fHitiesH RIS E PV M AR R B T KGRI T - B TR
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Aspect KPI Description Section reference

BEE

& WIBAR fut SEEMH

B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when  Labour standards
discovered.

B4.2 HEMEBERERIENFER A @IS PRI 5 L5 T A=A

Supply chain B5 General Disclosure Supply chain

management Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the = management
supply chain.

HEEER Bs Mk HEHEER
ERHEENRE R SRREE -

B5.1  Number of suppliers by geographical region Supply chain

management

B5.1 imE|SHHEEREE - HrEgEER

B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number  Supply chain
of suppliers where the practices are being implemented, and  management
how they are implemented and monitored.

B5.2 fiBEEAHEEENED  RMERTEHEEMNNHERS HERER
B - ARBREITRERTEA -

B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental  Supply chain
and social risks along the supply chain, and how they are = management
implemented and monitored.

B5.3 fulBEARMIHEEGERGNRERESEBRNOEN - Uk HERER
HARITRERTA -

B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally  Supply chain
preferable products and services when selecting suppliers, and ~ management
how they are implemented and monitored.

B5.4 fAlAEEEHERREE S ARRERMREHES - LARE HERER

RARATT MEEERITR ©
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Aspect

EE

Product
responsibility

KPl Description Section reference

BEE

RABAR fut S2EEH

B6 General Disclosure Product
Information on: responsibility
a)  the policies; and
b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a

significant impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and services provided and
methods of redress.

B6  —MRIKER EmEE
FEMREERNRBNRERLZS BS  RELAMESEE
ARAEROT AR
(a HX: X
b) BETHETABEAZENHEBERIROIER -

B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls  Product
for safety and health reasons. responsibility

B6.1 EEHCEXEMAHEITEALTHEREEAMARKNES EmEE
Lk -

B6.2 Number of products and service-related complaints received  Product
and how they are dealt with. responsibility

B6.2 EEEANEmMMREHIRFEE ARBE T - EmEE

B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting  Product
intellectual property rights. responsibility

B6.3  faul B 4 & R ARFE AN AE A BB o EmBE

B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures.  Product

responsibility

B6.4 fHlEERTEBEREREPERF EmEE

B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies,  Product
and how they are implemented and monitored. responsibility

B65 MLHBEENRERLEIE AREMATRER % EREME
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Aspect KPI Description Section reference
mEE
[Bm| Mg S2EEH

Anti-corruption

B7 General Disclosure
Information on:
a)  the policies; and

b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a

significant impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

Anti-corruption

RER B7 MK RE=
B IEERER - 3R - BGGFROEREN
@ BEK: &
(o) ETHETABEAZENERERZRADIREE -
B7.1  Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices  Anti-corruption
brought against the issuer or its employees during the reporting
period and the outcomes of the cases.
B7.1 RERPANHBTANHESRETV D SENETHARN RES
BB MEFRER o
B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing  Anti-corruption
procedures, and how they are implemented and monitored.
B7.2 FHulBh A MR WET - U RAEBBITRER X RER
B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and  Anti-corruption
staff.
B7.3 fulmERRE TRHENRESHE - RES
Community B8 General Disclosure Community
investment Policies on community engagement to understand the needs  investment
of the communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its
activities take into consideration the communities’ interests.
HEREE B8 Mk HEREE
BN RBERTRETASEMNELRTEMBRLER
TEEEE BRI EVBR o
B8.1 Focus areas of contribution. Community
investment
B8.1 ZEIRREIEE - HERKEE
B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus area. Community
investment
Bs2 HEHIHEMHBAER- HEREE

WK Group (Holdings) Limited o BLE£E (321R) BR AT



Independent Auditor’s Report &3 & B Ef ik &

To the Shareholders of WK Group (Holdings) Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of WK Group (Holdings)
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which
are set out on pages 123 to 218, comprise:

° the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2024;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, comprising
material accounting policy information and other explanatory
information.

QOur opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2024, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BRLESE R BRATRR
(RASBESEMAIZNERAT)

=R
HIFIEFAIAE

PAEEE(ZER)BRABUATEEN &
AADREMBRAR (A THEI 5%
=) PN &R FE123E218EMERE M B
=B

. R2024412 A31 B AR A M ISR

s  HAMBHERME  BREARNSFK
REMDEMBERES -

Hlie)E R

BMRE  ZEGREMBREECRESH
SIHRMAEBRMGHN(EETHRELEDE
BEMPEHRET BHEEMR2024F12A8
B1AMGEMBMRAREREZEZBLFE
MGG BRARGARERE YEE
BEBE(RA RGN HE BN T Z A%E
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Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

The key audit matter identified in our audit is related to revenue
recognition from construction contracts.

WK Group (Holdings) Limited o BLE£E (321R) BR AT
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Key Audit Matters (continued)
Key Audit Matter
BRETEHE

Revenue recognition from construction contracts

REZESHNRATER

Refer to Notes 5(a) and 5(f) to the consolidated financial statements.

A2 BER B WIS HRA M FE5(a) K 5(f) ©

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group recognised
revenue of approximately HK$398 million generated from structural
steelwork construction contracts.

HE2024F12A31RIFE - EEEHEIKEMEETIREES
HHHALIZ98B EABTT

The Group recognises revenue overtime by applying input method
according to the progress towards complete satisfaction of the
performance obligations on the basis of the actual costs incurred by
the Group up to the year-end date as a percentage of total estimated
costs for each project. Management assesses the total contract
revenue and budgeted cost at the commencement of the contracts
and regularly reassesses these amounts and the financial impact with
reference to the progress of construction works.

REBERA IR AOERIB T B S ER#EE PR BRERUA - 5T
BABENEEIA EEEHZFRIREEEBCEELNERK
REEFTRAEEN A DL REE - ERERE RIS GET
BRBPARTAERER - W2 EZRETRNEETHRERZE SR
N E

HMRETER(E

How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matter
FAINERNAEERRETEE

Our procedures in relation to revenue
recognition from construction contracts
included:

BMEBRREREES ONRABERNIZF
BE

o Obtained an understanding of
the Group’s internal control and
assessment process of revenue
recognition on construction contracts
and assessed the inherent risk of
material misstatement;

e TR BEEEEARESHWAHA
ERESE AT AR - WAT B EREER
PRIt B [E B R

° Evaluated and tested, on a sample
basis, the key controls over the
assessment of total contract revenue
and budgeted costs, the key controls
over regular monitoring and review of
project margin, and other key controls
related to revenue and cost recognition
from construction contracts;

o FHERMHEESAHBBYEEOE
WA RFRE R ARG RS E S -
EHIBE SR Min st TE B AB R ey RasE i
il - REZES DA KRB AR
A H At BASE 1R -

° Examined the key terms of the
construction contracts on a
sample basis and assessed the
Group’s revenue recognition
policies to evaluate whether they
are in accordance with the relevant
accounting standards;

o MBS ARERESHNTEKRR
RarE BERERBAREREE - A
FEZERREE NS HE S E
Al
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Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key Audit Matter

HRETTEE

We focused on this area due to the relative significance of revenue
recognised from construction contracts to the consolidated financial
statements and thus significant audit time and resources were
devoted in this area. Judgement and estimation are also involved
when assessing the progress of work performed and the profit
margin.

IR BT RN ERR B RES DN WA GRS M BHRRN
HEEZHRARRAREEZREARERILESF - FHEHE
1TIARHEE RAE R IR KA K fhEt -
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BRRETEER(E

How our audit addressed the Key Audit

Matter

FITNERNAEEBRENSE

o Tested, on a sample basis, the actual
costs incurred during the year ended
31 December 2024 by checking the
relevant supporting documents;

o  FEBWEBBERIME - RN
AHEE2024F12A31HILEFER
EENBRRR

° Tested, on a sample basis, the costs
recognised before and after year end
date by examining relevant supporting
evidence to assess whether they
are recognised in the appropriate
accounting period; and

e  EBREAMSIFER  AHEHSH
BHARELE R Z A R 2 1B EH#RAIK
K AFRHEBBAKARESREENG
SHHIEER : &

o Performed analysis, on a sample
basis, by comparing the initial project
margin and the final project margin
of completed projects to assess
the effectiveness of management’s
estimation.

o DHEARNETON  HERBER
THEMVIRIAR MEREZKIAR
FIERETHE  UFEEEBNMG
AARERM -

Based on our audit procedures, we found
the Group’s revenue recognised from
construction contracts were supported by
the available evidence.

BERMNEFRERF  RMAZER S5
HRRERESHNNBRABAIFNEEX

# o



Independent Auditor’s Report &3 #% 8ki R &

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. We have obtained
some of the other information including management analysis and
discussion prior to the date of this auditor’s report. The remaining
other information, including the financial highlights, chairman’s
statement, directors’ report and the other sections to be included
in the annual report, are expected to be made available to us after
that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not and will not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information
that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

HtpfE 8

BERREBERAHEMESASE - HER
BRFRANMEEES  ETREKRAH
BamR RRIINZBENRE - NI BED
HEBHR - RMACKEST —LHEME
B BREEENREINMAENER -
HHpHEMER  BRMBHE  TFR
T EFERERFHRAEMNEMEHE
FHRR % A ERR R AR TR AP

BPEEEMBRRNEELL MREEM
EE BRI EH I EHZEEMER
BREMPARNEESR

BERMBEAMBHRERNEFT - R
REERME L GERNEMBES - LB
B ZEHEMERRERESMB®RE
SRMEFTBRTHATRHNBEAFEE
AEBHEUFEFEERNHERBANBE

ERBACER A=A RE B2 A%
SRNEMEBNITHIE  NREMAR
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Independent Auditor’s Report &3 #& Bkl Rk &

Responsibilities of Directors and the Audit Committee for
the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

WK Group (Holdings) Limited o ZLE£E (358%) BRA T
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Independent Auditor’s Report &3 & B Ef ik &

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.
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Independent Auditor’s Report &3 #& Bkl Rk &

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continuead)

° Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
of the entities or business units within the Group as a basis for
forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and review
of the audit work performed for purposes of the group audit.
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Yuen Shin Fong.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong,

27 March 2025

WK Group (Holdings) Limited o ZLE£E (358%) BRA T

REMPEREUBBRREARNEE
(&)

o FHEIRBITRERES - U3 BEEKHE
REBREBEMNPBERERT
R EEBNENRE - ERYRAM
BHRRKEROER - HMATE
H . EEMBHNAEITREERMAN
TTEVERT TIF - RAIATAER AL

EEEE o

REMBRIN  BAEBRZESEAT
APEIMETHE  BETH  EXRAH
RE - BREBFIERETE5 R B Sl
EE R E AR -

BFERESZESRREHR - HARM

ENAABBYMENAEERERER
WEMFAESBEAEAEMERRETE
BABLIMENRERERNEMEE UK
EERNBERT - BBREBYIEESE
BB B TTEN SRR P #0451

ftREZZBQBENERT - RAEE
BBLk EIHE AR E M RROBA RS
ER AMEKRBRENFE - RAEX
ZEN R E P RMIELEIR - BRIDERER
TAFAFARBEELSTE  EBHFR
BBERT  IMREBERERPIRET B
BREREKNAARRBEEENAR
Mz BPIORETEERETBEZS

HEAXRBI ZBMABRENETEBEEGBA
eRE

BORUKEBETMSEHA
HEEFED
0

202553 H27H



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income &2 HBR AL

Note
BdaE

Revenue WA 5
Cost of services i3 7
Gross profit ER
Other income HEmA 6
Other loss, net HAitnEEF5E 6
Administrative expenses THAX 7
Listing expenses WX
Impairment losses on trade receivables & 5 FEURZIIA 2 & #1E B

and contract assets RIEEE 3.1@)
Operating profit KRR
Finance income ZIE 1 ON 10
Finance costs B GRS 10
Finance income/(costs), net BRI (B AN) F 58
Profit before income tax expense  BRFTSH B X AT R
Income tax expense s 11
Profit for the year attributable to 72 F#EA A EEEREF]

owners of the Company
Other comprehensive income: Hit2EWA :
ltem that may be reclassified AREEN D R BEAIE

to profit or loss: B :
Currency translation differences B E =5
Total comprehensive income for the X A A EEAEBEFEFREE

year attributable to owners of the WA %258

Company
Earnings per share attributable to ZAFEEABEERER

owners of the Company
Basic and diluted EXREE

(expressed in HK cents per share) (AFREALZR) 12
The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income LA %R
should be read in conjunction with the accompany notes. & o

2024 2023
20245 20234
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT T
398,463 370,226
(327,071) (299,128)
71,392 71,098
17 181
(353) (484)
(26,533) (19,128)
(4,838) (15,982)
(64) (1,577)
39,621 34,108
603 207
(579) 662)
24 (455)
39,645 33,653
(8,145) (8,448)
31,500 25,205
412 440
31,912 25,645
1.65 1.68

* 6 2 YA SR FE B2 Y P o — 57 5O
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position &4 B &k R &

Assets
Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets

Deferred tax assets

Investment in life insurance contracts
Deposits

Current assets

Trade receivables

Contract assets

Other receivables, deposits and
prepayments

Amounts due from directors

Amount due from a related company

Income tax recoverable

Financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss

Bank deposit with original maturity
over 3 months

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Equity

Equity attributable to owners of the

Company
Share capital
Share premium
Capital reserve
Reserves
Retained earnings

Total equity

i The amount is below HK$1,000.

BE

FRBEE

VE R S
EREEE
EREFTEREE
ABFRBREORE
o

RBEE

B 5 IR

BREE

HAb IR - Be RIERN
IR

FEWE F IR

& 1 — I BRES 2 BIRRIR
AU Bl A SR

BAHER ARSNERE
BE

JRE| 8B BE31E A 7Y
RITHFR

Re kR eEHEY

BERE

R
RATHER ARG

LN
Pt (B
PA
Edi
RE & F
A

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be

read in conjunction with the accompany notes.
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Note
BfaE

14
15
16
20
18

18
19

18
27
27

21

22
22

23
23
23

*

A £

2024 2023
20245 20234
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
21,200 6,482
8,179 5,484
849 773
6,083 5,901
675 =
36,986 18,640
63,874 43,199
95,444 161,569
6,809 12,620
- 759
- 11,627
688 -
4,465 -
5,076 =
99,963 8,650
276,319 238,424
313,305 257,064
20,000 =
91,823 =
1,700 1,700
(25) (437)
139,884 134,970
253,382 136,233
& F{ER1,000% 7T ©
LRE BTG AR S 3% JE B A B 5 — OF )



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position &4 B &k R &R

Note 2024 2023
BsE 20244 20234
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Liabilities afE
Non-current liabilities kRBER
Lease liabilities HEaE 15 2,483 110
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and retention payables S REMNFIBEREMNMRES 24 32,969 83,624
Accruals and other payables FERTE A R EM R FRIE 24 11,769 17,516
Contract liabilities ANEaE 19 1,958 3,196
Lease liabilities HEEaE 15 4,404 2,896
Bank borrowings RITER 25 5,865 9,886
Current income tax liabilities BIEAFTIS R afE 475 3,603
57,440 120,721
Total liabilities EERE 59,923 120,831
Total equity and liabilities ERRAEHE 313,305 257,064

The consolidated financial statements on pages 123 to 218 were F123BEF218E AN BHREER
approved by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2025 and were 2024327 REZEGHETH TIIES

signed on its behalf. RERFEE -
Chan Kam Kei Chan Kam Kong
REE BREET
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
0 £

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be LA £ 4R & B 75 1K R 2% FE 252 s B B 5 — G B

—
Bs

read in conjunction with the accompany notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity & #EE 2 B *®

Attributable to owners of the Company
LONGTE 2PN
Share Share  Capital
capital premium  reserve Exchange Retained

Note (Note23) (Note23) (Note23)  reserve earnings Total

Bx  RGEE RARE
Wt (MEes)  (ME23)  (WH23) ERRG REEF @t
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$O00  HK$O00  HK$O00  HK$'000
TExr TEr  TEr  TExr  TEr  TEx

Balance at 1 January 2023 1202351 A1RRESR = - 1,700 @rr) 129,765 130,588
Profit for the year ERgil - - - - 25206 25205
Other comprehensive income for the year  ERE M2 EYRA - - - 440 - 440
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ FRZERALE - - = 440 25205 25645
Dividends e 13 - - - - 0000)  (20000)
Issuance of share of the Company * BARRRRA = - - - - -
Balance at 31 December 2023 R2023F 12831 R E & - - 1,700 (437) 134970 136,233
Balance at 1 January 2024 20241 A1 BRES - - 1,700 (437) 134970 136,233
Profit for the year FREF - - - - 31500 31,500
Other comprehensive income for the year ~ FREMZERA - = = 412 = 42
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ FRZERALESE - - - 42 31500 31912
Shares issued in the Initial Public Offering B AREE ([EAARE

(1PO") &) pEIHRG 5000 120,000 - - - 125000
Capitalisation issue of shares EXLBIRA 15,000 (15,000) = = = =
Share issuance costs N OEIE - (18177 = = - (18177
Dividends e 13 - - . - (26586  (26586)
Balance at 31 December 2024 R2024F12 31 A& &R 20,000 91,823 1,700 (25 139,884 253382
ié The amount is below HK$1,000. I S FEE1,0008 7T ©
The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be LA 4R G HE 25 5 B 3% I B B B B 5 — (B4
read in conjunction with the accompany notes. g o
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows Z&BE&/RER

Note 2024 2023
g 20245 20234
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FET
Cash flows from operating activities E& EEBFERERE
Cash generated from/(used in) EEBIE/ FTRBES
operations 26(a) 36,764 (13,570)
Income tax paid BFrEH (12,016) (9,400)
Net cash generated from/(used in) KETEBME TR EE
operating activities FEE 24,748 (22,970)
Cash flows from investing activities R &E;EE ISR ESHE
Purchase of property, plant and EEWME - BE K&
equipment 14 (17,037) (1,424)
Addition of investments in insurance ¥R & LIRE
contracts 20 - (2,846)
Proceeds from disposal of property, — HEWZE - BE K& E
plant and equipment FriS 5808 26(b) - =
Advance to a related company Bl NCIE=E - (89)
Advance to directors MEFIN (4,200) -
Increase in bank deposit with original R Z|E3 B #2831 A &)
maturity over 3 months RITIFFIE N (5,076) =
Finance income received B FUA 603 181
Purchase of financial asset BEERATETABRN
at fair value through profit or loss ERMEE (5,000) =
Net cash used in investing activities RE RS ATRE S F58 (30,710) (4,178)
Cash flows from financing activities BEEEFERERE
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITIE PSR 26(c) - 4,003
Repayments of bank borrowings EBIRITER 26(c) (4,021) 2,571)
Dividend paid EAIIRE 13 (10,000) (20,000)
Proceeds from issuance of shares BITIRMFTSRIA 125,000 -
Payment for principal and interest SRHEEaERS RFIE
of lease liabilities 26(c) (5,226) (4,483)
Payments of listing expenses T EMHAX (8,034) (3,383)
Finance cost paid BB SRR (386) (446)
Repayment to directors MEZER 26(c) - (5,991)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BEEBME S (FTA)ES
financing activities it 97,333 (32,871)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash HERBSSEYEM
and cash equivalents (R2) T8 91,371 (60,019)
Cash and cash equivalents at REVRRE KRS ZEY
beginning of the year 8,650 68,696
Exchange difference on cash and RekReEEBYELEEHE
cash equivalents (58) 27)
Cash and cash equivalents at RERNEERBEEEY
end of the year 21 99,963 8,650

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in A 4R E IR &M 2 5K ME BRBEMT M5 — G158
conjunction with the accompany notes. i o
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General information

WK Group (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman lIslands on 28 June 2023 as an
exempted company with limited liability under Companies
Act (as revised) of the Cayman Islands. The address of the
Company’s registered office is Suite 102, Cannon Place, P.O.
Box 712, North Sound Rd., George Town, Grand Cayman
KY1-9006, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) are engaged in the provision of structural steelwork
in Hong Kong (the “Listing Business”). The ultimate holding
company of the Company is WK (BVI) Limited (“WK (BVI)”),
a limited liability company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (the “BVI”). The ultimate controlling shareholders of
the Group are Mr. Chan Kam Kei, Mr. Chan Kam Kong, Mr.
Chan Wing Hong, Ms. Choi Chick Cheong and Ms. Chan Suk
Man (together the “Controlling Shareholders”).

On 8 March 2024, the shares of the Company (the “Shares”)
were listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing”) by way of share offer (the
“Share Offer”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of Hong Kong dollars (“HK$’000”), unless
otherwise stated.

WK Group (Holdings) Limited o BLE£E (321R) BR AT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R R Kzt
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R & Kist

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
Cap. 622. The consolidated financial information have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
the investments in life insurance contracts, which have been
measured at cash surrender value, and financial asset at fair
value through profit or loss which has been measured at fair
value.

The preparation of the consolidated financial information in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
information are disclosed in Note 4.

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated. The Group has applied
the new and amended standards effective for the financial
year beginning on 1 January 2024.
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants
Amendments to HKFRS 16  Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback
Hong Kong Interpretation 5  Presentation of Financial
(Revised) Statements — Classification
by the Borrower of a Term
Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand
Clause
Amendments to HKFRS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements
and HKAS 7

AEBEGEYBHRRERIEMEER
EAVBHRE LA ([FEMBHRELE
A1) REBRAHED (£622F) KO
BEKER - RAMBERIREE
ERAERE - EABRBRAOERE
(BB RREEFE) MRATE
FFABEMEREE (HEQFER
BRI

RUGA BB RS ERNGA M
BEANNEEEAETHREHE
o NEREREAEAAEET:
B BT R (TR AIE - S REBH
RE AR E - HBR

B RAMB AN ABEERNE
B, RHTREABE -

B AMEBRRNEEANEIEES
BERHNTX - RS BHAN - 1tF
BEREFZYMMBFEEERER -
AEE B EAMN20245F1 A1 BHIAH
BB [ A AR AT SAHE AT 2R ©

BEGRTER BESBERREA
ERLACCHIR B

BRGER R0 k)
FUREETA) BE

BENHHREER RERELHEE
165 (ERIAX)  AFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R R Kzt

Basis of preparation (Continued) 2

The amendments to standards listed above did not have
any impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and
are not expected to significantly affect the current or future

mBEE (F

periods.

21

Amendments to standards and interpretation that are 2.1
not yet effective and have not been early adopted by
the Group

The following amendments to standards and
interpretation that have been issued, but are not yet
effective for the financial year beginning on 1 January
2024 and have not been early adopted by the Group:

Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability
and HKFRS 1
BARGHEREN TR BBV BREEA T A A
ESEACHEY)
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Amendments to the Classification and Measurement
and HKFRS 7 of Financial Instruments
ERNBRERNZOFRESHERELEN eRIADERFEZER
ENEACHEY)

HKFRS 1, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 9, HKFRS 10
and HKAS 7

BEMBRERRNE T BAMBREEN ARVBREEN G ENNFEE—SE N
F7% - BENBIREEREN - BB
BREENE10RRABGEINETH

Annual Improvements to HKFRS Accounting Standards -
Volume 11

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements
BRI REERZE 185 NBIER 2T RBE
HKFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures

BERHMBRERAE19%
Hong Kong Interpretation
5 (Revised)

FRAZAEACHBAR : BE
Presentation of Financial Statements -Classification by the
Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause
MBBRER-—ERABHFRERERER 2 THER
Sales or Contribution of Assets Between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture
ERUBBRERAEI0RRE A G EAE2S REFEHBENAHABNAR EELEFTE
5% (BT )

BERERLM (FER])

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
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20271 R1H
1 January 2027
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To be determined

BEE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4

2 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1

Amendments to standards and interpretation that are
not yet effective and have not been early adopted by
the Group (Continued)

The Group has already commenced an assessment
of the impact of these amended standards and
interpretation. According to the preliminary assessment
made by the directors of the Company, no significant
impact on the financial performance and positions of
the Group is expected when they become effective.

3 Financial risk management

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk and
cash flow interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the
Group’s financial performance.

Management regularly manages the financial risks of
the Group. Because of the simplicity of the financial
structure and the current operations of the Group, no
hedging activity is undertaken by management.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R R Kzt

3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continueq)

@)

Credit risk

()

Risk management

The carrying amounts of cash and cash
equivalents, bank deposit with original
maturity over 3 months, investments in
life insurance contracts, trade receivables,
amounts due from directors, amount due
from a related company, deposits and other
receivables and contract assets included
in the consolidated statements of financial
position represent the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to its
financial assets.

Management considers the Group has
limited credit risk with its banks which are
leading and reputable and their external
credit ratings are of investment grades.
Majority of bank balances and the key
management insurance contracts are
deposited with and insured by reputable
banks or financial institution. The Group
has not incurred significant loss from non-
performance by these parties in the past
and management does not expect so in the
future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4

3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continueq)

@)

Credit risk (Continued)

()

Risk management (Continueq)

The Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s
policy that all customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. The procedures
focus on the evaluations on the customer’s
past history of making payments when
due and current ability to pay, and take
into account information specific to the
customer, such as its financial position,
past experience and other factors, as well
as pertaining to the economic environment
in which the customer operates. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis with the result that the
Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group
is exposed to concentration of credit
risk on trade receivables and contract
assets from the Group’s five largest
customers amounting to approximately
HK$121,280,000 (2023: HK$168,324,000)
and accounted for approximately 76%
(20283: 82%) of the total gross trade
receivables and contract assets balances.
The major customers of the Group are
reputable organisations and with good
repayment history. Management considers
that the credit risk is limited in this regard.

The Group’s other financial assets at
amortised cost are considered to be low
risk. Management has closely monitored
the credit qualities and the collectability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R R Kzt

3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continueq)

(@)  Credit risk (Continued)

(i)  Impairment of assets

The Group has the following assets that are

subject to the expected credit loss model:

° trade receivables;

° contract assets;

° other receivables and deposits at

amortised cost;

° amounts due from directors;

° amount due from a related company;

o bank deposit with original maturity
over 3 months; and

o cash and cash equivalents.

While cash and cash equivalents are also
subject to the impairment requirements of
HKFRS 9, the identified impairment loss
was immaterial as the relevant banks’
external credit ratings are of investment
grades.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R & Kist

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

@

Credit risk (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets

The Group applies the simplified approach
prescribed by HKFRS 9 to measuring
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade
receivables and contract assets.

Management consider the nature of
business of its customers, the default
rates given by external researches over the
expected lives of the debtors, repayment
and default histories of different customers
or industries to assess the credit risk
characteristics and the likelihood of loss
allowance of its customers. The Group
uses probability of default (PD), exposure at
default (EAD) and loss given default (LGD)
to measure the credit risk and expected
credit loss rates for its customers.

The historical loss rates are also adjusted
to reflect current and forward-looking
information on macroeconomic factors
(i.,e. GDP and employment rate) affecting
the ability of the customers to settle the
receivables.

The credit period granted by the Group to
its customers mainly ranged from 30 to 60
days.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R R Kzt

3  Financial risk management (Continued) 3 SERBEEE
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 SREREZEGE)
(@)  Credit risk (Continued) @ (EEERGE
(i) Impairment of assets (Continued) (i) EEHEGE)
Trade receivables and contract assets ESZENGERE
(Continued) HIEE (B)

Trade receivables at 31 December 2024

A2024F12H31H

g ZEWRIE
Average Gross carrying Impairment
loss rate amount loss allowance
Internal credit rating A= BT T Eia R IREAE RESERE
HK$°000 HK$°000
FERT FERT
A3 to Aaa A3ZEAaa 0.000% 219 -
B3 to Baat B3£Baai 0.110% 53,445 (59)
C3 to Caail C3%Caal 1.050% 10,378 (109)
Default EH 100% 3,828 (3,828)
67,870 (3,996)

Trade receivables at 31 December 2023

20235128318

B 5 WA
Average Gross carrying Impairment
loss rate amount loss allowance
Internal credit rating AZ51= & 5P4% TEEEE IREAE BESERE
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FHERT
A3 to Aaa A3%EAaa 0.015% 6,795 ()
B3 to Baat B3%Baat 0.141% 26,289 (37)
C3 to Caatl C3%£Caal 2.083% 10,369 (216)
Default EH 100% 2,610 (2,610)
46,063 (2,864)

136 WK Group (Holdings) Limited o ZLE£E (358%) BRA T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R & Kist

Financial risk management (Continued) 3

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@)  Credit risk (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets
(Continued)

Contract assets at 31 December 2024
Average

loss rate

Internal credit rating R385 & P4 FHEEE

A3 to Aaa A3ZEAaa 0.021%
B3 to Baail B3£Baat 0.794%
C3 to Caat C3%Caat 4.253%
Default EBH 100%

Contract assets at 31 December 2023

Average
loss rate

Internal credit rating R385 & 74 FIEIE R

A3 to Aaa A3ZAaa 0.011%
B3 to Baai B3%£Baal 1.336%
C3 to Caatl C3£Caat 3.235%
Default EH 100%

CREREEE
31 TREBRREZGE)
@ (EEREE)
(i) EEREGE)

EZRNFBELRE
HEE (&)

A2024%F12H31H
BHEE

Gross carrying Impairment
amount loss allowance

SREARE  RUEEERE

HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
9,559 @)
75,931 (603)
11,028 (469)
2,017 (2,017)
98,535 (3,091)

A2023%F12H31H
BHEE

Gross carrying Impairment
amount loss allowance

SREARE  REGRRE

HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
9,519 (1)
128,216 (1,713)
26,402 (854)
1,591 (1,591)
165,728 (4,159)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R R Kzt

3  Financial risk management (Continued) 3 cHREREEE
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 SREREZEGE)
(a)  Credit risk (Continued) @ 1=EEREE
(i)  Impairment of assets (Continued) (i) EEHEGE)

Trade receivables and contract assets EZEWNGERE
(Continued) HIEE (B)

The loss allowance provision for trade B RWFIERGHNEENBERE
receivables and contract assets reconciles HZ B E R BB R R R ¢

to the opening loss allowance for that
provision as follows:

Trade Contract

receivables assets Total
EREW
ME BREE #at

HK$000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET TRET FRET

As at 1 January 2023 R2023F1A1H 2,650 2,796 5,446
Provision for impairment loss FEEBEE 214 1,363 1,577
As at 31 December 2023 #2023F12H31H 2,864 4,159 7,023
Provision for/(reversal of provision  JR{EEEEE /(B

for) impairment loss t:4E) 1,132 (1,068) 64
As at 31 December 2024 R2024F12A31H 3,996 3,091 7,087
Apart from the above, the Group also assess Br EalizE o - REBIRELERFAA]
the reasonableness of the provision amount SHEBAERFNEEER T ERE
by making reference to publicly available THRELRAHE -

credit information about its customers.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R & Kist

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

@)

Credit risk (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

Other receivables and deposits at amortised
cost

The credit qualities of other receivables

and deposits at amortised cost have
been assessed with reference to historical
information about the counterparties
default rates and financial position of
the counterparties. Management is of
the opinion that the credit risk of other
receivables and deposits at amortised
cost are low due to the sound collection
history of the receivables and deposits. The
impairment provision is determined based
on the 12-month expected credit loss which
is immaterial.

Amounts due from directors and a related
company

The directors consider the credit risk on
the amounts due from directors and related
company is low as no default payment
was noted. Management considers that its
credit risk has not increased significantly
since initial recognition with reference to
the counterparty historical default rate and
current financial position. The impairment
provision is determined based on the
12-month expected credit loss which is
immaterial.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R R Kzt

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

®)

Market risk

(i)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group is subject to foreign exchange
rate risk arising from transactions and
balances of its the People’s Republic
of China (“PRC”) operations which are
denominated in a currency other than its
functional currency. The Group currently
does not hedge its foreign currency
exposure.

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group’s main interest rate risk arises
from bank borrowings issued at variable
rates, which expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk. The interest rate profile of
bank borrowings are disclosed in Note 25.
The bank borrowings generate and incur
interest at the prevailing market interest
rates.

At 31 December 2024, if interest rates had
been 50 basis points higher/lower with all
other variables held constant, the Group’s
post-tax profit for the year would have been
approximately HK$393,000 higher/lower
(2023: HK$5,000 lower/higher) respectively,
mainly as a result of higher/lower (2023:
lower/higher) net interest income on bank
deposits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R & Kist

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(©

Liquidiity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to
meet its obligations when they fall due, resulting
from amount and maturity mismatches of assets
and liabilities.

The Group employs projected cash flow
analysis to manage liquidity risk by forecasting
the amount of cash required and monitoring
the Group’s working capital to ensure that all
liabilities due and known funding requirements
could be met. In order to meet their liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders and drawdown available bank
facilities. Further, management performs monthly
review of receivables and payables ageing
analysis to ensure the Group is able to maintain
sufficient financial resources to meet its liquidity
requirements and to follow up on any overdue
palances.

The table below analyses the financial liabilities
of the Group into relevant maturity groupings
based on the remaining period from the reporting
date to the contractual maturity date. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interests
payments computed using contractual rates, or
if floating, based on the current rates at the year-
end date). Where the loan agreement contains
a repayable on demand clause which gives the
lender the unconditional right to call the loan at
any time, the amounts repayable are classified in
the earliest time bracket in which the lender could
demand repayment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R R Kzt

3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continueq)

(c)  Liquidity risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2024
Trade and retention payables

Accruals and other payables

Lease and interest payments
Bank borrowings

As at 31 December 2023
Trade and retention payables

Accruals and other payables

Lease and interest payments
Bank borrowings

R2024%12 8318
2 ZEMRFIER
EfIRESR
EEtERK
HAth {1 50IR
HERF S
RITIER

2023512 A31H
B ORNFIER
EHRES
FEETER K
H bR 5K
ME R EMK
RITENK

142 WK Group (Holdings) Limited o JSLESEME (#24%) GRA

3 SREREEGE

31 SRMEABEZRE)
© mEEZEEGE
On demand From
or less 1 year Over
than 1 year to 2 years 2 years Total
DE 1226  Hi2fF st
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000
TEx TER TEx TEx
32,969 - - 32,969
8,251 - - 8,251
4,550 2,484 21 7,055
5,865 - - 5,865
51,635 2,484 21 54,140
On demand
orless From 1 year Over
than 1 year to 2 years 2 years Total
REXY
kS 1225 B2 st
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$O000  HK$000
TET FET FET FET
83,624 - - 83,624
7,958 - - 7,958
2,953 111 — 3,064
9,886 - - 9,886
104,421 111 - 104,532
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Financial risk management (Continueqd) 3 SRRAKREEE
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 SREBRAZEGEE)
(©)  Liquidity risk (Continued) © wEETERE)
The table below summarises the maturity analysis TERBABRBEERBZEFR
of bank borrowings of the Group based on Fr&l /978 TE 5HEE A AR
agreed scheduled repayments set out in the loan SEEITEROINEE S
agreements without considering the repayment (P ETREEKREE
on demand clause. The amounts include interest TR - ZEBRERE
payments computed using contractual rates. RAEAMNEFENFEN
Koo
From From
Lessthan 1yearto 2yearto Over
iyear 2years Syears 5years Total
PRME 1ZE2F 2E5F HEB5HF st
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
THr FEx FTExr TR TEx
As at 31 December 2024 202412 A31H 1,583 1,583 3,311 78 6,555
As at 31 December 2023 7202312 4310 3,852 1,787 4,943 392 10,974
3.2 Capital risk management 3.2 AXERERE

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.
The Group mainly uses equity to finance its operations.
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue
new shares or sell assets to reduce debt or repay
borrowings when cash is received from non-trade
receivables. Also, the Group continues to monitor
and maintain the sufficiency of banking facilities for its
operations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R R Kzt

3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3

3.2 Capital risk management (Continueq)

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the net debt to equity
ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by
total capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings
and lease liabilities less bank deposit with original
maturity over 3 months and cash and cash equivalents.
Total capital is calculated as “equity” as shown in the
consolidated statements of financial position.

The net debt to equity ratio were as follows:

Note
B 5
Bank borrowings RITIER 25
Lease liabilities HEaE 15
Less: bank deposit with original 8 : FRZIH H iR i@3(E
maturity over 3 months HABRITER 22
Less: Cash and cash equivalents & : 4 MRS EHEY 22
Net (cash)/debt FRe) ERFHE
Total capital BAR4EER
Net debt and equity ratio SFEB R R

* The net debt and equity ratio is N/A because the Group
was in a net cash position.

WK Group (Holdings) Limited o BLE£E (321R) BR AT
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2024 2023
20244 20234
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
5,865 9,886
6,887 3,006
(5,076) =
(99,963) (8,650)
(92,287) 4,242
253,382 136,233
N/A* 0.03
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Financial risk management (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

This section explains the judgements and estimates
made in determining the fair values of the financial
instruments that are recognised and measured at
fair value in the financial statements. To provide an
indication about the reliability of the inputs used in
determining fair value, the Group has classified its
financial instruments into the three levels prescribed
under the accounting standards. An explanation of
each level follows underneath the table.

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments traded
in active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives,
and equity securities) is based on quoted market prices
at the end of the reporting period. The quoted market
price used for financial assets held by the group is the
current bid price. These instruments are included in
level 1.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that
are not traded in an active market (for example, over-
the-counter derivatives) is determined using valuation
techniques which maximise the use of observable
market data and rely as little as possible on entity-
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair
value an instrument are observable, the instrument is
included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not
based on observable market data, the instrument is
included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity
securities and for instruments where climate risk gives
rise to a significant unobservable adjustment.

3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R R Kzt

3 Financial risk management (Continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
Level 1
E1R
HK$’000
TR
As at 31 December 2024 #2024%12831H
Financial asset SREE
Financial asset at fair value BATER AEZER

through profit or loss (Note 21) & EVEE (FFE21) =

3

TEREREE(E

3.3 RFEME (&)

Level 2
28R
HK$’000
TR

4,465

Level 3 Total
KT st
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FTER

- 4,465

As at 31 December 2023 M2023F12A31H
Financial asset SREE
Financial asset at fair value BAFEFABED
through profit or loss (Note 21) £ &EE (iH521) =

There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3 for
recurring fair value measurements during the years
ended 31 December 2023 and 2024.

(a)  Financial instruments in Level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market (for example, over-the-
counter derivatives) is determined using valuation
techniques which maximise the use of observable
market data and rely as little as possible on entity-
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required
to fair value an instrument are observable,
the instrument is included in level 2. As at 31
December 2024, the Group’s financial asset at
fair value through profit or loss are measured at
fair value through profit or loss. The fair values are
categorised as level 2 which are quoted prices
available from over-the-counter markets. See
Note 21 for disclosures relevant to financial asset
at fair value through profit or loss.
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RELE20234F K& 2024F 12 A 31
BIEFE  &KEUERAFEFE
EE1 - 238 v A -

@

HEE2R 25 TR

WIRNEFRMISEENS
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R & Kist

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continueq)

(b)  Financial instruments at amortised cost

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
assets measured at amortised costs, including
trade receivables, deposits and other receivables,
amounts due from directors, amount due from
a related company, bank deposit with original
maturity over 3 months and cash and cash
equivalents, and financial liabilities, including
trade and retention payables, other payables,
bank borrowings and lease liabilities, approximate
their fair values due to their short maturities or
the interest rates are close to the market interest
rates.

3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position where the Group currently has a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts,
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
It has also entered into arrangements that do not meet
the criteria for offsetting but still allow for the related
amounts to be set off in certain circumstances, such as
bankruptcy or the termination of a contract.

3

SREREE (2
3.3 QAT EMFE)

3.4

b) HEEKAGTEN BT
A

o=

REBIREHK AT E R
TRHEE(BHREZEK
R e M E A EYGR
A BREEIEA - B
—FRIREM A RIFIA - RE
HI B HEE3E AMRTHE
FURBRERAEEE
mEkERABEREES
FENRIA RN RES -
HAibEAFRIA - RITEK
EHEERE) REHAZ
H 5l R & B2 45 ) R 47
A MEREERELQF
EMR% -

HiEeREENERARE

EAREEER A SIEA R HH
TTRANAEHECERESE - I
BEREAREARGHEHIRARE
REENGEAEN  SRE
ERBEN EAKE  TEK
BMBHRBELFE - A%
BREI LA A EERENR
B BEETER T DARE
HAAR SRR - PIANAK AR L
BH -

Annual Report 2024 ¢ — = [FF 3R

147



148

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R R Kzt

3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities
(Continued)

The following table presents the recognised financial

TEREREE(E

34 HHEMEENERABHE)

TREJECEBHENDHEAS

instruments that are offset.

As at 31 December 2024

Financial assets

Other receivables, deposits and
prepayments

Financial liabilities
Trade and retention payables

As at 31 December 2023

Financial assets

Other receivables, deposits and
prepayments

Financial liabilities
Trade and retention payables

R2024F12A31H

SREE

HibEWGE « e REA
R

TRAE

BHRNTARENRES

M2023F12A31H

SREE

Etb R « e KIEN
R

SRARG
BARMNTERENRES

BITH-

Net amounts

Amounts presented

set off in the in the
consolidated consolidated

statement statement

Gross of financial of financial
amounts position position
SEMBRR AREBMBER
RHEKEH RRHPED
HERE ot HFRE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TET TERT
6,633 (5,603) 1,030
38,572 (5,603) 32,969
9,115 (6,690) 2,425
90,314 (6,690) 83,624

Note: As at 31 December 2024, other receivables from
subcontractors which represents labour costs of site
workers directly settled by the Group, are offset against
trade and retention payables to the same subcontractor
pursuant to the arrangements with the subcontractors,
as well as industry practice (2023: same).

WK Group (Holdings) Limited o ZLE£E (358%) BRA T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R & Kist

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are addressed below.

(@)  Revenue recognition

The Group recognises revenue according to
the progress towards complete satisfaction of
performance obligation of the individual contract of
structural steelwork. The progress is determined by
the aggregated cost for the individual performance
obligation incurred at the end of the reporting
period compared with the estimated budgeted cost.
Corresponding revenue from contract work is also
estimated by management based on the progress.
Because of the nature of the activities undertaken in the
construction contracts, the date at which the contract
activity is entered into and the date when the activity is
completed usually fall into different accounting periods.
The Group regularly reviews and revises the estimation
of contract cost in the budget prepared for each
construction contract as the contract progresses.

CEA-EarhsEl-|

st RAE S FREEITE - WIRE
BELCHRREMAZMIEL - 2EY
AREHELRAEBRABERTEE
EHTEE] o

REBERKAER AR REBR - BE
TE - SEERRLOSEMERE
RER—H - BERNRRERAHT
MR FENEER B BEOREEE
HERAENGFT RERNTXE

it o

@ AR

AR ER BR IR 5T 2 2% K 51 0 45
BIRAHNBENETNER
ERBA - BRAEERERE
MEERRERRELNEK
AEBABERARZLLHE
E o ERENTREEHANT
AR AEL &S - BR
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HE - AEESFE MR RE
AIRBHETHRAERER
EEORENEEAS QKA
FfEET o

Annual Report 2024 ¢ —Z—UFF 3}

149



150

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R R Kzt

4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

(@

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Significant judgement is required in estimating the
progress of performance and total contract costs which
may have an impact on percentage of completion of
the construction contracts and the contract revenue
and profit to be recognised in an accounting period. In
addition, actual outcome in terms of total revenue or
costs may be higher or lower than estimation at the end
of the reporting period, which would affect the revenue
and profit recognised in future years as an adjustment
to the amounts recorded to date.

Impairment of trade receivables and contract assets

The Group follows the guidance of HKFRS 9 to
determine whether trade receivables and contract
assets are impaired. Significant judgement is exercised
on the assessment of the risk of default and expected
credit losses from each customer. In making the
judgement, management considers a wide range
of factors such as results of follow-up procedures,
customer payment trends including subsequent
payments, customers’ financial positions and expected
future change of credit risks, including consideration of
factors such as general economy measure, changes in
macro-economic indicators, etc. Details of assumptions
and inputs used are discussed in Note 3.1 (a)(ii).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R & Kist

Revenue and segment information

The executive directors are identified as the chief operating
decision makers (“CODM”) of the Group who review the
Group’s internal reporting in order to assess performance
and allocate resources.

The Group’s revenue is derived from provision of structural

steelwork in Hong Kong and accordingly, there is only one
single operating segment for the Group under HKFRS 8.

Revenue

Structural steelwork i 4518 T12

All of the Group’s revenue is recognised over time
during the year.

Revenue from major customers
Revenue individually generated from the following

customers contributed more than 10% of the total
revenue of the Group:

Customer 1 EYSN
Customer 2 BE2
Customer 3 ®P3
Customer 4 =4
Customer 5 ®PF5

*

Represent less than 10% of revenue for the relevant
year.

All of the Group’s revenue is generated in Hong Kong.

WA K2 &R & #

HITESHRTR/AEEEZEER
RE((XBRERERE]  AEEH
REBARBHRE AT HER KL DEE
R o

AEBNWARBEETEREMEHE
Ti2 - Bt - REEEM RS ZER
F8i  AEEEAR —EEBNKLE

SEB o
@ WA
2024 2023
20245 20234
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHET
398,463 370,226

REBE B W AR R

b REEXEFFPHEA

RENUTEEBERIU AL A
EEBWAT0%IA F

2024 2023
20244 20234
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FAT
220,721 76,487
53,221 N/A*
N/A* 113,294
N/A* 55,205
N/A* 42,857

* HHERFERATR10% °

AEERBBRAOREBLRE
Koo
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R R Kzt

5 Revenue and segment information (Continued) 5 WARDIBER (&

(c) Segment assets and liabilities (c)

The Group monitors its total assets and liabilities
centrally in one single operating segment. The total
non-current assets other than financial instruments and
deferred income tax assets amounted to HK$5,360,000
(2023: HK$4,704,000) were located in Hong Kong and
HK$24,694,000 (2023: HK$7,262,000) were located in
the PRC as at 31 December 2024.

(d)  Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities (d)

The following table shows the revenue recognised
during the year related to carried-forward contract
liabilities.

Revenue recognised that was included & AFHE 4B FEEEHH
in the contract liability balance at the 2R A
beginning of the year
— Structural steelworks —HAEE TR

DEEENAE

REERE—KEDHERE
R@EERAE - R2024512
RB1B - FIE¥ERBEE (2
BMIARELEMSHEER
SN R £ %8755,360,0008 7T
(20234 : 4,704,000/ 7T) KY
ERMBEEMNEL M
£24,694,0007% 7T (20234 :
7,262,000/ 70) B 3E MBI E EE
IR o

FAEXNBERRHEA

TRINRRFEARGEESNE
EREREMA -

2024 2023
20245 20234
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET THET
3,196 2,200
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R & Kist

Revenue and segment information (Continued)

(e)

Unsatisfied long-term construction contracts

The following table shows unsatisfied performance
obligations resulting from long-term construction
contracts.

Aggregate amount of the transaction ~ RFRDEERETT
price allocated to long-term REFRES A
construction contracts that are RS EREE

unsatisfied as at year ended

Management expects that the transaction prices
regarding the unsatisfied contracts at the end of year
will be recognised as revenue by referencing to the
schedule below:

Within 1 year 1R
RBIE1F

Over 1 year

WAR D EBER (E

€ RETRHEZESD

TRINTEHRZESNMES
RMARBITEHORE

2024
20244
HK$’000
FHET

322,142

2023
20234
HK$'000
FAT

550,500

BEER  RERBRARBEITAH
MRS ERELEUTRERERR

L ONE

2024 2023
20244 20234
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FHET
236,684 353,646
85,458 196,854
322,142 550,500

Annual Report 2024 e — & — [JFF3f

153



154

5

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R R Kzt

Revenue and segment information (Continued)

)

Accounting policies of revenue recognition

()

Revenue from provision of structural steelwork

The Group recognises revenue upon the transfer
of control of promised goods or services to
customers, measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, and
represents amounts for the construction service
rendered in the ordinary course of the Group’s
activities. The Group is acting as a principal rather
than as an agent given that the Group integrates
the materials, labor and equipment into the
deliverables promised to the customers.

Revenue is recognised over time as the
Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date. The Group has applied the
input method in recognising the revenue from
construction contracts over time by reference to
the Group’s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction
on a performance obligation (for example,
subcontracting fees and cost of materials) relative
to the total expected inputs to the satisfaction of
the performance obligation, that best depict the
Group’s performance in transferring control of
goods or services. When the Group is not able to
reasonably measure its performance progress,
the Group recognises revenue only to the extent
of the recoverable amount of costs incurred until
such time that it can reasonably measure the
performance progress.
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5

WA R 3B (42
0 ARBERE K

@)

FEIAE 1B T FE A A

AEBHERTFER AR
5 Wl AR 2R O e ey
BN - e WA
BHAFERE  WHEA
SEELEXBADBE
PRHEEZERBNESE -
ERAEE KA - 8

NEBREEEEABRN
BEFHRR  AREER
RREAMIFRIBAITE

EAKENEQLEAIR
BEEBRAENEE M
REBHZSETHELD
B R B 98 B BT AR
A WA BER EHERR o ZX
SEDHRARAZLZR
REBEERBEAORERR
ERHHEA (ISR
B R R HRAR) BER
AR E R R B RBR AN SR
BRNEBE ek R
BT EMNROB MRS
BEMBIRA) B M
RIEEAHWA ° ALK
BT EER B EREOE
€ - NREBEAREMAIE
AERNERRCELEMN
A2 AI Y Bl & B R IR FE R
YA o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R & Kist

5 Revenue and segment information (Continued)

()  Accounting policies of revenue recognition (Continued)

@)

Revenue from provision of structural steelwork
(Continued)

Contracts

The Group derives revenue primarily from
provision of structural steelwork, including supply,
fabrication and installation of structural steel
for construction projects in Hong Kong under
contracts with customers, subject to modification
or variation orders.

Performance Obligations

A performance obligation is a contractual
promise to transfer a distinct good or service
to a customer and is the unit of account under
HKFRS 15. Contracts of the Group often require
significant services to integrate materials and
various activities (which are closely related and
inter-dependent) into a single deliverable and
are therefore generally accounted for as a single
performance obligation. Contract amendments or
variation orders, which are generally not distinct
from the existing contract, are typically accounted
for as a modification of the existing contract and
performance obligation.

5
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R R Kzt

Revenue and segment information (Continued)

()  Accounting policies of revenue recognition (Continued)

@)

Revenue from provision of structural steelwork
(Continued)

Variable considerations

The nature of the Group’s contracts give rise
to certain of variable consideration, including
variation orders. The Group recognises amount
of variable consideration (for example, scope
changes, performance bonus or claims, if any),
which it will be entitled using the expected value
method, in the transaction price only to the extent
that is highly probable that such an inclusion will
not result in a significant revenue reversal in the
future when the uncertainty associated with the
variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

Factors to be considered in determining whether
revenue associated with variable considerations
should be recognised include whether there is
evidence supporting the variable consideration to
be reasonable, objective and reliably estimated.

When there is change in circumstances, the
Group updates the estimated transaction price
(including updating its assessment of whether an
estimate of variable consideration is constrained)
to better predict the circumstances present at the
end of the reporting period and the changes in
circumstances during the reporting period.

WK Group (Holdings) Limited o BLE£E (321R) BR AT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R & Kist

5 Revenue and segment information (Continued)

()  Accounting policies of revenue recognition (Continued)

@)

Revenue from provision of structural steelwork
(Continued)

Transaction price

Transaction price should be adjusted whenever
the contract includes a significant financing
component. Amount retained by the customer in
a long-term arrangement, referred to as retention,
are usually intended to provide the customer with
a form of security that the Group will perform
as specified under the contract, rather than to
provide the customer with a significant financing
benefit.

The payment terms differ for different customers
due to the variety of projects. Most of the
payment is payable according to the stage of
construction with credit term of 30 to 60 days.
10% of the value of work done, subject to a cap
of 5% of the total contract sum, may be withheld
by the customers and recognised as retention
receivables, which would be paid after the
retention period expires. Retention receivables,
prior to expiration of defect liability period, are
classified as contract assets. The Group does
not intend to give financing to customers and the
Group makes efforts to collect the receivables
and timely monitor the credit risk. The contract
does not have a significant financing component
as the payments are in accordance with the
typical payment terms of the relevant industry,
which has a primary purpose other than financing.
The Group does not expect to have any other
significant contracts where the period between
the transfer of the promised goods or services
to the customer and payment by the customer
exceeds one year. As a consequence, the Group
does not adjust transaction prices for the time
value of money.

5
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R R Kzt

5 Revenue and segment information (Continued) 5 WARDIBER (&
() Accounting policies of revenue recognition (Continued) M  WAERHSETEE (&
(a)  Revenue from provision of structural steelwork (@) FEHMAERE T FEAMA
(Continued) (&
Contract modifications EREET
The Group accounts for a modification if the inE A s PIESE DR
customer to a contract approves a change in HERBHREITIENR » &K
the scope or price of a contract. A contract EEERETAKR - ES
modification is approved when the modification PEFTEERREENT
creates or changes the enforceable rights and P EY AT 58 Bl I TRE A 3
obligations of the customer to the contract. R RlgESRE
Al e
6  Other income and other loss, net 6 HtWARHEMEERE
2024 2023
2024F 2023%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FH&T
Other income Hih A
Government grants (Note a) BT B (B sEa) 17 181
Other loss, net HibErig 35
Change in value of life insurance ASRBELOEBEEEZD)
contracts (Note 20) (Ft3E20) 182 (405)
Fair value loss on financial assets at fair ~ EZ AP EFABSHNERIEE
value through profit or loss (Note 21) A EEE (fiEE21) (535) -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEYE - BEMEEN
equipment [5gi] - (79
(353) (484)
Note: PEE
(@)  Grants from the government are recognised at their fair @ EReHA MR E B AT ER K
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant REBBFTE AR IRER K
will be received and the Group will comply with all attached B E AT EREDR -
conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R & Kist

Expenses by nature 7

Cost of materials MEHRK AR

Subcontracting fees HBEER

Employee benefit expenses (including directors’ /g E & FIFI X (B1EE =
remuneration) (Note 8) B<) (H5E8)

Auditor’s remuneration — audit services ZE AN & — |AX RS

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1% - Bz KR ETE
(Note 14) (F5E14)

Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 15)  {# FI#EEEHTE (M13E15)
Expense relating to short-term leases (Note 15) E255 HAfH E 5 REHY

sz (FtsE15)
Transportation expenses EF
Consultancy fees &
Testing expenses B R
Machinery service expenses AR TS B
Legal and professional fees FEREREXER
Other expenses HibF
Total cost of services and administrative RRISAK AR RITIR A SZ 48 58

expenses

BEMEE DX
2024 2023
20245 20234
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHET
114,653 138,779
140,379 104,032
40,233 40,743
1,800 1,000
2,586 1,849
5,282 3,956
744 486
7,977 5,608
435 501
5,905 3,607
15,327 9,177
3,163 749
15,120 7,769
353,604 318,256
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R R Kzt

8 Employee benefit expenses (including directors’ 8 EERIBX(BEEEMHS)
remuneration)

2024 2023
20245 20234
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FAT
Salaries, wages and bonuses He TBRIEA 35,840 37,941
Pension costs — defined contribution plan 3B S A — S EHFZEE 1,747 1,476
Other welfare and allowances H b ta Al K2 Bk 2,646 1,326
40,233 40,743
Representing: 15
Cost of services BRAG R AN 26,435 29,407
Administrative expenses TR 13,798 11,336
40,233 40,743
There were no forfeited contributions utilised by the Group to REE2024F12H31HIEFE * K
reduce its contributions during the year ended 31 December S B30 R B A 202 W SR DA R 44
2024 (2023: same). There was no balance available as at 31 X (20234 : #8[E]) © 720245124
December 2024 to reduce future contributions (2023: same). 318 -+ WHER] AR LAFIR AR R (3K

(20234 : #[R) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R & Kist

9  Benefits and interests of directors 9 EEFIRAZE
(@)  Directors’ emoluments @ ZEZ=#e
The remuneration of each director paid/payable for HE2024%F [22023%F 12 A31H
each of the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023 tFEEFERM EBRHSES
are set out below: EFMEHINT -
Employer's
Contribution

toa
Allowance retirement

Discretionary  and benefits benefit

Name of directors Fees Salaries bonuses in kind scheme Total
R EEEH

By ik it 20 BRlE  BAHEMER h

HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TR TR

For the year ended HE2024512531R

31 December 2024 LEE
Executive director Bi7EE
M. Chan Kam Kei Raffh - 1,440 344 - 18 1,802
Mr. Chan Kam Kong BEILE - 2,400 1,048 = 18 3466
Ms. Chan Suk Man ke - 1,440 312 - 18 1,770
Non-executive director HiTEs
M. Chan Wing Hong RkELE - 1,200 439 - - 1,639
Mr. Choi Chick Cheong BEERT - 600 130 - - 730

Independent non-executve ~ BUFHTES

director
Mr. Cha Ho Wa BRELE 123 = = = = 123
Mr. Yu Chun Kit GG S 123 = = = = 123
Mr. Liu Chi Kiwun Albert BEERE 123 = = = = 123
Total @t 369 7,080 2273 = 54 9,776
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Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Name of directors

EE32

For the year ended
31 December 2023

Executive director

Mr. Chan Kam Kei

Mr. Chan Kam Kong

Ms. Chan Suk Man

Non-executive director
Mr. Chan Wing Hong
Mr. Choi Chick Cheong

Total

B22023F 12331
LEE

#rEez

REERE

R&TiE

[yE3en

FUES

BRERt

3t

WK Group (Holdings) Limited o BLE£E (321R) BR AT

Benefits and interests of directors (Continued)

9 EEEMNRANZE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R R Kzt

@ EZEEMe@

Employer's

Contribution to

Alowance  aretirement

Discretionary ~ and benefits beneft
Fees Salaries bonuses in kind scheme Total

B R EXRIE
fe Hé B Bnis  BRREMSE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tin Thn Thr Thr Thr i
- 1,443 222 - 18 1,683
430 2,759 424 - 18 3,631
- 1,235 190 - 18 1,443
1,043 - 210 - - 1,263
480 - 120 - - 600
1,953 5437 1,166 - 54 8,610
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R & Kist

Benefits and interests of directors (Continued)

(@)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

The remunerations shown above represent
remunerations received from the Operating Entities
by these directors in their capacity as employees
to Operating Entities and no directors waived any
emoluments during each of the years ended 31
December 2024 and 2023.

Directors’ termination benefits

No payment was made to the directors as
compensation for the early termination of the
appointment during the year (2023: same).

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

No payment was made to the former employer of the
directors for making available the services of them as
a director of the Company or Operating Entities during
the year (2023: same).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings
in favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by
and connected entities with such directors.

Other than those disclosed in Note 27, there were
no loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour
of any directors, controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with any directors during the year
(2023: same).

9

EEEARFEE

(@)

E=Me @@

FHNIEZEESUEER
KEBBREREFHAELEER
WEBHEHH - 8E2024F K
202312 A31HILEERE -
WRBBEREE S -

S EBERAER

RER - BEAES S AET0
REEARERIEZTNHEE
(20234 : #[R) °

MIRHEBERBAFE =M
HHRAE

RER - BEOESEHNATE
EXMERFIR - SREUR
RAREZERESTNEMNIE
HARTS (20234 : #EA) °

BRENES  HEREFTY
MZENEEEECERR
HX@mAZER  EEREEAM
R52ER

BRI EE27 P IBEH SN - RF
N BMEANINES BB H
EEEAEE R EELARE
CERR/REBAZER £
ERREMRZ S (20235 : 1
) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R R Kzt

9 Benefits and interests of directors (Continued)

)

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Other than those disclosed in Note 27, no significant
transactions, arrangements or contracts in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company or
Operating Entities were a party and in which the
directors of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year (2023: same).

Five highest paid individuals

For each of the years ended 31 December 2024
and 2023, the 5 individuals whose emoluments
were the highest in the Group include 4 directors,
whose emoluments were reflected in Note 9(a). The
emoluments paid to the remaining 1 individual are as
follows:

Salaries, wages and bonuses Fe  TEREL
Pension costs — defined contribution 3Rk & Ak AN —
plan REHREE

WK Group (Holdings) Limited o BLE£E (321R) BR AT

9

EEEARFEE

)

EENRS  RFEREHTH
EARES

BREE27FTIBEE SN + AAA]
DE Ny T VTN
SEEKEBRARAESER
HbmeEEMEEAER
i B 6 R 8 B A ) B R 0 R
FBENEARS REHHAEL
(20234 : #8[A) °

hasEEHMAL

H 22024 ;2023F 12 A31H
FEFEEF  AEERAEES
FIMATBE4BES  BEZ
BRI FE9(@) Rt - 5 F ok
T—BAATHBEEIINT

2024 2023
20244 20234
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
907 775

18 18

925 793




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R & Kist

9 Benefits and interests of directors (Continued)

)

Five highest paid individuals (Continueq)

The emoluments of above individuals are within the
following band:

Emolument band B4 & E

Within HK$ 1,000,000

No incentive payment for joining the Group or
compensation for loss of office was paid or payable to
any of the five highest paid individuals during the year
(2023: same).

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Cha Ho Wa, Mr. Yu Chun Kit and Mr. Liu Chi Kwun
Albert were appointed as the Company’s independent
non-executive directors on 5 February 2024. During the
year ended 31 December 2023, the independent non-
executive directors were not yet appointed and did not
receive any directors’ remuneration in the capacity of
independent non-executive directors.

{£#21,000,0007% 7T

9 EBEMNRANEE

)

hEREHMALGE)

EA TR S TR AT &
:

Number of individuals

AE
2024 2023
20245 20234
1 1

RER - BERAFEUAEES
AT XN RIEER
IAZE B A SR E BB (E
(20234 : #8[A) -

BUIFATES

BRELE  REFELEERE
EBEEAER2024F 250 #
ZAABARBZBILIERITE
F o REE2023F 124318 1F
FE BUFNTEETHRE
ZARGEABLIFERNITES
W EHRETRESIE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R R Kzt

10 Finance income/(costs), net

FATEUA

Finance income:
— Interest income from bank deposits

— Unwinding of discount impact —FRBRBRER
Finance costs: BATSR A -

— Interest expense on bank borrowings
— Interest expense on lease liabilities

(Note 15) (FFzE15)
Finance income/(costs), net BRI (B AN) JF 58
11 Income tax expense
Current income tax BNERFT1S TR

Deferred income tax (Note 16) BIEFTSEL (F1EE16)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and the British Virgin Islands, the Company and
WK Development are not subject to any income tax in the
Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands.

Wing Kei Hong Kong and Wing Kei Management are subject
to Hong Kong profits tax. Hong Kong profits tax is calculated
at 16.5% (2023: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits
during the year, except for one entity of the Group that is
qualified under the two-tiered profits tax rate regime, under
which the first HK$2.0 million of its assessable profits are
taxed at 8.25% and the remaining assessable profits are
taxed at 16.5% (2023: same).

WK Group (Holdings) Limited o BLE£E (321R) BR AT

— IRITERASIA

— IRITRERHAM BRI
—HERENHNEMX

10

11

BB A (RA) R

2024 2023

20244 20234
HK$’000 HK$’000

FHT THET

603 181

- 26

603 207
(386) (446)
(193) (216)
(579) 662)
24 (455)

FriE%imx

2024 2023

20244 20234

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET T

8,221 8,688
(76) (240)

8,145 8,448

BERENERABEXRHSHAIR
YERR - ANA R KWK Development#
ARFASHERREBELHSHENET
AIFF1S R ©

KEFB M Wing Kei ManagementZ&
BAMBEEFNEH - RER - BEF
BB IR ERT & FE16.5%
(2023%F : 16.5%) 5T H * HAEE—
FEEFEFEHMARS - FILEE
RER A E2.08 BB TiE8.25%:T
E o Mes T EFRRUEFIBIIE16.5%5
(20234 : #8[A) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4

Income tax expense (Continued) 11

Provision for Mainland China corporate income tax is
calculated at the statutory rate of 25% (2023: 25%) on the
assessable income of Wing Kei Dongguan during the year.

FrPTIS B AT &

HERARSEER, L EE
A2 AR EREE

Profit before income tax

Tax calculated at domestic tax rates
applicable to profits in the respective

countries/places of business ZBiE
Tax effects of: AN BB BT E
Income not subject to tax BERBIURA

Expenses not deductible for tax purpose A FIFF X

Earnings per share
(@) Basic earnings per share

The basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing
the profit attributable to owners of the Company by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in
issue during the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023:
same).

On 8 March 2024, 1,499,999,999 shares were
issued under capitalisation issue. On the same date,
500,000,000 shares were issued by way of Share Offer
upon the Company’s Listing.

For the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, the
weighted average number of ordinary shares used for
the purpose of calculating basic earnings per share has
been retrospectively adjusted for the effect of the issue
of shares in connection with the capitalisation issue of
1,499,999,999 shares which took place on 8 March
2024 (Note 23).

Eupy ES e S

FrEHmx (&)

RERN - PEAM D EFREHREER
KEREE E’J%‘%@aﬂ&)\iu&@ﬁ+
25% (20234 : 25%) 518

(@)

12 SREF

2024 2023
20245 20234
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT T
39,645 33,653
7,071 8,359
(190) (28)
1,264 117
8,145 8,448
EREEARZF

BRERBNITIRANARES
ARG MR AB ZE2024 5
12A3MALEFEEETERKR

IHEFE AT E (20234 « 4R
&) o
202443 H8H - 1,499,999,999

A DRI E AL 3178 1T © [A)
H © 500,000,000 [% 17 A A A
A)_E TR AR DB E BT o

HE2024%F 2023F12 A 31
HIEFE  RAESRELRR
FIFTRA L @A nsE F39 8 -
B E2024F3 A8H#ETE RN
E1TM3171,499,999,999 J% i%
MEFEE - ERBWAE (M
23) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R R Kzt

12 Earnings per share (Continued) 12

(@) Basic earnings per share (Continued)

Profit attributable to owners of the RATEE AEIL R
Company (HK$'000) (F#7T)

Weighted average number of ordinary £ 31T & @A INHE ¥ 1592
shares in issue ('000) (Fhx)

Basic earnings per share (in HK cents) & REAREF| AELE)

(b)  Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share presented is the same as the
basic earnings per share as there were no potentially
dilutive ordinary shares in issue as at 31 December
2024 (2023: same).

13 Dividend 13

During the year ended 31 December 2023, dividends of
HK$20,000,000 were declared and settled by a subsidiary of
the Company to its then shareholders.

In January 2024, the Company declared dividend of
approximately HK$26,586,000 of which approximately
HK$10,000,000 will be settled by cash and approximately
HK$16,586,000 was offset against the aggregate amounts
due from the directors and the related company.

The Board resolved not to recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: nil).

168 WK Group (Holdings) Limited o BLE£E (321R) BR AT

BRER (E

(@) BRELXRBFNGE)

2024 2023
20244 20234
31,500 25,205

1,908,219 1,500,000

1.65 1.68

b) SREEEF

FEFHEREERFEGR
EARBFER - TIER20245F
12A31 B ED BT EEERE
LAY (20234 ¢ MAME) -

’E

REE2023F12A31HILEE - K
Nal—EMBARMEERRESTIR
R KR B.20,000,000/8 7T ©

R2024F1 A ARFIEEIRKEL
26,586,000/ 7T * E.H1%710,000,000
BB AR & 48 - 4916,586,000
V8 7T B S PE U =5 T G R RIEKIE

EEBATERIEE2024F128
31 IEFEIRFREIR B (20234
) o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R & Kist

14 Property, plant and equipment

14 Y% BERRKHE

Furniture,
fixtures
Machinery Leasehold and office Motor
and equipment  improvements equipment vehicles Total
B BERE
BERRE  AENERE  RBLAZRE RE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERL THEL THL FHx TARL
Year ended 31 December #Z2024%12831H
2023 LLEE
Opening net book amount 4 #1BRES (& 4,226 569 106 2,199 7,100
Additions for the year ERRE 13 1,061 64 286 1,424
Depreciation charge (Note 7) $T&Rx (Ffz17) (672) (447) (60) (670) (1,849)
Disposal e - = = (79 79
Currency translation EhnE (108) © - - (114)
Closing net book amount ~ FREEEFE 3,462 1,174 110 1,736 6,482
At 31 December 2023  7A2023%12A31H
Cost A 7,775 3,897 817 6,480 18,969
Accumulated depreciation  ZzHH7E (4313 (2,729 (707) (4,744) (12,487)
Net book amount REFE 3,462 1174 110 1,736 6,482
Year ended 31 December #Z2024512831H
2024 LEE
Opening net book amount  E4IBRE (& 3,462 1,174 10 1,736 6,482
Additions for the year ERFE 8,458 6,991 11 1477 17,087
Depreciation charge (Note 7) #7&R % (Ffzt7) (745) (1,135) (55) (651) (2,586)
Reclassfication from BFREEEENAE
right-of-use assets (Note) ~ (F{3%) - - - 684 684
Currency translation ERRE (265) (149) ) ] (#17)
Closing net book amount ~ EREEEFE 10,910 6,887 164 3,239 21,200
At 31 December 2024  7A2024%12F31H
Cost A 15,808 10,645 913 8,624 35,990
Accumulated depreciation  Z:t#7E (4,898) (3,758) (749) (5,385) (14,790)
Net book amount RETE 10,910 6,887 164 3,239 21,200

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2024, a motor vehicle

has been transferred from right-of-use assets.

MI5E : B ZE2024%12A31BIEFE » —
B E AR A R o
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14

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost
less depreciation. Historical cost include expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged
to the consolidated statements of comprehensive income
during the financial year in which they are incurred.

Depreciation on assets is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate their costs net of their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Machinery and equipment 31to 10 years

Leasehold improvements  Shorter of lease term or 10 years

Furniture, fixtures and 5 years
office equipment
Motor vehicles 4- 10 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each year.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised in
the consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

WK Group (Holdings) Limited o BLE£E (321R) BR AT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R R Kzt

14 Y% - BMEKRRE(E

WE - BE RREBRELRARITE
SRR - BELABREBEZEHEERE
BEGA S

&P AE 72 B1IR B AERR RO R RS
F R AT BE R A SR B N A% TR B AN RE
AT EMNBRT - HEFAR
ERmEXBERRBINEE (WNE
) - BEEMOMEEER LR -
FTAE S R ERERNEEENT I
FEBHFEEZEBRARIR

BEZHTERRERENE  E#UT
At Al B F AL B R RIRE
BRI

MR R 3E10%F
THEMZEEE FAHRSR104F (AR
RE A%
B BEEERSF
NN
= AT10%F

BEMNFREERAIERFHNSF
RTNER - UFHEEHE -

HEERMESKNEMGTTEDE
7 R SEEREENRERR
Y ElEH o

& W R 1R 538 B L B P 1S 5R
HEEMERTE - INEGRE2EBAK
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R & Kist

15 Leases

This note provides information for leases where the Group is
a lessee.

(i) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position

The consolidated statement of financial position shows
the following amounts relating to leases:

Right-of-use assets EREEE
Leased premises HEWE
Leasehold land HELTH
Motor vehicle E
Lease liabilities HESE
Current portion BNERER 5>
Non-current portion JERNHAER

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the year
ended 31 December 2024 amounted to approximately
HK$9,074,000 (2023: nil).

15

HE

Rt AR A R EERABE AR

EHER -

) REAMBRRAKRERNETE

REMBARRKRINRATER

HEMSE
2024 2023
20245 20234
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHET
7,955 4,551
224 242
- 691
8,179 5,484
4,404 2,896
2,483 110
6,887 3,006

HZE2024F12A31HILFE - 8
B EINE #9/59,074,00008 7T (2023

£ -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R R Kzt

15 Leases (Continued) 15

(i)  Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income

HE (&

(i) MEEEEBRARBERNEER

Depreciation of right-of-use assets FEREEENE AT

as included in: (Note 7) I8 - (MEET)
— Cost of services — RS
— Administrative expenses —1THAX

Interest expenses on lease liabilites ~ FAE & EF| B
(Note 10) (FFzE10)

Expenses relating to short-term leases E245 HATH E A RIRIFI S
(included in cost of services) (Note 7)  GGFABRIEE ) (Fit317)

The interest rate of each lease contract is fixed at
its contract date, and the interest rates of the lease
liabilities ranged from 2.88% to 3.65% per annum as at
31 December 2024 (2023: 2.88% to 4.2%).

The total cash outflows for leases including payments
of short-term leases, lease liabilities and payments
of interest expenses on leases for the year ended 31
December 2024 were approximately HK$5,970,000
(2023: HK$4,969,000).

172 WK Group (Holdings) Limited o JSLESEME (#24%) GRA

2024 2023
20244 20234
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHET
5,159 3,757
123 199
5,282 3,956
193 216

744 486

EHEANNAEREEGY
AEIETE ' 12024412731
H:FEHEBGEHNFREN
T2.88% = 3.65% (20234 :
2.88%%4.2%) °

HZE2024F 12831 B IEFER
HER R ETE(PIEEHE
ENF HERBEREERNS
B 2 1 30 49 485,970,00058 7T
(20234 : 4,969,000/ 7T) °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R & Kist

15 Leases (Continued)

(i)

The Group’s leasing activities and how these are
accounted for

The right-of-use assets represent the Group’s rights to
use the underlying leased premises, leasehold land and
motor vehicle under lease arrangements over the lease
terms from 2 to 50 years. They are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. Such determination
is made on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement, regardless of whether the arrangements
take the legal form of a lease.

Leases are initially recognised as a right-of-use asset
and corresponding liability at the date of which the
leased asset is available for use by the Group. Each
lease payment is allocated between the principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or
loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability for each period. The right-of-use asset is
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of
the asset’s estimated useful life and the lease term.

15 HE#E

(i)

AEBNHERSRARG

FEREEEEASERN2E50
FORHARBEHEERZHER
HEAEYER  HETRA
BN o EREEERKAK
BWREITE R RFRERED
o

11 7 5= [ 52 A 2R TR & B P A
P B EE — BB [ B o PR 42 I 4
BREABIRARE  AlB—AR
HE— RN FEREA L HEE
REBEHRE - ZEBEHRY
BERAZHERATOFGMmE
b TRERELHEREEBAR
AHE -

HENMTERREREEE
WHEREEEAHAKEEH
ERRRAMEEARE BEHE
NRDDEERS M BK
Ko BHHRARBHANEBR
NE: - UFFE LB MR A&
BOEEEYPNE - EREE
ENEEEMRFTAIERFEHK
HEHEREE LNEREE -

Annual Report 2024 ¢ — = [FF 3R

173



174

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R R Kzt

15 Leases (Continued)

(i)

The Group’s leasing activities and how these are
accounted for (Continueq)

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease
payments:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

° variable lease payment that are based on an
index or a rate;

° amounts expected to be payable by the lessee
under residual value guarantees;

° the exercise price of a purchase option if the
lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that
option;

° payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if
the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that
option; and

° lease payments to be made under reasonably
certain extension options are also included in the
measurement of lease liabilities.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases of the
Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment with similar terms, security and
conditions.

WK Group (Holdings) Limited o BLE£E (321R) BR AT

15 HE#E

(i)

AEENHERDHRARSR
(&)

MEELENEERAGBNIR
REFE -HEABESFENUT
HEMNKFRE

BENF(BEEEETE
TR Rk A fr] B W AE 55 5%
B

o  EREEEMEMAIEHE
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o FHEBEERTHAEA
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e BEZREBEMITEMER
(i A & 32 b W TE 1T
{E%IBRERE) -
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s HEREBEWFENEESR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R & Kist

15 Leases (Continued)

(i)

The Group’s leasing activities and how these are
accounted for (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising
the following:

° the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liabilities;

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentive
received; and

° any initial direct costs.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line
basis as an expense. Short-term leases are leases with
a lease term of 12 months or less.

Some of the property leases include extension options.
These terms are used to maximise operational flexibility
in terms of managing contracts. The extension options
held are exercisable only by the Group and not by the
respective lessor. The Group considers all facts and
circumstances that create an economic incentive to
exercise an extension option in determining the lease
term. The assessment is revised if a significant event
or a significant change in circumstances occurs which
affects the assessment.

15 HE#E

(i)

AEENHEERHRARSTR
(&)

GBI T A
BAHE -

s MEEREWYVIZFFER
L

o KB R ZATFTIER
ERIEE R - JRPT YR
EERE S 52E - &

o (EAAEREAA o

HEPHERKEEEERE
RN IR E S AER AR
¥ o REMEE N A12(EA
FUATHIFAE -

MoMEHEREEHREE
- FEGRFIAREEEAD
FHEAREEHREEENE
AE - BREERERARE
MIERBAEEAITE - XEH
ERMEGRERESHANS
BERER - RETHEBEITE
BREERE - WEBREREN
ENEREHFHIEANERE
£ Rl EETIERT -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R R Kzt

16 Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when

there is a legally enforceable right to offset current income tax

recoverable against current income tax liabilities and when

the deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to income

tax levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable

entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention

to settle the balances on a net basis. The offset amounts are

as follows:

Deferred income tax assets

Set-off of deferred tax liabilities pursuant

to set-off provisions

Deferred income tax liabilities

Set-off of deferred tax assts pursuant to

set-off provisions

BEFSHEE

BfE

BLEMBHRAR

BE

The movements in deferred income tax assets, without taking
into consideration the offsetting of balances within the same

tax jurisdiction, are as follows:

At 1 January 2023

Credited/(charged) to the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income

Exchange difference

At 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024

Charged to the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income
Exchange difference

At 31 December 2024

176

R2023F1 A1H
REEA2ERARA/ (05)

[ =R
R20235F12A318 &

2024F1 A1H
Riza2ERARMR

ERrRa=t
W2024F12A31H

WK Group (Holdings) Limited o BLE£E (321R) BR AT

IRFEIH R R ETR IR

RFEIH RS R ERIR

16 EEFIEH

BBVATE A] 98 B BT THE A # R Uk [l BT
HIFGHENRMAEHRaERERE
BERFSHEER B BER—HBHE

BA L A% B RR B B B8 K T R B AR AR

BRI RSHAREERERERF
BEEGEEERE
MEERAE - BESBOT

AR IR TS

2024 2023
20244 20234
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT THET
2,731 1,811
(1,882) (1,038)
849 773
1,882 1,038
(1,882) (1,038)

RBFREMR BDEE RN IHEG
7 BIEFSHEENEEIT

Lease

Provision liabilities Total
s HEaE @t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$°000
TET TET TET
899 1,597 2,496
260 (908) (648)
- 37) 37)

1,159 652 1,811

10 950 960
- (40) (40)

1,169 1,562 2,731

ey

HiE=



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R & Kist

16 Deferred income tax (Continueq)

The movements in deferred income tax liabilities, without
taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within the
same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:

At 1 January 2023 #2023F1A1H

Credited to the consolidated statements of ~ REGFAZERAREA
comprehensive income

Exchange difference e E

At 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024 #2023F 12318 K%
2024F1A1H
Charged to the consolidated statements of W44 2ERAR IR
comprehensive income

Exchange difference ERES
At 31 December 2024 H2024F12A31H

The Group has certain undistributed earnings which, if paid
out as dividends, would be subject to tax in the hands of the
recipient. An assessable temporary difference exists, but no
deferred tax liability has been recognised as the Group is able
to control the timing of distribution from its PRC subsidiary
and is not expected to distribute these profits in the
foreseeable future. Except for the above, as at 31 December
2024, there was no significant unrecognised deferred tax for
the Group (2023: same).

16 EZEFBHR(E)
K&t R EMR AR K IKHE A
g BIEASEHaENESHNT

Accelerated
tax  Right-of-use

depreciation assets Total
MERERE EREEE @t
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TR TR TR

(370) (1,592) (1,962)

38 850 888

- 36 36

(332) (706) (1,038)

(65) (819) (884)

- 40 40

(397) (1,485) (1,882)

AEBEFETADREF - WEA
BB - WA SBENBIE - 77
FRERHEREEEE  AUWERREL
MIBAE - HEASEsesiz+ E
WBARKMDIREMRE - BFEHI~ER
AFERREDIEZEEF - B EX
Frat &5 - 7H2024F12A31H » K
B EE AR ERIELERIE (2023
F : R °
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17 Financial instruments by category 17 RERESWEmIA
2024 2023
20244 20234
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FHET

Assets as per consolidated statement AR RARFTITEE
of financial position

Financial assets measured at amortised RESER AT EN S REE
cost
— Trade receivables (Note 18) — B ZEWIE (3E18) 63,874 43,199
— Other receivables and deposits —Hih G Rige 1,030 2,405
(excluding prepayments and tax (TeRBENTER
receivables) (Note 18) FEURIR) (M97E18)
— Amounts due from directors (Note 27)  — fEURE T 708 (Ff5E27) - 759
— Amount due from a related company — JER —FEREEE A B 5K IE - 11,627
(Note 27) (FFzE27)
— Bank deposit with original maturity over  — R 2| Hi B fB:&31E A /)R 5,076 =
3 months (Note 22) 1R (HEE22)
— Cash and cash equivalents (Note 22) - BeMRSFEY 99,963 8,650
(Mt5r22)
169,943 66,640
Financial asset at fair value through RAFEFABRNSRE 4,465 =
profit or loss (Note 21) = (frsE21)
Total st 174,408 66,640
Liabilities as per consolidated HBEMBRRRAREE
statement of financial position
Financial liabilities measured at amortised RHEHEKATENSRARE
cost
— Trade and retention payables (Note 24)  — & 5 JE ZE K FEHRFE 32,969 83,624
& (fiE24)
— Accruals and other payables (excluding  — fE&HE A & Efth fE{~ 5k 1E 8,251 7,932
non-financial liabilities) (Note 24) (TefEEemams)
(Mt5E24)
— Bank borrowings (Note 25) — 8RIT{E R (B 3E25) 5,865 9,886
— Lease liabilities (Note 15(i) —HEa & FIEE15() 6,887 3,006
Total FoH 53,972 104,448
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18 Trade and other receivables

(@)

Trade receivables

Trade receivables

Less: provision for impairment

(Note 3.1(a)(i)

Trade receivables, net

B 5 e ERIA
B BB
(Bft3E3.1(a)(i)

B 5 R IRH R

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables based on

invoice date is as follows:

Within 90 days
91 - 180 days
Over 180 days

90KA
91E 180K
180K £

The credit terms provided to customers mainly range

from 30 to 60 days. The Group’s trade receivables are

denominated in HK$ (2023: same).

18

EZ RHAEMEYRE

(@ EBHZEEFE

2024 2023
20244 20234
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
67,870 46,063
(3,996) (2,864)
63,874 43,199

ERNBZBHINE 5 EWHIEA
RIEBRIR DTN -

2024 2023
20244 20234
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
64,042 43,077
- 376

3,828 2,610
67,870 46,063

REFEFMNEEHEENT
30E60K - KEEME FEU
FRIB YA TTEHE (20234 « 417
) e
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18 Trade and other receivables (Continued)

Other receivables, deposits and prepayments

Prepayments for structural steelwork

Other prepayments H AR FRIE

Other receivables E b FE U RIE

Other tax receivables HAb EUHIE
Deposits B

Deferred listing expenses (Note) EE RS (FE)
Prepayment for listing expenses B LAY

Less: Non-current deposits

Current portion BNERER 5>

Note: Deferred listing expenses are deducted from equity
upon listing.

The other receivables and deposits are denominated in
HK$ (2023: same). None of the other receivables and
deposits were impaired.

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables
approximate their fair values. The maximum exposure
to credit risk at the end of each reporting period is
the carrying amount of each class of trade and other
receivables mentioned above.

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
services performed in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of trade and other receivables is expected in
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer), they are classified as current assets.
If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

WK Group (Holdings) Limited o BLE£E (321R) BR AT

R FERNERRR S

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R R Kzt

18 EFNHMEWRIE(Z

(b)

MEm I RTANKIEA

Hi IR - e RBMR
A

2024 2023
20244 20234
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FAT
5,117 2,254
184 223

77 43
1,153 2,911
953 2,362

- 4,661

- 166

7,484 12,620
(675) =
6,809 12,620

PRt - RIE EMRS R LW B
kR

Hth fEUCRIR R IR & LB T At
18 (20234 : 1R - BEEA
FEWRIB RR3Z S RE ©

B 5 Rk E WA M Bk E E
BEHENFERE - RERSEH
AEHEERRR LA SER
B 5 K EAMEWFRIENKE
18 o

B REFAEDERELR X
BBz e AR T e M & P
WERB)FRIR - 8 5 R E (b &
WHRRTERT R — F R E R A
MR (ER - RIREBHIESR
REBEHA) WE - BIRE DR
RRBEE > BAE/ERD
BESR -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R & Kist

18 Trade and other receivables (Continued)

(b)

Other receivables, deposits and prepayments
(Continued)

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the
amount of consideration that is unconditional, unless
they contain significant financing components, when
they are recognised at fair value. Other receivables
are recognised initially at fair value. The Group holds
the trade and other receivables with the objective of
collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore
measures them subsequently at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment.

19 Contract assets and contract liabilities

Included in contract assets/(liabilities) are the following:

Contract assets BHEE
Unbilled revenue FAZWA

Retention receivables for structural

steelwork (Note ¢) (FitsEe)
Total contract assets BHEERE
Less: provision for impairment W B
Contract assets, net EHEEFE
Contract liabilities AHAaE

18 B NHEMEBWRIEGE

(b)

Ho A Y 5KO0R
B (&

wa KA

B 5 R SR Z R E RN
EBoEER  RIFEXFESHRE
WHRIBRBEEABERD &
R RR AP EER - AR
RENT LR EER - A&
BREE 5 N E AR YRR
BNREREANRERE - B
e E AR A0 PR B R N ORI 5
KA RERETEE S R
HAib R FOA -

\

19 EHEERGHNARE

AIARKEE/ (AT :

MEETRNERRES

2024 2023
20245 20234
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHET
20,789 96,060
77,746 69,668
98,535 165,728
(3,091) (4,159)
95,444 161,569
(1,958) (3,196)
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19 Contract assets and contract liabilities (Continued)

Notes:
(@  The Group classifies these contract assets and liabilities as
current because the Group expects to realise them in its

normal operating cycle.

(b)  The settlement analysis of unbilled revenue and contract
liabilities based on project cycle was as follows:

Unbilled revenue: RAAZWA -
To be recovered within twelve months R+ @Az AikE

Contract liabilities: AHAaE:

A

19

To be recognised within twelve months R+ =l A 2 AR

(©) Retention receivables are settled in accordance with the
terms of the respective contracts. The terms and conditions
in relation to the release of retention vary from contract to
contract, which is subject to practical completion, the expiry
of the defect liability period or a pre-agreed time period. In
the consolidated statements of financial position, retention
receivables were classified as current assets based on its
normal operating cycle. The settlement analysis of these
retention receivables based on the terms of related contracts
was as follows:

To be recovered within twelve months R+ = 1E A Rk E
To be recovered more than twelve months R ERE+ 1A A
after the end of the year LA_Edg =

182 WK Group (Holdings) Limited o BLE£E (321R) BR AT

BREERENEEHE)

PEE
@ AEESZEANEERABEIR
"/ng o AAREEEAERELR
KEBNAG HER o
b)) ARARBARGHEERERABH
BRI -
2024 2023
20244 20234
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT TR
20,789 96,060
1,958 3,196
© RERESBREZAQLOERTMN

RS o BB IR 2 RS ARIFAR
FEAUMAMTR - ARBEER
e - EREIR B RER AT
HEmE - R PBHRREKRS -
JEWRBSIRBHIERSKEERE
DERRBEE - ZERWRES
ER A LR 27
T~

2024 2023
20245 20234
HK$°000 HK$’000
TR THET
22,354 41,241
55,392 28,427
77,746 69,668
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R & Kist

Contract assets and contract liabilities (Continued)

Significant changes in contract assets and liabilities

The changes in contract assets of the Group were due to
the timing difference in provision of construction services and
the right to payment upon receiving certification from quality
surveyors for construction contracts. The Group also applied
the simplified approach to provide for expected credit losses
prescribed by HKFRS 9, which requires the use of the lifetime
expected loss to determine the provision for contract assets.
Please refer to Note 3.1(a)(ii) for the credit risk of contract
assets.

Contract liabilities for the construction contracts decreased
(2023: increased) due to the decrease (2023: increase) in
receipt in advance on overall contract activities.

Accounting policies of contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration
from customers in exchange for the provision of structural
steelwork that the Group has transferred to the customers
that is not yet unconditional. Contract assets arise when
the Group has provided the structural steelwork under the
relevant contracts but the works have yet to be certified
by architects, quantity surveyors or other representatives
appointed by the customers and/or the Group’s right to
payment is still conditional on factors other than passage of
time. Any amount previously recognised as a contract asset is
reclassified to trade receivable at the point when the Group’s
right to payment becomes unconditional other than passage
of time.

19

ANEERANARGE
AHEER B ENEAR

AEEENEEZS I ANEHESE
AR7G SO ERIS TR B RS2 A LY
) B R 1R 1 R B HE ) 2 ] O B ) 2
£ ARBETEABEEV RS ER
FOMATAT AN EZRAAEE
BRELEE  ZENERIEGOE
EXRzHENERETRE - 7
BHEERFERRBLHMEES. ()
(ii) °

BEANNANBBEARRRL (2023
FEM  DEREBANEIN
FAYGRIEIR A (202345 - HBN) -

BRIBEREHRIEN B HE

BREERARERRDAKERR
B EBRM N AAR T2 Mm KA (E
EVRER (R R AR EBIRIE) - BEAKE
REMAMEMETMERTE BT
TRk R R EERD - TRLBIERP R P
ZANEMRRRBIER - RHEXR
R B O 5 SRR MO ORI BR B R HE RS
NN AR - AREEMNESL - £
MENBERSENEENSERA
S EO N RN RS EGTR (RE
BB AN BEF DB EE 5 RUGK
g o
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19 Contract assets and contract liabilities (Continued)

Accounting policies of contract assets and contract liabilities
(Continued)

In accordance with the terms of the contracts entered into
with customers, the Group periodically submits to customers
progress payment applications for the value of work
done under the contracts along with any variation orders
performed. Upon receiving the Group’s progress payment
applications, the customer will examine and certify the works
done by issuing payment certificate to the Group. The Group
will then issue invoices to the customers for settlement. The
credit term granted by the Group to the customers generally
ranges from 30 to 60 days from the issue of invoices.
Customers usually retain an amount up to 10% of the value
of work done, subject to a cap of 5% of the total contract
sum as retention money for the contract. The terms and
conditions in relation to the release of retention vary from
contract to contract, which is subject to practical completion,
the expiry of the defect liability period and the discussion of
final accounts.

Contract assets are assessed for impairment under the
same approach adopted for impairment assessment of trade
receivables.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer the aforesaid services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

WK Group (Holdings) Limited o BLE£E (321R) BR AT
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BREERENEEHE)

BRIBEREVR B RETHE (B

BRIBFEEFEILANRGER - AEE
TEERBEANTRN IRERFME
THAMEETE 2 BERNEFPER
HEREE o WA AEE®EERE
BEBEPERBREBERETKI
2odrm AEEBEEMNRER A
% AEEBRATE D ABEUELE
B AEEREFPRENEESNEE
BREZ®RF—MNTI0E60H - &
FRFERETEBATIIRER
M10% & FRABEHSETN
5% ' MEREGHIRFES - BRAEN
RESWERRGGEREGHOME -
FURRER BT - MIEEREETHN
[Eim A RE R B BRI o

WA ERRRE S RKFANME
SRR R TR -

BHEERASEA R TR LRSS
EETEP  MAKBCRZEPK
HARE B e RE) -
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Investments in life insurance contracts

Key management insurance contracts FEEEERBREN

As at 1 January ®1A1R
Addition NE

Change in cash surrender value (Note 6)

As at 31 December W12 A31H

As at 31 December 2024, the Group held life insurance
policy for certain directors of the Company. The investments
in life insurance contract are denominated in United States
Dollar. The Group has the right to surrender the insurance
partially or in full at any time after the first policy anniversary
for cash value. Cash value represents the account value net
of surrender charges (2023: same).

The Group invests in certain key management life insurance
contracts, which contain both investment and insurance
elements. The life insurance contracts are initially recognised
at the amount of premium paid, and subsequently measured
at each reporting date at its cash surrender value. Changes
to the cash surrender value at each reporting date will be
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as “other gain/(loss), net”. In the event of death of the
insured person, the surrender of the policies, or the policies
mature, the investment will be derecognised and any resulting
gain/loss will be recognised in profit or loss.

ReRFREEZD (HFE6)

AERBENRE

2024 2023

20245 20234
HK$’000 HK$’000

FHT FHET

5,901 3,460

- 2,846
182 (405)

6,083 5,901

72024F12 A31H » KEBAKRRD
AETESHAEASRE - AFRR
BHRIREAETTRME - AEEHET
BE—ARERF 2EHEMRE[HBY
FEHRAERANBIMREMB - B
BEENKREREAENEFEER
(20234 : #8[A) °

FEBREETIZEEABASR
REH  BETRESREMRBRD
ABRBENNTRENRE SR
R HERNEHRE B PRARSER
BEMFE REREEAMASRRE
ENEBHNEE ZEBRARTHER
RIEMY e (B18) %8 - £XR
AFW - REERFRAREIHANBER
T REKRBOHER - BILELD
EdEs, BEEENERTER -
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21 Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss 21 RAFEFABENEREE
()  Classification of financial asset at fair value through () TBAVEFABZENEREE
profit or loss Akl
The Group classifies the following financial assets at fair AEBEBUTERMEEDER
value through profit or loss: RATERAER
e debt instruments that do not qualify for o IR EREHEMKAGTEN
measurement at either amortised cost or fair BAFEFARMEEK
value through other comprehensive income AREBLIA
o equity investments that are held for trading, and o BHMESNERKRE &
e equity investments for which the entity has not e ERVEEEZEFRHEMS
elected to recognise fair value gains and losses AR ATER A FE Rz
through other comprehensive income. BiENERKRE -
Financial asset mandatorily measured at fair value BHIR AT ER AR
through profit or loss include the following: ENCREEBRIENTE
B :
2024 2023
2024F 2023%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FAT
Current asset REBEE
Unlisted fund investment FELEMESIRE 4,465 =
Note: Bi3E -
As at 31 December 2024, the unlisted fund investment 20245124318 @ FLTESK
mainly held listed securities and it is redeemable on demand. BFXFERFLIMESFRZEESRA
Subsequently to the year end, the Group has redeemed all RESKERD - RFEAATER - RNEE
these investments. EaHEEZERE -
See Note 33.5 for the remaining relevant accounting HeEBeTREL2 RN
policies. 33.5 0
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R & Kist

Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss 21
(Continued)

(i)

)

Amounts recognised in profit or loss

During the year, the following loss were recognised in
profit or loss:

~

BRAFEFABENERHEE (B

(i)

Fair value loss on financial asset at ~ ZAFEFFABENERMEE

fair value through profit or loss " A FEEE (5Ee)
(Note 6)

Risk exposure and fair value measurements

The fair values of all the Group’s financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are categorised as level 2
which are quoted prices available from over-the-counter
markets.

For the methods and assumptions used in determining
the fair value of the above instruments, please refer to
Note 3.3.

/|

REAR - U TEERED®

2024 2023
20245 20234
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHET
535 =

(i)

[\t A K X FERHE

AEBMARRNTVEFAER
MEREEN D FELERE
& AEBINRSTE LER
MIHRE -

FHEE L T ARFEMR
REIERRR - F2HME
3.3°
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22 Cash and cash equivalents and bank deposit with 22
original maturity over 3 months

Cash at bank and on hand IRITRFERS
— Cash at bank —R1TR S
— Cash on hand —FEES

Bank deposit with original maturity JRE|ER B EB A3 E A &Y
over 3 months RITIF K

Maximum exposure to credit risk BAEERBHA

As at 31 December 2024, the effective interest rate on bank
deposit with original maturity over 3 months was 2.00% per
annum.

Cash and bank balances and bank deposit with original
maturity over 3 months are denominated in the following

currencies:
Cash at bank and on hand IRITRFERS
— HK$ —BTT
— Renminbi — AR
Total “a5T
Bank deposit with original maturity JRE|HA B EB A3 E A &Y
over 3 months RITER
- HK$ —#TT

Bank balances of the Group amounting to HK$2,265,000
(2023: HK$676,000) were placed with certain banks in
Mainland China as at 31 December 2024. The remittance
of these balances is subject to the foreign exchange control
restrictions imposed by the PRC government.

188 WK Group (Holdings) Limited o ZLE£E (358%) BRA T

RERRSEEWUARFIHAE

B3ME A WRITER

2024 2023
20245 20234
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
99,811 8,622
152 28
99,963 8,650
5,076 =
104,887 8,622

M2024%12A31H

- REEIR B

BEAMBITERNERFNERS

2.00% -

R MRTTEHRARRZIH A EBE3
EARITEFATIEEHE

2024 2023
20244 20234
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT T
99,540 7,946
423 704
99,963 8,650
5,076 =

R2024F12A318 » REBEFEK
RETHREAMBITHRITER A
2,265,00078 7t (20234F : 676,000/5
TL) c EHZSEASASTPEBRNE

HEHY I NE & Il PR 1
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23 Share capital and capital reserve

(@  Share capital

Authorised:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each upon
incorporation on 28 June 2023 and
balance at 31 December 2023

Increased authorised share capital on
5 February 2024

Balance at 31 December 2024

Issued and fully paid:

Upon incorporation on 28 June 2023 and
as at 31 December 2023

Shares to be issued pursuant to the
Capitalisation Issue (Note i)

Shares to be issued pursuant to the
Share Offer (Note i)

Balance at 31 December 2024

* The amount is below HK$1,000.

Notes:

23 BRARBRAFE

@ R
Equivalent
Number of  nominal value of
ordinary shares ordinary share
TERHE ERREEZE
HK$'000
FET
EE -
7202346 A28 H iH K 3L 38,000,000 380
FRR0.01B TR E BT
2023F 12 A31 HR &4
202442 A5 BIETERRALL 9,962,000,000 99,620
n
M2024F12 A31 BRY4E 54 10,000,000,000 100,000
ERITRHE
202346 A28 H s A 3 B 1 =
N R2023F12A31H
REEAMEBITETRITRR  1,499,999,999 15,000
17 (P E)
RERDEEETEITORS 500,000,000 5,000
(B &%)
M2024F12 A31 BRY 454 2,000,000,000 20,000
* S FEFM, 0008 7T ©
M

U

(i)

On 8 March 2024, the Company issued additional
1,499,999,999 shares by way of capitalisation of
HK$14,999,999.99 standing to the credit of the
Company’s share premium account.

On 8 March 2024, the shares were listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange with an offer price of
HK$0.25 per Share. In connection with the Listing,
the Company issued a total of 500,000,000 shares for
total proceeds (before related fees and expenses) of
HK$125,000,000. Dealing in the shares of the Company
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange commenced
on 8 March 2024.

(i)

M2024F3A8H + ARRAE
B AR R DG E R E RS
14,999,999.00F T E A BT
1,499,999,9900% ZHINIK 1D ©

202453 HA8H - MBI AT
ThEm BHEEBEREMR0.25/8
Tt ETMmE » ARAETA
#£500,000,000/ & 15 + A5 F IR
BB (MR ERERARFAXAH) B
125,000,000 7T © A2 AlAR 15 7
202443 A8 HAAMAEB XA EIRE

=

=
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23 Share capital and capital reserve (Continued)

(o) Capital reserve

The capital reserve of the Group represented combined

share capital of the subsidiaries now comprising the

Group after elimination of inter-company investments

prior to the reorganisation.

24 Trade, retention and other payables

Trade payables
Retention payables

Accruals and other payables
— Accrued staff cost
— Accruals for listing expenses
— Other accruals and payables

23

24

IRAS K IR A48 (72
b BAREE
AEENBEAFBEREER

NEIRRELHHREMAEH
TR TP R BIHOFE AR A o

ESRNNE  ENRESREM
PRSI

2024 2023
20245 20234
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET THET
B S EFIR 31,431 77,770
A RES 1,538 5,854
32,969 83,624

FERTE A M E A ERFRIE
—EEFE TR 3,518 4,275
—FEFT ETAX - 5,309
—Hh g8 A K EMNFUE 8,251 7,932
11,769 17,516

The trade payables, retention payables, accruals and other

payables are mainly denominated in HK$ and the carrying

amounts approximate their fair values (2023: same).

WK Group (Holdings) Limited o BLE£E (321R) BR AT

BHRNFR - BNRESR - BB
AR EAM RN IR Z B TTAHE -
AEREEREQFHEREE (20234 ¢
R



24 Trade, retention and other payables (Continued)

25

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R & Kist

The ageing analysis of the trade payables based on invoice

date is as follows:

Within 30 days

31 - 60 days

61 — 90 days

More than 90 days

Bank borrowings

Current, secured and guaranteed
— Bank loans (Notes a and b)

The bank loans are denominated in HK$ and bear interest at
floating rates that are market dependent (2023: same).

30H™A

31ZE60H
61%290H
0 H

By - BEARBER

—RITER

24

25

GEZD)

ESRNNE  ENREEREM

FE{TFRIE (22
AERBEZQHNE ZENFIBEMRER
DT
2024 2023
20245 20234
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET THET
16,639 23,730
3,683 28,475
5,123 1,939
5,986 23,626
31,431 77,770
RITER
2024 2023
20245 20234
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET THET
5,865 9,886

RITERIDABTTAHE - WIRTHEF
B FBNIREE (202345 : MR °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R R Kzt

25 Bank borrowings (Continued) 25

(@ The table below analyses the bank borrowings of the
Group into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the year end to the contractual
maturity date without taking into consideration the
effect of repayment on demand clause.

Bank borrowings repayable: AR T FHEEZRD
RITEMR :

Within one year 1R

Between 1 to 2 years 1524

Between 2 to 5 years 2E5F

Over 5 years 5%

The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings
approximate their fair values. The weighted average
interest rate is 5.34% (2023: 4.91%).

WK Group (Holdings) Limited o BLE£E (321R) BR AT

RITERGE

(@)

TEIMRERBKTHEAES
MEIMEASEZAREIHA
ARB D RITER > BRI
B RRERERGROE
.

2024 2023
20244 20234
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHET
1,294 3,468
1,370 1,484
3,123 4,549
78 385
5,865 9,886

BITEFRNEEAEEERATE
FBE o MEFHREKE5.34%
(2023%F : 4.91%) °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R & Kist

25 Bank borrowings (Continued)

(b)

As at 31 December 2024, non-revolving loan facility
amounted to HK$5,865,000 was secured by life
insurance contracts and guaranteed by the Company.

As at 31 December 2023, (i) non-revolving loan facility
amounted to HK$6,979,000 and revolving loan facility
amounted to HK$2,003,000 were guaranteed by Mr.
Chan Kam Kei, Mr. Chan Kam Kong, Ms. Chan Suk
Man and Mr. Chan Wing Hong, secured by properties
owned by Wealthy River International Investment
Limited, a related company of the Group, and life
insurance contracts owned by Mr. Chan Kam Kei
and Ms. Chan Suk Man; (i) non-revolving loan facility
amounted to nil (2023: HK$904,000) was secured by
the properties owned by Wealthy River International
Investment Limited, Mr. Chan Wing Hong and Ms.
Choi Chick Cheong, and guaranteed by Mr. Chan Kam
Kong, Mr. Chan Kam Kei and Mr. Chan Wing Hong
respectively.

The Group has the following undrawn bank facilities
consisting of revolving loans:

Floating rate SFENFIE

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income over
the period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
date.

25 RITIERE

(b)

MR2024%F12A31H @ EERE
XA E £ %85,865,000/8 LA A
SRBAOERTERBAERRF
REER -

202312 A831H - ()FEER
B ENE £ %86,979,0008 7T &
fEIRE @ E £%52,008,000/8
T BMRSELAE  BREBIIL
& BRRERZ T REOKEEE
REEREABIERIEES
RAGEBNYE  KNEE—
R NG REREELERRE
BEZTHEBEHASRREELD
BT  ()FER/REFRME A
Z (20234 : 904,000 7T) » A
EIEBRREBRATF - BRK
REERBHEEZLIHEENY
EEEA  AEETIEAE B
BRI A REOKFE T EREE
R o

AEBARRERNRITHE (B
EREROWT

2024 2023
20245 20234
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHxT FHET
2,400 42,997

ERNT RN FEMGRAES
R HEATER o ERERIZ
BIHRAET & - FT1SF0R (F0kR
R HA) BB R 252 FHE
M EZBHRAERMEERE
RYENGEA ZEBRAKRTHE

e

PRIEA SR B A BRI R A
BABENAEEREERE AR
2128 - BAEREL L

RREAE -

Annual Report 2024 ¢ —Z& — [JFF 3}

193



194

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &#&

26 Cash flows information

(@)  Cash generated from/(used in) operations:

Profit before income tax expense
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Finance income
Finance costs
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
(Gain)/loss on investments in
insurance contracts
Fair value loss on investment in
financial assets
Net exchange differences
Impairment losses on trade
receivables and contract assets

Operating profit before changes in
working capital
Changes in working capital:
Decrease/(increase) in contract assets
Increase in trade and other receivables,
deposits and prepayments
(Decrease)/increase in trade
payables, accruals and
other payables
(Increase)/decrease in contract liabilities
Increase in amounts due from directors
Decrease in amount due from
a related company

Net cash generated from/(used in)
operations

WK Group (Holdings) Limited o BLE£E (321R) BR AT

26 HEHREER

Eupy ES e

(@) KEHME/ AR :

2024 2023
2024%F 20234
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBx FAT
BR TS H F 2 A& 39,645 33,653
RUATREAZ
ME - BERBRETE
2,586 1,849
CREEERE 5,282 3,956
B A (603) (207)
YR ID®IN 579 662
HENE « BEREHE
[ - 79
RERA R E (k)
&1 (182 405
BERcREENATE
[ 535 =
N EZRFE 312 411
BIRWHIERAENEE
VERET ! 64 1,577
EEESBEAIMLE S
48,218 42,385
EBEGEE
BREERD,(EMm) 67,193 (89,174)
B 5 REMBYGRIE - 1%
& R IERTFRIEIE N (16,728) (33,467)
B S EMNIE - [BiTE
FA R Lt FE A 5078 Ok
D),/ m (60,681) 65,969
BEGGM, A (1,238) 996
JE MY == SRIEE N - (759)
e U — P B 1 )
FIER D - 480
&R/ (TR RE
JFEE 36,764 (13,570)




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R & Kist

26 Cash flows information (Continued)

26 BEFREERE

(b)  In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds b)) REEHRLTERT HED
from disposal of property, plant and equipment ¥ BEERSKERSHESR
comprise: e

2024 2023

20245 2023%F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FER FET

Net book amount (Note 14) BREFE (FIEE14) - 79
Loss on disposal of property, HEYE - BEMEEN

plant and equipment (Note 6) 518 (F1ske) - (79

Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYE - BEREE
plant and equipment FriS 308 - S

(c)  Net debt reconciliation

() BEFFEYE

The movements of liabilities from financing activities for
each of the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023:

HZE20245F £2023F12 A31H
HFESFZRETRELSR

E2H

Other assets Liabilties from financing activities
Rt EeE RERBMELNEE

Cash and cash Lease  Amounts due
equivalents Borrowings liabilities to directors Total

#Aek JEfs
ReZEY B HERE BRI it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT Thx TAT THT ThT
As at 1 January 2023 1202351 A1H 68,696 (8,454) (8,544) (6,991) 45,707
Cash flows hene (60,019) (986) 4,483 5,991 (60,531)

Non-cash movements: ek Sl

Interest expenses flBF% - (446) (216) = (662)
Lease termination HERIE - - 1,108 - 1,108
Exchange realignment 5 ERTAE 27) - 163 - 136
Asat 31 December 2023 12023412 A31R 8,650 (9,886) (3,006) - (4,242)
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26 Cash flows information (Continued) 26

(c)  Net debt reconciliation

Eupy ES e

BHEREER (B)

© BEBFEEKRE)

Other assets Liabilities from financing activities
HthEE REEDMELNEE
Cash and cash Lease  Amounts due
equivalents  Borrowings liabilites  to directors Total
BER JEft
RE%EY EE HEAE EzhE EH)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THRL TARL TERL TARL
Asat 1 January 2024 12024F1 18 8,650 (9,886) (3,006) - (4,242)
Cash flows BeinE 91,37 4,407 5,226 - 101,004
Non-cash movements: FREEH
Interest expenses fEEY - (386) (193) - (579)
Addition of lease HRERE - - (9,074) - (9,074)
Exchange realignment EHEHAE (58) - 160 - 102
Asat 31 December 2024 120245124318 99,963 (5,865) (6,887) - 87,211
27 Related party transactions 27 RBABAERS

Parties are considered to be related to the Group if the party
has the ability, directly or indirectly, to exercise significant

influence over the Group in making financial and operating
decisions. Related parties may be individuals (being members
of key management personnel, significant shareholder and/

or their close family members) or entities and include entities

which are under the significant influence of related parties

of the Group where those parties are individuals. Parties are
also considered to be related if they are subject to common

control.

WK Group (Holdings) Limited o BLE£E (321R) BR AT

W—F B hEEIEEEREERN
MBREERRITEERTE N - Z
T3 AR AR N R B G R R - BEEE 5 ]
BEAGIZZERBAS Igﬁﬁﬁ
R/ RERBREKRE) HEE -
R ARE B & AR Héﬁwaﬂ’b—\
g o ﬂﬁﬁfﬁ.ﬂi’]ﬁx/\m il - TR
y=TEo) )



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R & Kist

27 Related party transactions (Continueq) 27 BBAEREZ(E)
(@  The directors of the Company are of the view that the @ ARBNEZRRUTING
following parties/companies were related parties that RABRFRNEAEEBR S
had transactions or balances with the Group during the SRAERRI R T
year:

Name of related parties

MBS B8

Mr. Chan Kam Kong

fREE LA

Mr. Chan Kam Kei

PREBESLHE

Ms. Chan Suk Man

BROMSEZ +

Mr. Chan Wing Hong

BRoK RS

Ms. Choi Chick Cheong

EHEERT

Wealthy River International
Investment Limited

2 LERREBRAR

Relationship with the Group
BEARKEHER

Controlling shareholder and executive director

ERBRRENITES

Controlling shareholder and executive director

ERRRENTESR

Controlling shareholder and executive director

ERIRRRBITES

Controlling shareholder and non-executive director

ERBER MIEMITES

Controlling shareholder and non-executive director

ERIRR M IERITEE

Controlled by Mr. Chan Kam Kong, Mr. Chan Kam Kei and
Ms. Chan Suk Man

HERBIIEE RBELEKRRELLES

The following transactions were carried out with related (o) AT STy 7L T -

parties:

Save as disclosed in Note 25, the following transactions
were carried out with a related party:

Rental paid to
Wealthy River International
Investment Limited

The transactions were conducted in the normal course
of business at prices and terms as agreed between the
Group and the related party.

RO EE25FTEE I - U TR

5 T EARER T
2024 2023
20245 20234
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT T
ST
BIBRIEEER
NENHEE 540 480

RSTREFEBBIZEFRA
S BB 2 M ER
R ARTRFTAERT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R R Kzt

27 Related party transactions (Continued)

()

Key management compensation

Key management includes the executive directors of
the Company. The compensation paid or payable to
key management for employee services is disclosed in
Note 9.

Amounts due from a related company and directors

As at 31 December 2023, the balances with a
related company and directors of the Company were
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand and
approximated their fair values.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the
maximum amount due from a related company was
HK$11,642,000 (2023: HK$12,033,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2024,
the maximum amount due from directors was
HK$8,069,000 (2023: HK$3,736,230).

As at 31 December 2023, the balance with a related
company and directors were denominated in HK$.

As at 31 December 2024, all the balances with related
company and directors have been fully settled.

WK Group (Holdings) Limited o BLE£E (321R) BR AT

27 BEMARE(E

()

IEETBEMNS

TREEERRBRARRNITE
Z-EERBEMNIEMNE
ZEEENME RERHMEI -

fEUs —ERAE A B R B E IR

2023412 A31H - EB—FE
AR RARBER 2 EHE
Bif - B REAREREER
HENFERS -

EHZE2024%F 128318 ILEE -
B —HEBEARRERS
11,642,000/ 7T (20234 -
12,033,000/87T) °

HZE2024F12A31 B ILFE -
W E BB R A8,069,000
7T (20234 : 3,736,230/8
JT) °

M2023F12H31H - EB—[Ef
Bt AR M EFBMESR B TTET
'fg o

R2024F12A31H - EHEFE A
RINEEMERETBHLES -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R & Kist

* The amount is below HK$1,000.

28 Company statement of financial position and reserve 28
movements
Assets BE
Non-current asset ERBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—TEB AR E
Current assets REEE
Prepayments SEANE S
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEU BB A AR IE
Financial asset at fair value through BATEFGABRHSRE
profit or loss BiE
Cash and cash equivalents ReRAEEEY
Total assets BEHAE
Equity ER
Equity attributable to owners of KABHEE AELER
the Company
Share capital [N
Share premium B imE
Capital reserve B AR
Accumulated losses RETEsE
Liabilities =V
Current liabilities REEE
Accruals and other payables FEETE R R EAE IR
Amounts due to subsidiaries NN S NEIESE
Total liabilities BE8E
Total equity and liabilities EERkEERHE

The statement of financial position of the Company was
approved by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2025 and

were signed on its behalf.

Chan Kam Kei

Director Director

Chan Kam Kong

DNAMBRARE RERE

*

2024 2023
20245 20234
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET THET
150,360 150,360
- 4,804
92,167 =
4,465 -
30,503 =
127,135 4,804
277,495 155,164
20,000 =
91,823 =
150,360 150,360
(3,670) (15,982)
258,513 134,378
- 5,284
18,982 15,502
18,982 20,786
277,495 155,164

SFRH,0008 T ©

RRARFBHHRRAKRHEEEN2025
FIA2TEH AL HUATEERRE

2o
REE &L
EF EF
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DRAMBRRARRBERD (F

28 Company statement of financial position and reserve 28
movements (Continued)

Share Capital Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
RIPEE RARE By @t
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TR TR TR TR
(note)
G
Balance as at 28 June 2023 R2023F6H28H
(date of incorporation) (FHEBA L B ) My sh - - - -
Comprehensive loss ZHEEE
Loss for the year FREB - - (15,982) (15,982)
Total comprehensive loss THEEAH - - (15,982) (15,982)
Transaction with owners in REREEANERA
their capacity as owners ETHRS
Effect of reorganisation BANTE - 150,360 - 150,360
Balance at 31 December 2023 R2023F 12 A31 H R4 - 150,360 (15,982) 134,378
Balance as at 1 January 2024 R2024%1 A1 B - 150,360 (15,982) 134,378
Comprehensive income ZHEBE
Shares issued in the IPO RERDREERETH
i<n) 120,000 - - 120,000
Capitalisation issue of shares BREEITRG (15,000) - - (15,000)
Share issuance costs RIDEITRA (13,177) - - (13,177)
Profit for the year FNEFI - - 38,898 38,898
Total comprehensive
income ANt 91,823 - 38,898 130,721
Transaction with owners in HERBEEANERA
their capacity as owners ETHRS
Dividend ) - - (26,586) (26,586)
Balance at 31 December 2024 R2024F12 A31 H RV &4 91,823 150,360 (3,670) 238,513
Note: Capital reserve of the Company represented the carrying Misr : AATRAEE IR KETHER

amount of the equity items shown in the consolidated financial
statements of Wing Kei Hong Kong as at the date when it
became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

RARREZEWBLAE B AL
BB HRR AR AR B @8R
[ENR
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29 Subsidiaries

29

The following is a list of the subsidiaries at 31 December

2024:

Place and date of

Name of subsidiaries incorporation

WEAFERE AR B

Direct interests

ERER

WK Development Group The BVI, 4 July 2023
Limited

WK Development Group ~ EERZHES -
Limited 2023%7 A4H

Indirect interests
CEg

Wing Kei Structural Hong Kong, 28 July 1999
Metalworks Company

Limited

KESBEBEIRBRLF B8 1099%7H28H

Dongguan Yongji Metal PRC, 6 July 2015
Component Manufacturing
Co., Ltd

REXESBHEMAZERR +E 201557 A6H
N

Wing Kei Management Hong Kong, 28 March 2023
Company Limited

Wing Kei Management &5 » 202335280

Company Limited

Principal activities and
place of operations

IRXBREXMH

Investment holding, the BVI

REER  RBRIES

Supply and installation of
structural steel works,
Hong Kong

MEmIRfRREE
BE

Supply and fabrication of
structural steel works,
the PRC

MEmIRtEREE
i

Provision of administrative
services for Group,
Hong Kong

RAREBRAITIRART -
B%

MEQRE

AT AER2024F12A31HHH B A

FFI%* -
Issued and fully
paid up share
capital/paid up

capital

ERTRAR
BA/BREX

US$200/US$200

200%7L,/200% T

HK$1,700,000/
HK$1,700,000

1,700,000/ 7T,/
1,700,000 7T

US$1,200,000/
US$1,200,000

1,200,000 7T,/
1,200,0003 T

HK$10,000/
HK$10,000

10,0007,/
10,0005 7T

Attributable equity
interest of the Group
as at 31 December
2024 and 2023
20245 20235
12A31 A% 5

FE{L B

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%
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30

31

32

Contingent liabilities

In the ordinary course of the Group’s business, the Group
has been subject to a number of claims due to personal
injuries suffered by employees of the Group or the Group’s
subcontractors in accidents arising out of and in the course
of their employment. The directors of the Company are of
the opinion that such claims are covered by insurance and
will not result in any material adverse impact on the financial
position or results and operations of the Group. No provision
has been made in respect of these claims in the consolidated
financial statements (2023: same).

Commitment

The Group did not have any material commitment as at 31
December 2024 (2023: same).

Subsequent events
There have been no material events subsequent to 31

December 2024 which require adjustment or disclosure in
accordance with HKFRS.

WK Group (Holdings) Limited o BLE£E (321R) BR AT

30

31

32

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R R Kzt

HREE

RAKEN—REBHBIEF - AEE
EEBRZHEAASERAEED BHE
MEEEERERETEENELT
EXANFBENHER - ARFESFR
R ZERRDERBRE - Ty
G B I TSR S AR I R B A AR
ERERTFEE - A BHRET
3 B 51 5% 5 B R A A (20234
HERD)

i

N2024%12 8310 » AEEI EIF
AT E A AYE (20234 : #H[A]) °

EEHIRER
R2024%F12 A31 B2 WEE A AR

BEBVBHREEAELARLEE
MEAEH -
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33 Summary of other potentially material accounting 33 HMWREEANSTTBERHE
policies

33.1 Subsidiaries 33.1 B AE]

33.1.1 Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

33.1.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for
at cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

33.1.1 46 4RH

MERREARESTHEA
BEHRNER (BHE
BUHEER) - EAKER
SEZ BRI ARE R &

HEVE R S F A R E 03
HRER - WHRENBERHE
HRERNENRERS
B #REF - ARG B AME H %
B - BRI ES
REBEASEE BB
BARK - XRIEHIEL L
EHETBHEANE -

SERNNARIERS - #&
HREBRRBERHH AR
BRI T HIH - FRIF
R 5T BRIERNTEE
BELBRE  TRIRE
BEETEHE - HEA
AN BRRERNTER
fEHDNE) - UREREARE
ERARBR—B -

33.1.2 BB FIRA

R B AR IR ERKA
RRREARR - KRB
REMERBIERA - K
BARIMEERAR AR
EH RS EAR
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33 Summary of other potentially material accounting
policies (Continued)

33.1 Subsidiaries (Continued)

33.1.2 Separate financial statements (Continueq)

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving a dividend
from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary
in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount
in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

33.2 Segment reporting

Operating segment is reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-
maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments,
has been identified as the executive directors of the
Company that make strategic decisions.

33.3 Foreign currency translation

(@) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"),
which is the Company’s functional and the
Group’s presentation currency.

WK Group (Holdings) Limited o BLE£E (321R) BR AT

33 HttmgEEANETERME(E)

33.1

33.3

HB AT (#)
33.1.2 BB iR (&)

el B2 PR BB 2 B4R & UER Y
SR B S IR X
=N PNl
B B I R
KRERAEBLAFA M
BERARBIRE RRINE
EFE(BEERNER
B - AIZAHRZENBEA
AINREETRER -

°ﬁf’%§ﬁ&%ﬁ%
BABRANEELERES
WAL B e B R A A
AHITEE -

SNEEBRE
@ DRERERIHEE

AEEEEE LW
KATFIEB YA E RS
BTN EBLBERTD
B ([Thee B¥EDETE -
e MR AETT ([
T 2R BILAEARTR
B E B R AL ER T
B -
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33 Summary of other potentially material accounting
policies (Continued)

33.3 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

©®)

(©

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive
income within “administrative expenses”.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

o assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that balance sheet;

o income and expenses for each income
statement and statement of comprehensive
income are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the transactions);
and

33 HittmseEANETERBE(E

33.3 HNEIE ()

©®)

(]

SNER ZIRAR 5 E B
RITEXHRERYEER
B mBEHERFELEN
EE 3 Wi K% S5 PR A B2 8 A
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33 Summary of other potentially material accounting
policies (Continued)

33.3 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)  Group companies (Continued)

° all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of any net investment
in foreign entities are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

33.4 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are subject to depreciation are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4

33 Summary of other potentially material accounting
policies (Continued)

33.5 Investments and other financial assets

@

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair
value (either through other comprehensive
income, or through profit or loss), and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will be recorded either in profit or loss or
in other comprehensive income. For investments
in equity instruments that are not held for trading,
this will depend on whether the Group has
made an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to present subsequent changes in fair
value in other comprehensive income.

The Group reclassifies debt instruments when
and only when its business model for managing
those assets changes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R R Kzt

33 Summary of other potentially material accounting
policies (Continued)

33.5 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

©®)

©

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Financial assets are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from the financial
assets have expired or have been transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial asset carried at fair
value through profit or loss are expensed in profit
or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payments of
principal and interest.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R & Kist

33 Summary of other potentially material accounting
policies (Continued)

33.5 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

@

Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are two
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

° Amortised cost: assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
is recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in “other gain/(loss), net” together
with foreign exchange gains and losses.
Impairment losses are presented as a
separate line item in the statement of profit
or loss.

° Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that
do not meet the criteria for amortised cost
or fair value through other comprehensive
income are measured at fair value through
profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt
instrument that is subsequently measured
at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and presented in
“other gain/(loss), net” in the period in which
it arises.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R R Kzt

33 Summary of other potentially material accounting
policies (Continued)

33.5 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

@)

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its
debt instruments carried at amortised cost. The
impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised
from initial recognition of the receivables.

For other financial assets at amortised cost,
including deposits and other receivables,
management considers that their credit risks have
not increased significantly since initial recognition
with reference to the counterparty historical
default rate and current financial position. The
impairment provision is determined based on the
12-month expected credit losses which is close
to zero.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R & Kist

33 Summary of other potentially material accounting
policies (Continued)

33.6 Financial liabilities

@

®)

Recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified as financial
liabilities at amortised cost. Financial liabilities
at amortised cost are recognised initially at fair
value net of transaction costs incurred and
subsequently stated at amortised cost. Any
difference between proceeds net of transaction
costs and the redemption value is recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income over the period of the financial liabilities
using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities are classified as current
liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional
right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the reporting date.

Derecognition

Financial liabilities are classified as financial
liabilities at amortised cost. Financial liabilities
at amortised cost are recognised initially at fair
value net of transaction costs incurred and
subsequently stated at amortised cost. Any
difference between proceeds net of transaction
costs and the redemption value is recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income over the period of the financial liabilities
using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities are classified as current
liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional
right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R R Kzt

33 Summary of other potentially material accounting
policies (Continued)

33.7

33.8

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Trade payables are
classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the year is the tax
payable on the current year’s taxable income based
on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction
adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and
liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to
unused tax losses.

(@) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
year in the countries where the Company and
its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation and considers whether
it is probable that a taxation authority will accept
an uncertain tax treatment. The Group measures
its tax balances either based on the most likely
amount or the expected value, depending on
which method provides a better prediction of the
resolution of the uncertainty.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R & Kist

33 Summary of other potentially material accounting
policies (Continued)

33.8 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

®)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income
tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting year and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset
is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences
and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and where the deferred
tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset
where the entity has a legally enforceable right
to offset and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R R Kzt

33 Summary of other potentially material accounting
policies (Continued)

33.8 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

®)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit
or loss, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

33.9 Employee benefits

@

Retirement benefit obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) which is registered under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
in Hong Kong and participates in employee social
security plan as required by the relevant local
regulations in the PRC. In Hong Kong, both the
Group and the staff are required to contribute
5% of the employees’ relevant income with
a ceiling of HK$1,500 per month to the MPF
scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
in a separately administered fund. The Group’s
contributions to the MPF scheme are expensed
as incurred. In the PRC, the Group is required to
make contributions to the retirement benefit plans
administered by the local government authorities
which are based on a certain percentage of the
eligible employee’s relevant income. The Group
has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid. The contributions
are recognised as employee benefit expenses
when they are due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R & Kist

33 Summary of other potentially material accounting
policies (Continued)

33.9 Employee benefits (Continued)

®)

()

Bonus

The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses when the Group has a contractual
or constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of
such obligation can be made.

Long service payments

The Group’s employees in Hong Kong who
have completed the required number of years of
services to the Group are eligible for long service
payments under the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance in the event of the termination of their
employment, provided that such termination
meets the circumstances specified in the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance.

A provision is recognised in respect of the
probable future long service payments expected
to be made. The provision is based on the best
estimate of the probable future payments which
have been earned by the employees from their
services to the Group up to the reporting date.

33.10Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a

present legal or constructive obligation as a result of

past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources

will be required to settle the obligation; and the

amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not

recognised for future operating losses.
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33 Summary of other potentially material accounting
policies (Continued)

33.10Provisions (Continued)

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

Onerous contracts

An onerous contract exists when the Group has a
contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting
the obligations under the contract exceed the economic
benefits expected to be received from the contract. The
unavoidable costs under a contract reflect the least net
cost of exiting from the contract, which is the lower of
the cost of fulfilling it and any compensation or penalties
arising from failure to fulfil it.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4

33 Summary of other potentially material accounting
policies (Continued)

33.11Earnings per share

@

®)

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

the profit attributable to owners of the
Company, excluding any costs of servicing
equity other than ordinary shares

by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary
shares issued during the year and up to
the date of these financial statements,
excluding treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used
in the determination of basic earnings per share
to take into account:

the after-income tax effect of interest and
other financing costs associated with
dilutive potential ordinary shares, and

the weighted average number of additional
ordinary shares that would have been
outstanding assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement &4 B %R R Kzt

33 Summary of other potentially material accounting 33 HMAEEANSTTEERHEE
policies (Continued)

33.12Dividend distribution 3312 E K
Dividend distribution to the shareholders of the 7R A &) 2k 3R By 48 A AR 5= B BY
Company or the companies now comprising the Group N FIAI AR R 5 R BB A AR R 3k
is recognised as a liability in the consolidated financial EX(WERA)ERSHHEL
statements in the period in which the dividends are FEUBHmEANERS—IHEA
approved by the shareholders or directors, where fg o
appropriate.
Dividend proposed or declared after the reporting year RBEFEREBRYEHRE
but before the financial statements are authorised for RETZEESZEIERIKRE
issue are disclosed as a non-adjusting event and are ERIEAREMEE BT g
not recognised as a liability at the reporting date. RpE AR ARE -
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A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
published financial statements, is set out as below. This summary

Summary of Financial Information B % & ##E

TREIBEFAC TRMBRROAEE
ROAEYBRFENEEREEABR
2 ABBINEREEZMBRRZ—

does not form part of the audited financial statements. B o
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
20244 20234 20224 20214 20204F
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FHBT FET FH&TT FHET FHETT
Revenue WA 398,463 370,226 336,384 228,776 324,292
Cost of services BR %R AR (827,071) (299,128) (269,445) (193,359) (269,254)
Gross profit EH 71,392 71,098 66,939 35,417 55,038
Other income H g A 17 181 2,611 133 1,283
Other (loss)/gain, net Hih (&18), e (353) (484) 123 159 112
R
Administrative expenses THRAX (26,533) (19,128) (19,078) (14,670) (12,695)
Listing expenses FiAX (4,838) (15,982 = = =
(mpairment losses)/reversal & RIEENAHE (64) (1,577) (3,800) 383 162
of impairment losses on ECREsE),/
financial assets and B E 1R O]
contract assets
Operating profit &R 39,621 34,108 46,795 21,422 43,900
Finance income B S U A 603 207 95 39 23
Finance costs YR (579) (662) (434) (526) (496)
Finance costs, net B TSR AN F 5 24 (455) (339) (487) (473)
Profit before income tax bR ET1S 5 B 2 Al s 39,645 33,653 46,456 20,935 43,427
expense al
Income tax expense FTiSBiR X (8,145) (8,448) (7,191) (3,599) 6,721)
Profit for the year attributable Z<A B1#EA A FEN 31,500 25,205 39,265 17,336 36,706
to owners of the Company  fFR%F|
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Summary of Financial Information B K& R HE

As at 31 December

M12H831H
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
20245 20234 20224 20214F 20204
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$000
FBT FHET FH&TT THET T
Non-current assets EREBEE 36,986 18,640 22,653 17,521 22,268
Current assets REEE 276,319 238,424 174,800 135,123 141,269
Total assets EEHEE 313,305 257,064 197,453 152,644 163,537
Non-current liabilities FRBRE 2,483 110 4,192 501 2,575
Current liabilities RBEE 57,440 120,721 62,673 54,302 79,821
Total equity RSB 253,382 136,233 130,588 97,841 81,141
Total liabilities and equity SEREZRHALE 313,305 257,064 197,453 152,644 163,537
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